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Organization Chart / [nsyas1uvovodnns
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Shareholder
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Board of Director
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b. - 2 - President

aned1ussivanA1odAns
Corporate Business Group

a1891uUSHISSIATMIAzAUNU
Price and Cost Management Group

@N9IUSSNIWANATUAIWIFIY
Special Asset Business Group

WE0UNSSUNISWINNISWUSHISAENIU
First Senior Vice President
Head of Special Asset Business Group

SOUNSSUNISYINNISWUSHISEENIU
Executive Vice President
Head of Price and Cost Management Group

Wy0UNSSUNISLINNISYUSHSAENIU
First Senior Vice President

Head of Corporate Business Group

theuSKISSIAMAzWIISTUNIASAR
Pricing and Credit Underwriting Department

whevrganAavAns
Corporate Business Department

whgvrganfwannnuriwiAy
Special Asset Business Department

« thednge Ia:ansmlinonsweau Auto
Auto Purchasing and Distribution Department

whgv19anANLLBIIUSIBNIS lla:anAlgus:nouns
Government and SME Business Department

«  thednge la=andmlinonsweau Non-Auto
Non-Auto Purchasing and Distribution Department

whegnAduwusiia:aduauudnuvg
Customer Relations and Marketing Support Department



d1897UUSNS llazusHisnSweau
Service and Asset Management Group

WE0UNSSUNISEINNISEUSKHNSAN8IIU
First Senior Vice President
Head of Service and Asset Management Group

wheusnisanAngauulsy lazus:nune
Maintenance & Insurance Service Department

wheUnuANISNSWEAU la:pouAURIIANSWEEU
Asset Management and Quality Control Department

thessnvgnAtunna
Retail Business Department

d1897UNISU lazAdUAL
Finance and Control Group

WE0uNSSUNISYINNISYUSHISAIENIU
First Senior Vice President
Head of Finance and Control Group
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Accounting Department
wowoensthensinyd

Vice President Head of Accounting Department
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Finance Department
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Treasury Department
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angvualuauuaiAns
Corporate Support Group

SOUNSSUNISYINNISWUSHISEI8IU
Executive Vice President
Head of Corporate Support Group
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Human Resource Department
thedoansourns

Corporate Communication Department

thousnissunay
General Administration Department
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System Development Department
theusmisioya

Data Management Department




Board of Director
ANU-NSSIUNISUSHN




Board of Director / AfUzNSSUNISUSHEN

1. unglwswad 4161 | Mr.Photipong Lamsam 3. Ungans: 4161 | Mr.Sara Lamsam
Us:57UnssuNIs | Chairman NSSUMSIIA:US:SUARU:8UIENNSUSHIS

2. unend¥ny aén | Mr.Poomchai Lamsam | Director and Chairman of Executive Committee

souUs:sUNSSUNTS | Vice Chairman 4. UNgWNW nUIAa | Mr.Pipop Kunasol
NSSUNISIIa:NSSUNISYIANAS | Director and President

5. UNUDAWSSTU a181 | Mrs.Nualphan Lamsam 7. UNAUNST ystunny | Mrs.Chantra Purnariksha
NSsUNAS | Director NSSUN1Sdds: | Independent Director

6. ns.g8 lunv:10d | Dr. Sutee Mokkhavesa 8. U18dIBY AURADIUY | Mr. Vichate Tantiwanich
NSSUNAS | Director NSSUN1Saas: | Independent Director

9. urweuwa avawnnuylwea | Mr.Anupon Likitpurkpaisan 11.UngoNddas yuuA | Mr.Arpatsorn Bunnag
NSSUNSads: | Independent Director NSSUN1Sdas: | Independent Director

10.uwduns=Na gunssssu | Mr. Suebtrakul Soonthornthum 12. UngWawwmU d3gsna | Mr.Poonpipat Aungurigul
NSsSUN1sods: | Independent Director NSSUN1Sdas: | Independent Director

USBN ANsaady 911/ (UK1BU)




Management Officers / AfU:WUSKISVOIUSHN

1. UgWnNw nuaFa | Mr. Pipop Kunasol
NSSUNSWIANAS | President

2. unnwgdan AuAY | Mrs.Thipsuda Kuenkong
SOUNSSUNISWINNTS ri'mﬁ']r‘i@u§msmumuaﬁuaqua\1ﬁns | Executive Vice President Head of Support Group
3 ugvasIns slass | Mr.Kachornjak Chalothorn
SOUNSSUMSERINMS MMKLMAGIUSHSANE9IUUSHNSS AN lassiunu | Executive Vice President Head of Price & Cost Management Group

4. ungslus JUAS | Mr.Thanan Suebsiri
[E0unsSUNISIRNNS MMAtINAUSHISANONUSSAWARANIAWIFY
| First Senior Vice President Head of Special Asset Business Group
5. U9gnsSsy auunAS | Mr. Soottichai Sombatsiri
GounssUNISEIRNTS MnliAUSHIsanenussivandeurns
| First Senior Vice President Head of Corporate Business Group
6. UeAU dvdaud | Mr.Danu Sukhavat
[E0unssUNISEIANTS MAtIAUSHISANSNUNISRU llazAoUAU
| First Senior Vice President Head of Finance and Control Group
7. ugunwa druArd | Mr. Naruepol Watanakun
(50uNsSUNSEIANTS FMKUMAGUSHSANBIUUSNS lla=USHIsNSWeEU
| First Senior Vice President Head of Service and Asset Management Group
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I o
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w.el. 2560 wagdulidnsasaanvinefie Tuil 15 Jquieu w.A. 2561)

v

TeTeludfyuanidnsnsie

t%

VuadoyvesuTum Asan 1 (PL-W1) 10 518450 V8UTEM fMsdada 311n W)
o Jui 30 SunAw 2559

'
-

SovazvasludAgyuaniansi

0] uludAuansdns P - L X

¢ guannziiouluasel
UiTn Wedlneuseiudin S (unww) 4,970,766 10.000%
U3 audfiandn s 3,800,000 7.645%
Wt weslneloans sain 3,062,566 6.966%
uaedsn Wwadygy 2,820,000 5.673%
UsEW ad3s Nandurau 9119 2,300,000 4.627%
U3HW 98unsed 9110 2,000,000 4.024%
WIBAUINT HBAUY 1,555,000 3.128%
USEw wleelneuseiuse 37799 (Uyvw) 1,416,700 2.850%
UHN gnad 9110 1,227,800 2.470%
WNTUM JUNAUAT 1,161,166 2.336%
594 24,713,998 49.719%
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%4

W (Toua o Jufl 31 Sunaw 2559)

U

v v

R SMTaaTs ASeR 1/2555 asurivunlaaoud 2560

1. vjup)
yae (U m) 500,000,000
WU (M) 500,000
yaA ey (Um) 1,000
91y 51 B4 10w 55 Augn 1 nw. 60
Snsmendy 4.65% sl Jemenideday 2 ads nni’uﬁ 1 A9 uag 1 ..
wengilyu SUIMITNINTING 1A (UrR191)

t%

2. viuf] uuRsivsiads assi 1/2556 asuivunaldneud 2560

yae (um) 500,000,000

d1uu (mihe) 500,000

yaAsaniig (Um) 1,000

918 4 U 33 5.8, 56 Auan 3 8.8, 60

Snsmenidy 3.84% vial DwnondeTas 2 ade nnuil 3 e war 350
wenelou SUIANINTIATBYSEN 110 (UVYW)

3. iU Un.iMsaats AseN 1/2557 asuinualaneul 2560

yam (Um) 500,000,000
U (Ww) 500,000
yaAreanyly (Um) 1,000
918 3 U 6 Lhiou 3w 28 f.0. 57 Augn 28 n.8. 60
Snsmenidy 3.94% sl Pemeniletar 2 ads yntufl 28 fla. uay 28 n.e.
wenzidou SUIANINTEATBYEEN 110 (UNYW)
4. Yl e dnshads adsdl 2/2557 asurmusldaeud 2561
yae (U) 500,000,000
Ty (M) 500,000
yarreniiy (Um) 1,000
918 4 U 3w 15 WA, 57 Augn 15 6. 61
Snsnonide 4.00% siel Dwaendelas 2 ads nntuil 15 wa. uax 15 we,
weneileu SUIANTNTIATBYSEY 110 (VYY)

5. Yiuf uNa.iMsaade asad 3/2557 asuimualaneul 2560

yam (Um) 400,000,000

1wy (mihe) 400,000

yaArenylg (Um) 1,000

918 31U 4 Ju 31 4 an. 57 Augn 8 A.A. 60

Snamenidy 3.57% sl Premenielay 2 afs nntudl 8 n. uae 8 2.
weneilou SUIANSNTeATBYEEN 110 (UNNYL)
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6. YUl UnR.iMIRads ASIN 4/2557 Asurinvunlaneul 2561

yam (Um) 300,000,000

U (Mw) 300,000

yaAReniY (Um) 1,000

918 3 U 4 \piou 3 1 9., 57 Augn 1w, 61

Snamenidy 3.75% siel PemenideTay 2 ads nnudl 1 nw. uaz 1 an.
wenzidou SUIANINEATRYEEN 1A (UY)

7. viuf UNRMIaaTe AN 1/2558 Asuinvualaneut 2561

yae (Um) 500,000,000

U (M) 500,000

yaAreniY (Um) 1,000

918 3 U 31 16 n.w. 58 Auan 16 nw. 61

Snamonide 3.12% sial Penenidetos 2 afs nnudl 16 na. uay 16 a.n.
wenelou SUIANINTIATRYSEN 110 (UVYL)

8. ViUl VNA.AMIBae aTeN 2/2558 Asuivualaneul 2561

yam1 (Um) 450,000,000

U (We) 500,000

yad1wenylg (Um) 1,000

918 3 U 5 hiau 27 Tu 33 22 .. 58 Augn 19 .0, 61

Snsrmenidy 3.00% siel PremenideTar 2 ads nnfudl 19 w.e. way 19 aa.
wgnzilou SUIATINTIATBYSET 1M (Un1v)

v Y 1Y a

9. VUN UYN.OANTA

9 Y

e A%t 3/2558 Asurvuslaneul 2562

yae (Um) 500,000,000

U (M) 500,000

yaAReniig (Um) 1,000

919 3 Y 6 LAy 3w 23 n.A. 58 Auan 23 1.0, 62

Snamonide 2.62% sial Penenidetos 2 afs nntufl 23 we. uas 23 na.
weneleu SUIANTNTIATOLEEN 1R (UVYL)

10. Yu ua.fnsdada a3sd 4/2558 asuiwualdasull 2562

yan (um) 500,000,000

U (Mhe) 500,000

yaAraniig (Um) 1,000

918 4 U 33 24 n.#. 58 Augn 24 n.o. 62

Snsmenidy 2.86% sial DnondeTay 2 ade nntuil 24 S.a. uay 24 no.
wenelou SUIANINTeATRYSE 110 (YY)
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11. viuf] uR.imshads asaN 1/2559 asuivunldneud 2563

yae (um) 500,000,000

Ty (M) 500,000

yarAeme(um) 1,000

91y 49 3w 25 31.A. 50 Audn 25 3.0, 63

Snsnonide 2.49% siel dremenideTos 2 afs nntudl 25 wa. uay 25 na.
weneilou SUIAINTIATOLTEN 1A (UVYU)

12. yuf] vNa.insaade A 2/2559 4ail 1 Aasuivualaneul 2564

yae (um) 500,000,000

d1uau (mih) 500,000

yarseniy (Um) 1,000

91y 51 3w 24 nw. 59 Fugm 24 nw. 64

Snsmenily 2.63% siol Senendelay 2 e nfudl 24 nw. uew 24 a.
wenelou SUIANINTeATBYSEN 110 (UVYL)

13. viuf] UnR.imsaads Asan 2/2559 4ai 2 asuimualanawl 2566

yam (Um) 200,000,000

Py (M) 200,000

yarAeniY (Um) 1,000

21y 71 33 24 .. 59 Augn 24 W, 66

Snsmenidy 3.05% sl PremenideTay 2 ads nntudl 24 nw. uaz 24 2.
wenzideu SWIANSNTEATBYEEN 110 (LNYL)

14, Yug] vaa.fnsdade aSsdl 3/2559 asuimualdasud 2562

yae (U) 500,000,000

U (M) 500,000

yarreniiy (Um) 1,000

918 3 U 3w 17 2.A. 59 Augn 17 2.0, 62

Snsmonide 2.24% siel Denendetos 2 afs nntuil 17 nn. uax 17 aa.
weneileu SUIANINTIATRYSEY 1A (UNYL)

15. vjug VIR SMTAaB9 ST 4/2559 Asurvualdoeul 2563

yam (Um) 500,000,000

d1uau (mihw) 500,000

yaArenlg (Um) 1,000

918 4 U 33 28 1.6, 59 Auan 28 n.8. 63

Snamenidy 2.60% sl dremenidelay 2 ads nntud 28 T.a. waw 28 n.e.
wenelou SUIANSNTeATBYEEN 110 (LUVYL)

Rudszezend (Teya o Juil 31 Sunaw 2559)
USEnNBuRusEEze i uan iUty 6 Wie 533 3,650 a1uum ey ad Tuil 31 §ua1A 2559 10158AIAN9TI
2,294 a1UUM
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AauanRuszezdu (Toya a Tuil 31 Furaw 2559)

v o
o o

U3t finmszasinsluguues Muanfussedu visdu 91uou 400 Suum lnedlufuantuiilorasus 19 weu

+
o Y a

Aadeyy IR (Teya u Jull 31 uaAy 2559)

v v
o o

U3 dn1szasialugumdyanldlu Msdu 100 Suum

N133INBURUANNURTD
Weadull 26 NINIAL WA, 2559 UIEN VSALITVIAY 9110 FnduiuauudeliovesuIEnlinisyiu A-

7.4 ulgurgnisareSutuaa

Useniluleueetutiunayssanudnsiosay 50 voeilsans

Jayamsdreiudunadounds

U 2555 U 2556 U 2557 U 2558 U 2559
s1gazdgAn1sIguluNa (1 u.A. 55- (1 u.a. 56- (1 u.a. 57- (1 u.a. 58- (1 u.a. 59-
31 §.A. 55) 31 §.A. 56) 31 §.A. 57) 31 5.A. 58) 31 §.A. 59)
filsgwd 240,529,963 | 205,086,100 | 140,123,623 | 170,998.988 | 220,171,327
U 447,369,569 | 447,369,569 | 447,369,569 | 596,492,753 | 596,492,753
anrilsguiasieviu 0.54 0.46 0.31 0.32 0.37
gn31NIReRuTuNasav 0.40 0.28 0.17 0.17 N/A
(Un:iw)
Anlusevazvasilsgns 74.40 61.08 54.28 59.30 N/A
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8.1

AMTNTTUNITUTEN

IASuaS1INISYANIS
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AnznssunsusEmlugimueideriad  Wleviewasnagnsfidifty saesauiirnismsaidunuresuisuasiiugua

o

a 1%

TiEhednnmsufuabndulumauleuendmualiegndiussdvsnmuas UssavdnansourislinenunansufiRnusenuenssuns
FunU deltyAAgEn kAU SNLas T o VY

10Ut 2559 AENISUNISUSEN ANSaaTs 310A (W) Usenaume

S18%FBNITUNNS

AU

10.

11.

12.

Wy a1
wgive @190

WE5E a0

UNUIANTTOL a9

WIPNAN NUIAR

n3.45 Wnveha
WIFUNT Yunne
WY AURNTY
wigeyna aunngn¥lnena
WgdUnTENa UVISITY
UPNAFAT YUUIA

a o

wgwaiianl Ssg3na

U5¢51UNIIUNT
599UIEEIUNTIUNTT / UTEFIUATIUNITHAITUIAIADULNULALETIN

ASINANT / US¥NUAIZDIUIENITUSUS
/ ASSUNNSNAITUIANBULNULATETINT /NTTUANTUSHNITAIULELS

N33UNTT

N33UNT UAENTIUNITHIANTT/ NTTUNTTEIILNITUITIMNS
/ NIFUMTUTMTAMIELS / UTEE1UNTTUNTAMNUY

3NN/ NTFUNITEIIBNITUSINS / NTIUNISUSIISANLEES / NITUNTAMUY
NI3UN159aTE

ASIUNNTDATE / NFTUNTUSISAIILELS

A5IUNNIDEsE / Us¥sunssunisuImsauides

N35UN159a52 / USE1UATINNITATINADU

NITUNTITDATE / NITUNITATIVEDU / NTIUNITNITAUNAINDULNULAZATIN

NIIUNITDATE / NITUNIINTIVEADU

NIIUNSHIUIRIA i YaULUTEN

“NITUNISHREUIIAEiloTaUnUUIEN Ao wielndnad 14, wiegivne a1, eanse a1, WNUIRNTI 61E,

m3.a6 Wnvea, welinw nuira nemrualeuly nTsun1sasinuameiistesiuiulasUseiunsdAyuesusen”
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FMUIUAULNTTUNITUAASAME B AUN 31 SuINAN 2559

ABIZNTIUNITUTEN U 12 AU
AENITUNITNTIEDU W 3 AU
AMENITUNITNIITUIAINDULNULAZATIN W 3 AU
AMIENITUNITUSMSAMEDS W T AU
AOIZEIUILNITUTUNS MWW 6 AU
AYNTTUNNTAIYY U 3 A

8.2 HuUIMI
USEMEEUIINT anuenfionuvesdninnuaaenssunsmiunanninduazaainvanning muun 311w 8 i feliseuy

Fatoluil
sePaguims AU

1. wghan g N3TUNSHIANTT

2. WgYRTINT Ylass FINTIUNTHIANTT
yhmhiigumsasnuimsnauagsuy

3. wniindann Aung FRINTIUNIHIANTT
yhmthiiguivsaenuativayuesdns

4. wygnste audRAs HYILNITUNITHIANTS
ymthiigusmsansnugsiiagnnesdns

5. wwstiud dUfs HYILNTIUNITHINNTT
ymthiifuivnsaenugshananfusifim

6. WEUgNa TiuR HYIENITUNITEIANS
v iU snuing waguinmingay

7. wway auiay HYIENITUNITEIANS
yhmthiigusmsasnunsiutayaua

8. uNsEINA Yanivinun He1wILNN3

vt fguImsihenisiayd
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AMMENTTNNITUTEN WATHLEUNS

ADIZNTTNNITUSEN
1. wrelwsnwar a1dn
AL 1928114N97UNNT

(HENWAaIUNNENAL)

Gl 831
uldsunsustads 1 {Qunen 2551
ATUYEHNNFANEN 3yeynIn @12113u13937a Temple University, U.S.A.
UEGHER ladd-
&ndqunisDauluEi (%) fu Sufl 30 Funnen 2559
UIUNANNINE NUIIUAATYUARIANS
y (PL) (PL-W1)
U4 o o o o o
04 AU 30 BUNAN 2559 | o IUN 30 FUINAN 2559
(i) (%) (idae) (%)
- e Tndna v 169,866 0.028% 224,155 0.451%
- U g A7nim (ﬁﬁqm@@ﬁﬁ@ﬁuﬁu 30%) | 12,323,402 2.066% 1,227,800 2.470%
ekl 12,493,268 2.094% 1,451,955 2.921%
sraunisainisnnay (ussezingn 5 1)
- N.A.2554-1.7.2560 - 13T8UNIINNIT LT L@TNGY A1TR (NU1T)
- WA, 2551-Tfaq1iy - 1381unITNNT 13 ANTAaTs A1AR (NWT)
- WA, 2551-Tfaq1iy - ds¥aunssnnig U3 Wealnadsziute a1dm ((vnw)
- W.A. 2542-1]aq1Tu - szarunssnnis Ui Weslne nfu Taane 47119
- W.A. 2552-1]aq1Tu - szarunssnnis U nindilleslng a1in
- 5.A. 2555-Tlaqiiy - dszanunssunig 13E WeslnetlszAudim ain (umnaw)
- W.A. 2541-n.8. 2555 - dszarunssunig WS Welneilsyiudin arn
- W.A. 2538-W.A. 2541 - dszmunssunisuazszsnudniiiniung e dednedsziudan a1
- W.A. 2526-N.A. 2537 - dszaunIsunIswaznIINNNIEAANIS L3E WesInassiudan anrin
- W.A. 2506-W.A. 2526 - NIINNNIHAANIT 13EN Waslnalsziudtn anin

ANHNANNUENNATALATITINIWNNITNNITUALHLTINT
- a1 Wean9E A0 WATWINWIANTI N0

- e wagiang adn
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2. wapide a1dn
AL 789198 1UNTINNT
19281UNITNNITNANTUNAIFDL LNUUAZATTVN

(@Bunaaeunuyniy)

81 67 1

o d‘ Yo 1] :’/ o

Qumi@ﬁ‘uﬂqﬁ‘mﬂ\?m@ 28 nugne 2530

ARINIIANEN 3tyrynsis B.A. Political Science, University of Colorado, U.S.A.
[AREXANTERN

- WANgm3 Director Accreditation Program (DAP28/2547) AxNANAA3NANNTUNIINN9LEEN Ing (10D)

AnaaunistaiulunEim (%) o Uil 30 FunAn 2559
INUIUNRNNGNE MU LR AU AIANE
- (PL) (PL-W1)
2 . o 4 e
o UN 30 FUINAN 2559 o U 30 FUIAN 2559
(i) (%) (s (%)
- uﬂﬂgﬁﬁﬁﬂ 23"16]3’1 3,540,000 0.593% 295,000 0.593%
~ungmngel avin (dense) 20,000 0.003% 1,666 0.003%
394 3,560,000 0.597% 296,666 0.597%

1lsraunn3ninnannen (luszazingn 5 1)

- WA 2534-Taq1iy - negung U Wagnelsyiudin anin (uwnaw)

- WA 2553-Taq1iu - fBnenssunnsd§anis Ui idedinenlssiudin sava (wunaw)

- WA 2553-Tfaq1iu - fBnenssunisgidanag Ui ilesinaaziuie s1va (wunaw)

- WA, 2532-faqiiy - NITUNIT LT Aangiasd Aim (Wnn1u)

- W.A. 2530-faq1iu - 90elsE8UNITNNT UAT U3ZATUNIINNIRANTNAPELLYIULAZATIV 13 FNTAaT.
A (M)

- WA 2552-Taq1iu - nasunns U3E dalng Taaie 4o

- WA 2537-1q1iu - n99UN9 131w Wedlne Fea wamn ade (Wnaw)

ANNANAUTNIATELIATITENINNITNNNTUATH LTINS
- tastne wieTnsned a7dn

- 81 WIBANTY AT LA UNUIANTIOS AT

USEn finsaasu 911im (UKBU) s1891uUs:=910 2559




[Asyas1un1s9mNIS

3. UNERI9E AN
AL n394N13
132 BNUANIZANUIEINITLINNG/NITHNNTRANT U AR D LN ULAZATTU/NTTNANTLINNTAIN
a
VAR

(HEunaaeuugNii)

Gl 461

Fuitlgsunsusieda 29 uN9AN 2547

@m’gﬁﬁmﬁ‘ﬁﬂﬁﬂ ll?‘z:yiyﬁw Master of Science in Administration, Boston University, U.S.A.
[AREXANTERN

- 1angm3 Director Certification Program a;'w?; 4 (DCP4) au1ANALdTNan11TuNIsNN19135 I (10D)

- wangmInisUiRnsananendneauannig ﬁju'ﬁ' 97 (#29.97) antARANENANTUAY AotTuATNNsTlesTulezne

- MANGRIHLIMIITALGY an1UINEINIIRANAYY ajuﬁ 4 (9e9.4) a0nTUANEINNIARAYL AaaANn Nl ssinalne

- nangrImennsLseiuiuseiug (4. a;'u‘ﬁ' 1 anntiuanenistseiudessiuge datineuaniznssunisiiukardaussy
nnsusenaugsnadsyiusie (adn.)

- MANGRIRLEMITALGIAUNTLEM SR TR (WUUAT aju‘ﬁ 1) AONTUWBUILEEY NUNNUUIUAT

- MANGATHLIMINIZUIUNIIELADIINIZALGS (L.8.4.) a;'u‘ﬁ' 17 antuimundrsanisthenainismagAassn 41tineueng
&AEITN

- MANGRITINLENITEALGIANUNIRRUIGINAGARIMNITHILAZNITAMU (388.) aju‘ﬁ' 18011UINEINNIFINAUATOAAIUNTTH
NILNIWGARINNIIN

- Harvard Business School Advanced Management Program 186 Boston, U.S.A.

&ndauniateriuluuEum (%) oW Ui 30 fUAAN 2559
UIUNRNNINE U lUAAYURAIANS
- (PL) (PL-W1)
2 o o o o o o
o Ju? 30 FUNAN 2559 o4 TU? 30 FUINAN 2559
() (%) (vidas) (%)
- WHANIT A1 1,800,000 0.302% 80,000 0.161%
CREN] 1,800,000 0.302% 80,000 0.161%

sraunisainisinany (lusveazinan 5 1)

- W.A. 2559-ffaq1iu - NITNNNTRATT L3 Tnedudsyiudase A (NunT)

- W.A. 2559-faqiiu - qiwesndienisnans annansziudinlne

- W.A. 2559-Taqiiu - wEn aNANTNINLELN1TRUne

- W.A. 2558-flaq1fu - NTINNNT ANNANTENANLNLNTRU N

- W.A. 2559-faqiiu ~ NITHNNS WAENITUNILBUNSANIALNRIANNT B1nANsnEnsIng Snifa (i)
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o o '
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nIsuNMIENUIENIIlszaNan AR EAIAN (§n9annigm) uuanaduideslug
NIINNNT ANIANNIIAINANNITRY UAZNIIaYI anmen1sATuaLszmelne
N9TNNITLINIT Yatislsanenunaniga Tunwsesdyddu

P o =
NN gantfueunan e Ane
4 -~ - 0 .
AFnEN anANARINeIANNTUAdLaLss A lne

Vo o Y A a Ao oA o Aa o o
N3suNIGAANT wazszanuduinniiung 13 Weslnetssiudin andn (umnaw)

a o A o aa o o
N998A13 131 Wasnadseiugan andm (uunaw)
‘ﬂl Vo a o = o o o o
mlEnwnssunegdnnis 1 Weslnadseiude a1in (uwnaw)
A99:1NNT WAZNIINAILEUNS 131N 1Hee Inenlsemude anda (Nun)
Uszaruduinnzms uaznssunig UsEm Waslne nii laaks A1rin
15281908 ALINNT LaTn9unng U3Em Weslne Taama a1dm
NITUNNTANINUMINEABNTINN
n99:N"7 131 n3neliiladlng andm
AFTUNITLINNTANNIREN L3N FANIA&TI ANFA (NUNT1)
UIEFIUAZAUILNITLINNT WAZNTINNIINANTAUANADLILNULAZATIN LTEN ANTAATI aNfim
(NUNT)
N330N1T UFEN ANIRATI AR (NANT1)
N3IuN"9 U3 Wealne n§il wefia anin
n99:N17 139 Haslne Fea wamn s18m (N111)
a o = o o

n99:n17 139 .18 la. andn
1A Wa.7.9. 1NN A1TAU GLIGH yatistlasiuuazisulaneansa)
N991NNTANUILNT THINARIANDI 499, [NAANNTUAIIDITF

N9INNITLINNG Yong President’s Organization (Thailand)

Y a

ANNTTNNTUNSHLTNNT

WA WIENTIE A0

USEn finsaasu 911im (UKBU) s1891uUs:=910 2559



[Asyas1un1s9mNIS

WEWAN NUIAR
AL NIFNNITUATNITUNTEAANTT
N9TNNIIEIUILNNTLIVNI/NITUNITUTNIANNIALY/L/TTEIUNITNNIRV

(HEunaaeunuyniL)

Gl 511

SUTIPETaPHTERY & 25 NN3IAN 2550

ANIYFRNTANTA 5tyrunTn MASTER OF BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION (MBA)
NWNINLUAEITITNAAAT

RREGHERY

- dsznAllating Audit Committee Program (ACP) annANgdatdsnanntiunssunisussming (10D)
- dsznAllating Director Accreditation Program (DAP) @nnANdaa3uan1tiunssnnisLdsmne (10D)
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ANENTIINTUTE WagAnznssunsvaey Warwddy dusgisbeindessuumununielu faikusnauenssunis
Uit wazanznssunsmaaeuliinsanudaiuin vidniiszuuniseuauneluiifiamnuismenazivangan Tagliiside
unwsasluFesnsemuaumelufisiinanssnuegraduassddydenisuannnuiuvesdaoudylusunisdu el ause
asUszuunmamuaungluresussnld dwieluil

n13A2UANNI81Y (Internal Control)

AnznssuMsuiTnialifssuuauquaelufinsouagulunnides fntsaauamisnsiu medduay nsiifugus
nMsUfoRu wagnsuivseandes idulumunguane devsdu wagsadeuiifendes Ineildinnsaaeunmeluiidumie
audasy nthiinsaaeunisufiinumelunidmuisssduauiiome AUV IZANTDITEUUAIUANNTETY kAT TI89Y
HANIATIAABUATIABNTIUNITHIANITUALAUENTTUNITNTIVAOU ArenuivualidunsnsguatarUesiudlinssunisuas
HUTS %IE]GUWEJMélﬂW%JWEﬁ@EJGLGZ’JJ%I’PJ@J“aﬂ’]EJSLU (Insider trading) LLazﬂ1imﬂiﬂmuﬂlﬁmmuww%éﬁiﬁlumnﬁ%au (Abusive
self-dealing)

mstasnunaudaudinienalsleyd

AaNIIUNITUSEMTausETasE SetuTensiislostuar ensfideutaudwesmalsslowd Tneusemiinstivun
fupoufinsanliossouroy feanudedndaninedrsfivaiinauandudasymelunsoussessudud aenauiinidame
Toyastrsasuiny ellliAnrnudaudwsslonivesuivnlnesnndudiy lnsanznssunmsnaeuldinnsansemsiiie
TyafudsenanelfinanudaudmamaUsylond fanudiuinsenisseninstuiiiniuluseutiriuun Wunsyisionisdu
Wenfusemsivinfugsianluuimldidamelumnemeusenevsunsiusduasbiffudaudomsmadsslovd

ﬁ’m%‘Uﬂ’li(ﬂLLaL%adﬂ’]ﬂ%%@uaﬂ’]&JIuﬁ?u UsEnInudlinssunisiay ﬁu%mseuaw%@’ﬂ%'l,l,au/ﬁaLﬂmmaﬁ'auaﬂ’laslmﬁa
¥nste ve Teu was iuiawaﬂwiwwaaﬂImanWﬂamauamﬂanavLﬂmmamammsm‘uu Wil AuynsIUNISLAY HuIvg
VAYIUFUNTIUEDRAMIUATDY N.A.0. Wag Aai. Beamssenuderendnming wazUfURmudemmvuadinaniegagnaes

Vel Juf 30 SunAn 2559 @wnsaazusieunsiudsunlanisionseamanninduenIsunIsuALEUITINS Uay

o

La‘U’]'LJﬂ’ﬁ‘UTt?Wl Ianail

uuludAguansdns
Uy (PL) flazdaruaniuacuism
o adal 1 (PL-W1)
deny (PL) (PL-W1)
158.8.58 [305.a.59 | % Wiwan | 158w, |3056.50| % i/an
58
1. welwdney g @
- UWBIW§W31§ a8 2,689,866 169,866 0.028% | -2,520,000 | 244,155 224,155 | 0.451% -
- UTEM gy 91iin 12,323,402 | 12,323,402 | 2.066% - 1,227,800 | 1,227,800 | 2.470% -
(@Rynnaiiieriuiu 30%)
374 | 15,013,268 (12,493,268 | 2.094% |-2,520,000 | 1,451,955 | 1,451,955 | 2.921% -
2. wegiivg A
- u’]ﬂ{]ﬁ“lﬂﬂ i 3,540,000 | 3,540,000 | 0.593% - 295,000 295,000 | 0.593% -
- wegmnasal 9191 (gawsa) | 20,000 | 20,000 | 0.003% - 1,666 1666 | 0003% | -
334 | 3,560,000 | 3,560,000 | 0.597% - 296,666 | 296,666 | 0.597% -
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uuluddguansdns

: ¥

U (PL) NazdeRuainyvaIuTEN
Hoaviu A3eh 1 (PL-W1)
(PL) ; (PL-W1) ;
R % LiNa/an R % LiNa/an
15 1.8. 58 | 30 5.A. 59 15 41.8. 58| 30 5.A. 59

3. YPENST a9
394 | 960,000 1,800,000 |0.302% | +840,000 | 80,000 80,000 0.161% -

4. UNUIANIIU Ei;’lel?’]
39U | 960,000 1,800,000 |0.302% | +840,000 | 80,000 80,000 | 0.161% -

5. WEWAN NUIAR - - - - - - - :

-
6. A9.3 lunvzLE - - - - - . - -

7. UNNAUNTT YIaugne - - - - - - B i

a

8. wwAg AuRlY - - - - - - . g

9. wgauwa Avangn¥lnana - - - - - . - -

1ou’1&1§‘unga HUNIFIU - - - - - - - -

11 UNGDINEES YuuIn

594 | 296,000 | 296,000 | 0.05% - 24,666 | 24,666 | 0.050% -
12 ungyannal degina - - - - - - - -
13.141893539n5  Ylass
- wevesdng vlass 250,661 | 254,661 | 0.043% - 22,221 | 22,221 | 0.045% -
- wegesd wlass (gavsa) - 200,000 | 0.034% | +200,000 - 16,666 | 0.003% | +16,666

39U | 254,661 454,661 | 0.077% | +200,000 | 22,221 38,887 | 0.048% | +16,666

14, weAindgan Aung
- WeefTIR AUAY (@:@Nﬁ‘ﬂ) 1,952,000 | 1,952,000 | 0.327% - 162,833 | 162,833 | 0.328% -
994 | 1,952,000 | 1,952,000 | 0.327% - 162,833 | 162,833 | 0.328% -

15. WIAgNETe ANLRAS - - - : - - . -

16. WNEHBUUA AUAS
FREY 20,000 20,000 0.003% - 1,666 1,666 0.003% -

17. WIAUGNA IUAT - - - . - . ; B}

o o

18. WIEAY FUIU - - - - - - - -

19. UNMSEINA AUTTAUN - - - - - , - B

@ unglngney 8191 Teulviunausanssa 147 (Ums) 840,000 ¥, WI9ITTUNT WIUsEA1 (UAS) 840,000 i1, Weansy adh

(um3) 840,000
3 L3 % o L3 v LY o v U
weas il 4lass Sulouanuiaguns aissuuns @13n1veeasnini ¥lass) viuandiyduiu 200,000 viu wasvSulou

HEWR

2

TudnAryuansdvisnasdenu 16,666 wiw
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N15USWI5AIUEEY (Risk Management)
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12. 5989N1558UINNY

MuazBunnenisszninety Unngeglumnemguszneusunsiy Fesnenstydiuiensiifetes Seusdd
enssEwinduiuuiimiiietes Tnssenisdnarndunsdiiussisunfvesuidn Tasenusananill wiewdu
Tumudnaniinnasiulidmiunenisilifisainan visvlddinissimuamen duneunseysf® suisdfisiuveyiinmnaiu
yosmmsenssgnineiu lnsdilfenumnzauuarnaidusssndundn uazanmsifasudndlatnsdamesons
serineiulilusun1sldu mumnewsUsenauIunsiy GﬁaLﬂumwuﬂﬂaﬁqsﬁ%adﬁﬁwﬁu UitmveudensaziBoafiududmiy
sensssnafiferdesdsdl

174

puavestiiyananlnauseloviism

i - % F1UU " v o
IaUIEN Uszangsia . ANWULAINUFUNUS
U
U Wiedlneuseiudia 9190 Wwvw) | Suuseiudia 10.00 | dheviu uway/vive Inssunisvauiu
Uen Wealnedsziudy 9da (ivmww) | Sudseiiuady 8.89 | Wheviu uag/vive Anssumssiuiu
USE Wiealne Seaeamn 399 @yww) | edensunsne 0.00 nssuN155INAY
niwdaulviain-ans
P8 AUUM
0l 31 5.Aa. 2557 t 31 5.A. 2558 0l 31 5.A. 2559
o ANWULAIY
s’]ﬂq’a o o 1 3 1 1 o [] 1 3 ]
s yae dadau yaf dadau | wad1 | dadau
(%) (%) (%)
Ut Wedlneuseiudin 91in (uvnew)| diieviu/d 10577 | 090 | 11094 | 094 |11999| 0.98
ASIUNITTIUAU
U3 Weslneuseiudy 9110 (uvnww)| dieviu/dl 40.99 0.35 46.46 039 | 53.19 | o044
ASIUNITIINAU
1 Y ' v
AdeusenueaIswin
PG : AU
S18%8 ANWULAMUTUNUS | o 31 5.A.2557 | au 31 5.A.2558 | & 31 5.A.2559
U3en Weslnguseiudy 91da vy | deviw/dnssunssiuniu 50.34 49.95 42.32
v X X a oy
RIMUANLUEUIENUAI9INY
YUY AUUM
S19%0 ANUULANUTUNUS | w31 5.A.2557 | o 3165.A.2558 | w31 5.0.2559
U3 Wiadlneuseiude d1in (mvw) | dieviuw/dnssunissiudu 4.59 4.79 4.32
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AUeUsenudne
PNY : AU
31 5.A.2557 31 5.n.2558 31 5.m.2559
579%8 ANWUZAMUTUNUS (12 \how) (12 \fau) (12 fau)
4.A.57-5..57 41.A.58-5.A.58 41.A.59-5.A.59
U3em Wiedlneuseiudy 91in @) | dhevu/dnssunisyiuiu 97.90 94.02 93.18
druanaleusenung
PG : AU
31 5.A.2557 31 5.n.2558 31 §5.A.2559
sqa%a ANWUZAIMUTUNUS (12 1Hou) (12 hau) (12 iaw)
4.A.57-5.A.57 41.A.58-5.A.58 4.n.59-5.A.59
U3Em diedlneyseiude 91in @) | dhevu/dnssunissiuiu 9.99 1043 9.32
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13. Joyan1en1siiungdnfsy

aguseuNsaaulyly
T dwsu 3 seusvezaUyd (@ 2557 - 2559) lauanianuiiufesun15RUTeIUSETM 119un1skuTes

U3ENAkanIgIuEnIsRY HansAliuukaenseuaduaneuien lnsgnaesnuiindstuasedidymunannisdyiniuses
vy

enuveaaully

Ao v o Ao 0w i U ﬂ’J’]SJLﬁUI‘LJiWEN’m
Vo d HeaeulnyTsusugn dinauiinsiadeulyd
A5ATIVADY
2559 § a aa v ¢ a g a al v T
Yeghalsay Fusudinying van.aiidsd gillve aeudayd TaifSauly
(11.A.59-5.7.59)
2558 & a Na v ¢ A G a  al v T Ay o
ehlsan Fuanudinving van.iaiidud 9illve aeulnyd laifideulunazidadne
(11.A.58-5.7.58)
2557
(3.A.57-5.A.57) wighlsad Juanudiiiving van.afivdnd giilve aoudnd LiifiGeuly
Usuusaln

VANEWR* ANNIASEIUNSTRT atuil 19 (U3 2557) Gesaustlevivesniinny dmualisuiilsuasayuainnis
Uszanamsaundnadinaansussiudesiufiluilsuamudaadodu uarenidnitveuweiiuismiou o vienldiuaey
ulsvenstiyddmiudestinemauiuugumatudoundedmivtauaniui 31 Suneu 2557 Auanadudoyaiouifiould
Ufudgenensmuiildesuiglilumnewnde 3 dwmiulauantui 31 Sunau 2558
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Voyan1un1sRund1Ary

UL AUV

2557 2558 2559
U.A.57-5.A.57 1.A.58-5.A.58 1.A.59-5.A.59
(USuugelng)
ANIFUIINA Yy 1iAL Y 2,811.59 2,894.27 2,868.19
selgandeyg sty 113.89 108.42 107.85
selgannsvsduninglnaaudeygy sty 768.60 656.40 1,150.30
mlsannsdmeduning 5.43 4.43 1.54
selddu 37.04 41.08 46 55
Felasu 3,736.55 3,704.60 4,174.43
FuvuLaATETeaLduY 3,165.86 3,118.05 3,745.27
équumamsﬁu 393.16 368.45 320.79
AERule 37.34 47.11 (111.81)
AuvuLarAiIne Iy 3,596.36 3,533.60 3,954.25
lsad 140.19 171.00 220.17
Mls sy gns 0.31 0.32 0.37
Uil () 447,369,569 596,492,753 596,492,753
Aunsndvyuieu 1,296.10 1,487.16 1,534.58
Aunsndlivyuidou 11,297.28 11,425.03 11.695.11
Funswdsau 12,593.38 12,912.19 13,229.69
wilAuvsuiou 3,937.68 4,108.33 4,520.44
siiaulivaudou 6,561.67 6,164.31 5,957.04
Mﬁaui’m 10,499.35 10,272.63 10,477.48
druveionu 2,094.03 2,639.55 2,752.21
yaAuuy (VM) 4.68 4.96 4.61
Sulluna (Vndeviu) 0.17 0.17 -
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AyUdnTIauN 1N 5ITUTE1ATY

2557 2558 2559
U.A.57-5.A.57 1.A.58-5.A.58 1.A.59-5.A.59
(Uuugsln)
Anuamnsalun1sinls (Profitability Ratio)
Savrlstudu © 23.74% 23.76% 22.03%
Sammenibedu @ 7.10% 6.60% 5.83%
Sasmenidesny @ 4.05% 3.74% 3.28%
dusnsdnsnonide @ 3.05% 2.86% 2.55%
dnsrilsgms 3.75% 4.62% 5.27%
SN IMANDULVIURDE YD NBVY 6.71% 7.22% 8.17%
2557 2558 2559
U.A.57-5.A.57 1.A.58-5.A.58 4.A.59-5.A.59
(Usuugelng)
Uszansamlunisaniiueu (Efficiency Ratio)
NI IHANDULNURABAUNTNG 1.14% 1.34% 1.68%
9N3INTNYUVDIFUNTNE 30.35% 29.05% 31.94%
2557 2558 2559
U.a.57-5.A.57 1.A.58-5.A.58 1.A.59-5.A.59
(Usuugelng)
ulgunen19n158u (Financial Ratio)
Snanduniiausoduvoadionu () 5.01 3.89 3.81
gngauiulidsodug (W) 1.21 1.20 1.22
gn31n159188uTuNe (%) 54.25 59.30 .

(1)

NUELNA N30l operating lease

@ A5l financial lease
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JayanaliuuardnsNIsAulnvasgsng

Voyan1un1sRund1Ary

2557 2558 2559
U.a.57-5.A.57 1.n.58-5.A.58 1.A.59-5.A.59
(Usuugeln)
dayanaiy
yamnuUndsieviu (Um) 4.68 4.96 4.61
Mlsgviddevu (Um) 0.31 0.32 0.37
Ruiunasenu (Um) 0.17 0.17
93IN151R5eYLAULA
dunsndsu 4.68% 2.53% 2.46%
WijAuTIw 5.56% 2.16% 1.99%
seldannsuensouInig 12.95% -0.86% 12.68%
AldPeaniuny (Linudununanss) 3.57% 3.83% 78.90%
mlsans -31.64% 21.98% 28.76%
2557 2558 2559
U.a.57-5.A.57 4.A.58-5.A.58 1.A.59-5.A.59
(Usuusalngl)
ansduIATIZAUTEUIENINITRY
Sasdumuannsatisyaende (i) 8.02 8.79 9.64
PRIIAIUANNANNTATITEATERATU (1911) (Cash Basis) 0.25 0.29 0.25

USEN finsaady 91fim (UKBu) sroanuls=910 2550 [




‘I AN9SUNYIIA:NTSIIAS1:KVOVLNEIANNS

14. MFIATIZRULATANDSUNBVRIRNEAANS (Management Discussion and Analysis : MD&A)
AN sAunuLaTgIUENINMIRUYBIUTENAMTAaTs rin (uvivw)
ANFWVBINTANTUNY

U 2558 U3¥ fnsdads Srin (wvvw) Smssnwanugdihlusaagididunusasud anmsvenedaseidedy
Funsndliisdiiunuiadugsiavdnuesuisn daaliusTniingldrmhandyydissaninaniinty luvasietu
MnanuMsaiTAsneusioreisimssuariiatosnimanniy - dwaliuidnidlsavdifiumnty  uenanilul 2558
vitndinmsiuyuaansdeuiiligusnsiuresidndamuudunsafiunniu

U 2559 FuidlosnnnziasugRafidshidiinuazuunliinsiesnunmanesdudolassiy vidn fnsdads 1dn
@www) Fedluluisnsaniiugsfasmsanuszdinsz i vlinisvenefvesdunindlig dliundn egslsfinm v3dnd
ﬁ?liﬁ?ﬁ%UﬂLﬁu%m‘ﬁl@L‘U%‘EJ‘ULﬁEJUﬁ"U"fJﬂ'E)‘L!Wj’]LLﬁ’jﬂf\]zﬁmigﬂﬁ’]iaﬂ%ﬁmgﬂﬁwqmL‘ﬁuﬁ’mﬁu‘u’]ﬂ Tneamguesnfistures
ﬁ’ﬂiﬁm%’uﬂLﬁmnﬂmiﬁﬁ’ﬂ,ﬁmﬂmsﬁi’muﬁaﬁuw%’waﬂlﬁ’tﬂiwmué@ﬁgwLﬁdwﬁmﬁumuﬁwmé’mﬁwﬁwﬁu Usgnauiunsiasuans
ﬂizimjﬁmqmmumiaﬂLfﬁumﬁﬁulﬁﬁmé’uﬁulé’ﬁajﬁmﬁamsawu

o [

U 2560 USEW msaam A0 (1) EJQF’NI‘IJUIEJUWEJﬂ”IiW’IL‘LJ‘L!ﬁiﬂﬁ]GnEJﬂ’J’]iJi%iJﬂi%’Nfﬂal‘ULW@{j@ﬂﬂu{jﬁUW’MULﬁﬂ
@

nnsldanunsadrseAela WiaummLuuiuumimiwvl,mwuLmﬁmaumwwuasamqmw WAEMINATIEIIMINUNLTD
fioaesdsnsusuiituagwaiies Aunasndutiafonisiiteatuayulinausznaunsvesuismdululihefud 2560 i

wan1saiiueut 2559 Wisuieut 2558

@

Tassasnaselabud) 2559 wWisuiisunul 2558 AUAIS19 AT
P38 AUV

T 2558 Y 2559 % LAY (an)
ANSUNF YA Uy 2,894 2,868 (1)
selgandeynnisiiu 108 108 -
sheldannsvedunsndligiaudygimiaduanu 656 1,150 75
flsanmsdmiegunsaiuarduningiideliiies 5 2 (60)
s10lédu a1 46 12
sauseld 3,705 4,174 13

dndruselavesussnusenoumeanandygindiidunu $1uau 2,868 auumanasandneuniin Wantes way
seldandyayinnisdu S1uau 108 dnumlndidesiululnount sinsdsudanesgldandyydidecssam
‘i‘i‘]ulﬂmmmiL‘U?ﬂlEJuLLtJawaa;&amﬁw%“wEﬂﬁlﬂhmmﬁzyzywﬁwLﬁmmLLasqﬂwﬁmmﬁmmwLszhmiﬁu

T8 2559 Ustniiseldannnsvedundndligmudygndsidunusiuan 1,150 duum Wintuaind 2558
U 494 AUV ImaL‘fJ‘thm:uﬂmﬁmﬁumaaﬂ%mmmsﬁmmaﬁw%’wﬂﬁtfdwﬁmmé’zym

o
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Financial Highlight

Data From Financial Statements

(Unit : thousand Baht)

Company Company

2014 2015
Rental income from operating lease contracts 2,811.59 2,894.27 2,868.19
Income from finance lease contracts 113.89 108.42 107.85
Total revenues 3,736.55 3,704.60 4,174.43
Total costs and expenses 3,559.02 3,486.49 4,066.06
Net income 140.19 171.00 220.17
Number of shares (million shares) 447.37 596.49 596.49
Total Assets 12,593.38 12,912.19 13,229.69
Total liabilities 10,499.35 10,272.63 10,477.48
Shareholders’ Equity 2,094.03 2,639.55 2,752.21
Financial Rations

Company Company

2014 2015
Retum on total income (%) 3.75 4.62 5.27
Retum on Shareholders’ Equity (%) 6.71 7.22 8.17
Debt to Equity (time) 5.01 3.89 3.81
Net profit per share (Baht) 0.31 0.32 0.37
Book value per share (Baht) 4.68 4.96 4.61
Dividend per share (Baht) 0.17 0.17
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Report of the Board of Directors

In 2016, Thailand’s economy moved in a positive direction and expanded by 3.2 %, higher than 2.9% in 2015. The average inflation
rate was 0.2%. The key drivers of Thailand’s economic growth such as export sectors began to show signs of improvement whereby
in 2016, the export value stood at 0.0%, compared to the shrinkage rate of 5.6% in 2015. Besides, Thailand’s economy in 2017
is expected to grow in a rate comparable to the year 2016, i.e., 3.2 - 4.0 %, as a result of cash injection from public infrastructure

investment and continuous expansion of tourism sectors.

With respect to the automotive industry, the sale volume decreased whereby Thailand’s automotive sales in 2016 reached only 768,788
units. The growth rate was reduced by 3.9 %. However, that sales volume was slightly higher than expected, i.e., 740,000 units.
In this regard, the commercial vehicle sales volume declined by 2.3 % and the passenger car sales volume also declined by 6.5 %.
However, for 2017, it is expected that there will be new positive factors to drive the automotive market in Thailand, taking into account
the number of new products introduced by many automakers. An overall sales level of 800,000 units, representing a 4.1% increase

against the previous year, is expected.

For Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited, the Company’s gross value of assets was Baht 13,230 million, being an increase of 2.5
% from the previous year. Moreover, the Company’s net profit was Baht 220 million, which increased by 29 %, by making higher profit
from the sale of leased assets under operating leases, compared to 2015, in the amount of Baht 82 million.

The business operation of Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited during 2016 ran smoothly as a result of the contribution of every
staff who devoted their efforts at work as well as the strong support of our customers, shareholders, investors and all business partners.
The Board of Directors of Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited would like to take this opportunity to convey its gratitude to all

concerned.

47T Pee

Mr. Photipong Lamsam Mr.Pipop Kunasol
Chairman President
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Policy and Business Overview

1.Policy and Business Overview
1.1 Vision, Objectives, Goals or Strategies in Operating the Company’s Business

Vision
To create asset management services by professional team with most advance service systems.

Mission

To be a leader in the business of operating lease and to develop the pattern of asset management which ensures higher
success of our customers, to expand our business into provincial parts by focusing on good quality and speedy services,
to develop our human resource as well as to provide returns to our shareholders continuously.

Objectives

To place emphasis on operating lease services and also provide finance lease services by focusing on extension of
service types and expand market to cover all over the country in order to meet the demand of every target group, as
well as to generate satisfaction and confidence to customers and business alliances.

1.2 Significant Changes and Developments

Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited has been registered and incorporated as a limited company since 1987 whereby
Kasikorn Bank Public Company Limited, Muang Thai Life Assurance Company Limited, Phatra Insurance Public Company
Limited, Phatra Thanakit Public Company Limited and Sombat Lamsam Company Limited were in the leading roles in
the incorporation whereby the Company’s objective are to operate the business of providing assets for leasing out by
focusing on operating lease and targeting at juristic person customers.

In 1988, the Company commenced the business of granting leases of properties, most of which were vehicles, to juristic
person customers, and also developed the provision of services in order to continuously create added value in the
services provided to the customers such as repair and maintenance services.

In 1996, the Company increased its registered capital to Baht 300,000,000 and became a listed company in the Securities
Exchange of Thailand in order to support the expansion of business and to enhance the competitive potential of
the Company. In 2005, the Company changed the par value of its shares from Baht 10 each to Baht 1 each and also
increased the registered capital from Baht 300,000,000 to Baht 450,000,000, and then required payment for shares. As
a result, the Company’s paid-up capital was Baht 447,369,569, represented by 447,369,569 shares. This increase in the
registered capital was a restructuring of capital and an important part to support future growth of the Company. Also,
in 2005, TRIS Rating increased the Company rating and the issue rating on its unsecured debentures to A- from BBB+.

Besides, in 2005, Forbes, a leading business magazine, selected from 25,864 public listed companies in the Asia-Pacific
Region from 15 countries by selecting 11,845 companies which were medium size companies earning revenue not
exceeding 1,000 million dollars and not less than 5 million dollars, to receive the Asia’s Best Under a Billion Award.
In this regard, Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited was selected as one in 11 companies from Thailand and was
the only one leasing company received this award. This award can prove that the operations and good corporate
governance of the Company were internationally accepted.

In 2007, the shareholding structure of the Company was changed whereby Kasikorn Bank Public Company Limited
offered its shares for sale to Muang Thai Life Assurance Company Limited, an existing major shareholder of the Company.
This was because of the policy of Kasikorn Bank to reduce the investment in the companies, the operations of which
could not be fully controlled. However, such change in the shareholding structure did not have any negative impact
on the Company’s operations but did have positive impact in building up alliances for business extension in the future.
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‘ I Policy and Business Overview

In 2008, the Company started to provide 2 new products comprising Phatra Aircraft Leasing, which provides leasing for
private aircraft (4-12 seats) such as Business Jet, Turbo Prop and Piston, and Phatra Yacht Leasing, which provides leasing
for Motor Yacht. The 2 products serve the purpose of tourism, business and private vehicle. The Company never stops
improving its services to keep them up to date and to satisfy the customer demand.

In 2009, the Company developed and improved the service provision consecutively in order to satisfy the customer
demand at higher level by expanding the network of more than 800 service centers according to the manufacturer’s
standards to provide services to the customers nationwide. The customers may bring the cars for check-up or for
emergency maintenance with confidence that the spare parts received meet the same standards to those of the
manufacturer in order to make the Company’s customers feel confident that the cars will always receive good
maintenance by just calling 0-2290-7575 or 0-2693-2288. In 2011, the Company was awarded the ISO 9001:2008 quality
management system, certified by the SGS which was appointed by the United Kingdom Accreditation Service (UKAS).
This success was directly due to the efficient co-operation of related service teams in developing and maintaining the
quality management system, knowing and understanding the customers’ needs in order to achieve the most customers’
benefit and satisfaction which the Company always commits to develop at all times.

In 2015, the company increased registered capital stocks from Baht 447,369,569.- to Baht 646,200,489.- by offering
right to company’s old shareholder according to their share portion (Rights Offering). This increased capital aimed to
support business expansion and increase efficiency of our competition. We provided the first warrants of common stock
purchase for 49,707,319 units to old shareholder who reserved for proportional increased capital common stock and
excess reserves without calculation.

1.3 Shareholding Structure of the Company’s Group

The Company does not have any subsidiary company or affiliated company.
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Nature of Business
2. Nature of Business

Phatra Leasing operates the business of leasing assets to juristic entities under the scheme of “Operating Lease”
with main focus on vehicle leasing which includes executive cars, office cars, sub-leased service and cars for other
commercial purposes. Operating lease also includes such assets as machines, computers and other appliances with the
lease term of more than 3 years.

Phatra Leasing provides services and team of experienced staff ready to give advice and provides vehicle management
plan customize for every types of organizations. We also formulate ongoing business development plants to set up new
standards of leasing business in Thailand.

Income Structure

The company’s revenues are mainly from rental collected under the Operating Lease Agreement of PFL services. Also
included in the income structure is other income from PFL additional service. The company’s clients are varied among

different types of industries, allowing a good diversification of risks.

The Company’s income categorized by types of lease, below are company’s incomes from year 2014-2016

Jan 14-Dec 14 Jan 15-Dec 15 Jan 16-Dec 16
. Million Million
Million Baht % % %
Baht Baht

Rental income from operating lease contracts 2,811.59 75.25 | 2,894.27 | 78.13 | 2,868.19 | 68.71

Income from finance lease contracts 113.89 3.05 108.42 2.93 107.85 2.58

Revenue from sale of assets under operating lease contracts 768.60 20.57 656.40 | 17.72 1 1,150.30 | 27.56

Other income 42.47 1.13 45.51 1.22 48.09 1.15

Total Income 3,736.55 | 100.00 | 3,704.60 |100.00 | 4,174.43 |100.00

2.1 Nature of Products and Services
Nature of Products and Our Main Services
1. PHATRA FLEET LEASING

Provide leasing for sedan vehicle, aircrafts, watercraft and commercial vehicles. Together with consultation and sourcing
for service alternatives which mostly fit the leasee’s requirements. No matter one or hundreds of vehicles under Economy
of Scale policy that utilizes the best for the organization. In forms of Operating Lease and Finance Lease.

« PHATRA AUTO LEASING
Provide leasing for excentive sedan vehicle, vehicle used in organization, or even commercial vehicle with
every model and brand to keep the business running smoothly.

« PHATRA AIRCRAFT LEASING
Provide leasing for private aircraft (4-12 seats) as Business Jet, Turbo Prop and Piston under Finance Lease and
Operating Lease. Which serves the purpose of tourism, business and private vehicle.

« PHATRA WATERCRAFT LEASING
Motor Yacht and watercraft for personal amusement of commercial use of several watercraft, tourism business
transportation and others in forms of Finance Lease and Operating Lease.

2. PHATRA COMMERCIAL LEASING
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‘ I Nature of Business

Leasing services for all kinds of assets such as machinery, manufacturing equipment with high investment and necessary
for business in term of finance lease which comforts the investment and be quick in term of approved.

Variety of PFL

The variety of Fleet Management helps to manage all vehicles and is easier than ever with all maintenance and repair. It
allows clients to use vehicle effectively and reduces unnecessary costs.

Vehicle Selection «  With special experts to give advice for suitable vehicle that best fit the purpose of each
organization.
Vehicle Procurement «  Fast vehicle arrangement for every model and color with reasonable leasing costs.

Vehicle Delivery + Delivery to all locations without limitation.

Vehicle Registration «  Full registration service and delivery.

Vehicle Insurance «  With team to look after the car’s insurer and allow your human resources to work worthly.
Maintenance «  Maintenance and repair by authorized service center for the best safety.

Vehicle Substitution +  Prompt replacement vehicle service for any incident that prevent you from using main vehicle.
PL Service Center « Service Center that never leave our clients alone with all the problems on the road. Our

a 24-hours service service are open 24 hours a day at 0-2290-7575

Service Centers « Service centers with over 650 service centers nationwide that are ready to provide standard
Nationwide service and authentic parts from authorized manufacturers.

The Benefit of Operating Lease

+ Choices of vehicles that cater to all demands, with full service that meets the organization’s needs

+ Business cost control through fixed monthly fee collection

+ Fixed interest rate that allows for effective expense management

+ Expenditure control for fleet management and for maintenance

« Worry—free regarding risks and uncertainties from the use and the reselling of purchased vehicles and assets
» The Benefit of lease contract is that your asset will be off balance sheet

« Low initial outlay which significantly benefits cash flow

2.2 Marketing and Competition
Competitive Strategy

The Company has prepared for the competition in all areas; technological investments, forms of services, network
expansion, and training to enhance the employee’s productivity. The focus is on providing the comprehensive services
from the selection of cars to suit the needs of customers to various details such as registration, insurance, and 24-hour
services as well as network of service centers nationwide. This creates the difference obviously and builds the trust and
maximum benefits to customers. Moreover, it can ensure the enhancement of the competitiveness of the Company to
remain at the level of business leader

Industrial Situation and Competition

Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited has been operating the business in leasing the assets in various categories. We
emphasize the Operating Lease mainly in automotive assets. The company previously spreaded leasing more into other sorts
of assets to respond thoroughly toward market’s needs and it currently develops leasing business effectively. With strong
marketing status from the fact that the company has expanded its customer base and retained original major customers.
We even increase our expansion of major customers in various industries provided by the nature of business to concentrate
mainly on corporate group. We also provide significant focus for service to customers covering the dimension of full range
of service provision, comprehensive network of service centers and all time available services. This allows us to maintain the
leadership in operating lease business all along. Besides, the company has realized of the developing competitive capability to
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achieve the context of automotive market condition which have changed through time.Therefore, the Company is expanding
services to SME market and retail customers including mass market customers for the purpose of generating new profits.

For the overview of the automotive market in 2016, the total sales volume was 0.76 million units, which decreased by 3.9%
compared to 0.79 million units in 2015, due to the continuous slowdown of purchasing power in Thailand, the carefulness
of the business sector and household sector in making investment and spending and the global economic slowdown, which
resulted in a decrease in domestic investment.

For the car production in 2017, the Federation of Thai Industries set a target of 2 million units, divided into 800,000 units
for domestic sales and 1.2 million units for export, by increasing the domestic sales because the agricultural products are
forecasted to recover. However, interesting issues which should be monitored include household debts which may result in
stricter credit regulations of financial institutions.

In market condition of operating lease business, there are plenty company operating this type of business. But there are
few of large companies that are the market leader and have major market shares. Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited is
considered as the leader in this group and in spite of severe competition in leasing business still continues, the demand from
business sector nowadays still needs the management of vehicles from external expert for both service and maintenance.
This enables operating lease business in Thailand to grow in middle and long term. For Phatra Leasing Public Company
Limited, with policy to give full range services to customer for 24 hours and business strategy to continually expand new
customer base and asset leasing category including the adaptability to respond to the competition in car market which is
changing all the time, the company is continuously still the leader in operating lease business in Thailand for over 28 years.

2.3 Provision of Products or Services
Sources of Funds

It is the Company’s policy to seek the future sources of funds by focusing on long-term sources in order to be in line with the
nature of leasing business. In the previous years, the Company obtained approval from the shareholders’ meetings to issue
and offer debentures for sale with the objectives to reduce risks which may arise from the interest rates fluctuations in the
market and to correspond with the terms of leases.

Apart from seeking long-term sources of funds by means of issuance of debentures, the Company has also obtained long-term
loans by borrowing from several financial institutions in the country.

Lease (Asset Lease)
Asset Lease Policy

The Company’s policies in leasing out assets are as follows :

1. Lessor: The Company will mainly grant leases to juristic person customers by taking into account their qualifications,
i.e., they should be juristic persons with sound operating results or high possibility projects, good financial records and
payment capability.

2. Leasing Objective: The asset to be leased must be used in the lessee’s business whereby the lessee must notify the
Company of its objective.

3. Leased Asset: The asset to be leased must have the following qualifications:

- being new or used asset whereby the Company will consider its condition, useful life and proper price;
- being generally used and able to be sold in secondhand market;
- not being produced for certain users particularly; and
- ownership of which can be identified.
4. Lease Term: The lease term shall vary between 3 - 5 years, depending on its type and usability.
5. Pre-conditions: Pre-conditions may vary, depending on each company’s risks, which may be any of the following:
- There shall be a guarantor;
- For special asset, cash shall be provided as security; and/or
- There shall be no pre-condition.
6. Post-conditions: In proposing leasing conditions, it is necessary to take into account several risks of the leased
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asset such as popularity among users, type, model, brand, price in secondhand market, technology development,
obsolescence, usability and etc. The Company will consider the asset’s scrap value which should be saleable
without too much risk and use such value in calculating rental rate. In this regard, the post-conditions proposed to
the lessee shall depend on expectation of the degree of risk to be taken by the Company. The post-conditions may
be any of the following:

- Option to Buy: The lessee shall be offered by the Company to sell the asset at the scrap value specified in the

lease contract whereby the lessee may or may not exercise the option to buy the asset.
- No Option: After the expiration of the lease contract, the lessee shall return the leased asset to the Company.

Leasing Risk Management

The Company has selected customers with due care by using sponsoring system in considering approval for scrutinization
as each sponsor will give wider point of view and opinion encouraging more carefulness and also reflecting a small
number of bad debtors of the Company.

In addition, the Company has a strict debt collection system and has provided sufficient allowance for doubtful
accounts, and also placed importance on monitoring and study of fluctuations in global and regional economies,
environment, trends and factors which may direct impact the Company’s business operation. Therefore, the Company
has established a business development department for study to support timely decision-making on the effects which
may occur to the Company.

Supervision, Approval for Leases and Debtor Follow-up Process
The Company’s leasing business procedures are divided into 6 steps as follows:

1. Analysis of Customer’s Credit: The Company will ask for the information on customer demand such as assets in
demand, objectives, lease terms, lease conditions, reasons for choosing leasing as well as past performance, types
of credit lines and financial institutions used by the customers and supporting documents. Based on the aforesaid
information, the marketing officers will consider proposing lease conditions in accordance with the Company’s leasing
policies.

2. Application for Approval: The Company has used the sponsoring system in granting approval for leases. For the
aforesaid system, the sponsors comprise department managers and higher level managers. The Company has prescribed
the criterion for granting approval for leases step by step, taking into account asset value, asset type and lessee’s
qualifications.

According the procedural steps for granting approval for leases, when a customer agrees on the conditions initially
proposed by the Company, the marketing and sales officer will propose a report to a sponsor for verification. After that,
the aforesaid sponsor will submit the verified report to two more sponsors for approval for the lease. In this regard,
the asset value, asset type and procedural steps for granting approval shall be in accordance with leasing conditions
approved by the Company’s Board of Directors.

3. Execution of Contract: The report submitted for approval which has been approved shall be made as a lease
contract and proposed to the lessee for signature.

4. Purchase of Asset: After the lessee signs the lease contract, the Company will purchase the asset having the
qualifications as agreed upon by them by purchasing the asset through the seller sought by the Company itself or
through the seller sought by the lessee.

5. Delivery of Asset: The Company shall deliver the asset to the lessee, effect registration and provide insurance for the

asset, which shall be part of the Company’s services, and then fulfill the pre-conditions, upon which the contract shall
be deemed effective.
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6. Expiration of Lease Contract: Upon expiration of the lease contract, if the lessee has complied with the conditions
specified in the contract throughout the lease term and there is no outstanding debt to be paid to the Company, the
post-conditions shall be proposed to the customer as specified in the contract.

Policies on Follow-up and Supervision of Accounts Receivable

To ensure more effective supervision of accounts receivable, in 2016 the Company has appointed the “accounts
receivable supervision sub-committee” to enable effective follow-up and supervision of accounts receivable. The
procedures for following up accounts receivable can be summarized as follows:

1. The customer who fails to make payment for not exceeding 7 days, shall be followed up by the finance
department’s officer.

2. The customer who fails to make payment for 8 days or more but not exceeding 60 days, shall be followed up
by the collection department’s officer. Together therewith, a letter of demand for debt payment shall be sent to the
debtor.

3. The customer who fails to make payment for 61 days or more, shall be followed up by the debt acceleration
department’s officer. Together therewith, legal steps and follow-up steps shall be taken simultaneously to seize and
get back the asset. In the case that the seized asset is sold but the proceeds are not sufficient for the actual damage,
a legal office shall file a lawsuit to claim full damages as specified in the contract.

In this regard, the scope of duties and responsibilities of the accounts receivable supervision sub-committee shall be
as follows:

1. To establish policies on follow-up and supervision of accounts receivable to ensure that they will be suitable for
the business and economic condition;

2. To supervise and follow up accounts receivable collection activities in accordance with the policies established,;

3. To consider solutions and/or debt restructuring;

4. To consider selecting and appointing agents for debt collection and repossession activities and/or any other
activities in relation to debt collection; and

5. To supervise and follow up results of legal actions taken against bad debtors.

3. Risk Factors

The Company’s business involves a number of risk factors which may affect the operation of the Company’s business and
may pose a consequential risk to the Company’s unitholders in relation to failure to receive consideration or right which
should be received, details of which are as follows:

1. Risk with liquidity

It is an accepted fact that the company has pending debts, and these debts all have a finite date that are due. The majority
of the revenue that the company generates for the allocation of these debts are derived from lease service fees and lease
contracts. Risk could occur in situations where the pending debt at a certain time is higher than the revenue generated
by the company. Therefore, the company has given significant importance in the relationship of rent revenues and the
time frame of debts. The company has reverted to managing short term leasing through contracts and bill of exchange. In
matters of long term leasing, the company has reverted to debenture and long term installments with prominent financial
institutions. All these protocols were installed to be aligned with future revenue that is generated from leasing. Furthermore,
the company has established good relationships with prominent financial institutions for short term loans in response to
emergency situations.

2. Capacity to disburse Risk

Since the rental payment is the main income of the company, therefore a capacity to disburse of a lease is a significant
factor. That means if the lease is incapable of disbursement, it can affect the company’s profit and income.Previously, the
Company has experienced low level of problems with regard to the rental payment capability of lessees as the Company
has selected customers with due care, and moreover, the Company has a strict debt collection system and also has provided
sufficient allowance for doubtful accounts. However, in 2016, a major customer of the Company was unable to pay rental.
The Company is solving the problem and has already provided sufficient allowance for doubtful accounts.
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3. Interest rate Risk

The lease payment rate fixed throughout the term of the agreement has contributed to the steady income of the Company.
Part of Company’s loans is subject to the market rate of interest, having therefore a possible direct impact on the cost
and profitability of the Company. In response to these risks of interest rate, the Company has adopted a risk management
scheme of creating a balance between the Duration Gap and the Interest Rate Gap; while the Interest Rate Gap is
maintained in the level that the Company can still achieve constant profitability.

4. Marketing and Competition Risks

An increasing number of leasing business operators has entered the market in the past years. These newcomers include
companies which have financial institutions as shareholders and car manufactures that provide automobile service who are
support with substantial amount of foreign capital. This raised the level of competition in the industry substantially which
could lead to less returns for each company. However, the Company has implemented a clear policy of selecting only
premium clients capable of repayment. Such clients are, for example, business in need of maintenance serviced for leased
assets. In addition, the company has adopted state-of-the-art computer technology in its management system with the aim
of providing and monitoring service with enhanced efficiencies.

5. Salvage Value Management Risks

The Company mainly engages in the business operation of “leasing” properties in the form of operating leasing to the
operators who are juristic persons. The leasing period is between 3 - 5 years. After the lease contracts end, most of the
assets are sold off. Thus, the price of the sold properties will affect the operational performance of the Company directly.
If they are sold at a price lower than the book value, it will cause the loss from selling properties. From the
long experience in the management, the Company can effectively manage the scrap value.

However, resulting from the first-car policy, the used car prices dropped so much causing the significant impact
on the profits gained from the sale of second-hand cars of the Company during the last 2016. The Company has
solved the problem by trying to increase the proportion of cars sale directly to the users more in order to mitigate
such effects.

4. Assets used in business operation

4.1 Investment policy in subsidiary and subsidiary
(Unit : million Baht)

Net Net Net
31 Dec 14 31 Dec 15 31 Dec 16
Receivables under finance lease contracts 1,579.46 1,703.67 1,996.19
Land Property and equipment
Assets held for lease-net 10,111.22" 10,163.27% 10,099.80"
Assets held for future lease - 7.07 17.68
Office condominum 85.98 85.98 85.98
Office equipment 20.54 16.83 15.17
Transportation 24.05 17.32 6.94
Total land property and equipment 10,241.79 10,290.47 10,225.57
Total 11,821.25 11,994.14 12,221.76

)

Remark : " Asset held for operating lease contracts net after less impairment losses from 0.56 Millionbaht
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Company Information

4.2 Investment policy in subsidiary and subsidiary

-None

5.The legal dispute

-None
6. Company Summary
6.1 General Information

6.1.1 Company Profile
Listed Company
Shorten name

Warrant trading symbol to purchase the issue
shares of PL

Register Date

Register No.

Capital investment
Capital Ordinary

The Par Value

Business type

Location

Home Page
Telephone

Facsimiles

6.1.2 Company Investment

Investment in subsidiary as at December 31, 2016

: Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited.
. PL
: PL-W1

. August 15", 1996

: 0107537000211 (268)

: 646,200,489 Baht

: 596,492,753 Baht

: 1 Baht per share

. Phatra Leasing operates the business of Operating Lease. It others

the lease of assets including vehicles, planes, ships, machines,
computers and general appliances.

- 252/6, 29" Floor, Muang Thai Phatra Complex 1, Rachadaphisek

Road, Huaykwang, Bangkok 10320.

: www.phatra-leasing.com
: (66) 2290-7575

(66) 2693-2288

. (66) 2693-2298-99
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6.1.3 Contact Information for Reference

Register

- Ordinary share

- Debentures

- Debentures of Phatra Leasing
(due for redemption in 2017)

- Debentures of Phatra Leasing
(due for redemption in 2017)

- Debentures of Phatra Leasing
(due for redemption in 2017)

- Debentures of Phatra Leasing
(due for redemption in 2018)

- Debentures of Phatra Leasing
(due for redemption in 2017)

- Debentures of Phatra Leasing
(due for redemption in 2018)

- Debentures of Phatra Leasing
(due for redemption in 2018)

- Debentures of Phatra Leasing
(due for redemption in 2018)

- Debentures of Phatra Leasing
(due for redemption in 2019)

- Debentures of Phatra Leasing
(due for redemption in 2019)

- Debentures of Phatra Leasing
(due for redemption in 2020)
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Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd.

93 The Stock Exchange of Thailand Building,
Rachadaphisek Road, Dindaeng,

Bangkok 10400, Thailand

Tel: (66) 2009-9000

Fax: (66) 2009-9991

SET Contact Center : (66) 2009-9999
Website : http://www.set.or.th/tsd

E-mail : SETContactCenter@set.or.th

Plc.No.1/2012

Plc.No.1/2013

Plc.No.1/2014

Plc.No.2/2014

Plc.No.3/2014

Plc.No.4/2014

Plc.No.1/2015

Plc.No.2/2015

Plc.No.3/2015

Plc.No.4/2015

Plc.No.1/2016

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

Bank of Ayudhya Public Company Limited

Bank of Ayudhya Public Company Limited

Bank of Ayudhya Public Company Limited

Bank of Ayudhya Public Company Limited

Bank of Ayudhya Public Company Limited

Bank of Ayudhya Public Company Limited

Bank of Ayudhya Public Company Limited

Bank of Ayudhya Public Company Limited

Bank of Ayudhya Public Company Limited

Bank of Ayudhya Public Company Limited



- Debentures of Phatra Leasing
(Tranche 1 due 2021)

- Debentures of Phatra Leasing
(Tranche 1 due 2023)

- Debentures of Phatra Leasing
(due for redemption in 2019)

- Debentures of Phatra Leasing
(due for redemption in 2020)

Auditor

Legal Advisor

Financial Consultants

Plc.No.2/2016

Plc.No.2/2016

Plc.No.3/2016

Plc.No.4/2016

Company Information

Bank of Ayudhya Public Company Limited
Bank of Ayudhya Public Company Limited
Bank of Ayudhya Public Company Limited

Bank of Ayudhya Public Company Limited

Mr. Viroj Jindamaneepitak

CPA (Thailand) Registration No.3565
KPMG Poomchai Audit Co., Ltd.
Empire Tower, 50"-51* Floors, 1 South,
Sathorn Road, Bangkok 10120

Tel : (66) 2677-2000

Fax : (66) 2677-2222

LS Horizon Litmited

14" Floor, GPF Wireless Building Tower A

93/1, Wireless Road, Lumpini District, Phatumwan Zone,
Bangkok 10330

Tel : (66) 2627-3443

Fax : (66) 2627-3250

Noppong & Prasart Law office Ltd.

Suite 301, 3" Floor, Dusit Thani Office

946 Rama IV Road, Silom District, Bangrak Zone,
Bangkok 10500

Tel : (66) 2233-1745-6

Fax : (66) 2238-2848

-None-
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‘ I Shareholder Structure and Dividend Policy

7. Share Capital and Shareholder

7.1 Number of Authorised share Capital and Issued and paid-up share Capital

Authorised share Capital 646,200,489 Baht
(Six hundred forty six million two hundred thousand four hundred and
eighty nine Baht)

Issued and paid-up share Capital 596,492,753 Baht
(Five hundred ninety six million four hundred ninety two thousand seven
hundred and fifty three Baht)

Registered Capital 596,492,753 Common Shares
(Five hundred ninety six million four hundred ninety two thousand seven
hundred and fifty three Shares)

Par Value 1 Baht

7.2 Shareholders

The first 10 major Shareholder of Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited on 30 " December 2016

Individual/Juristic Person Number of share held Percentage

1. Muang Thai Life Assurance Company Limited 59,649,200 10.000%
2. Muang Thai Insurance Public Company Limited 53,000,400 8.885%
3. Sombat Lamsam Company Limited 45,600,000 7.645%
4. Muang Thai Holding Company Limited 41,550,800 6.966%
5. Chulindrawongs Company Limited 24,000,000 4.024%
6. Mr. Banyong Lamsam and Mrs.Narudee Weeramaeteekul 15,410,000 2.583%
7. Mrs. Nunta Rungnoppakunsi 13,934,000 2.336%
8. Mr.lthichai Leardthumanon 12,708,900 2.131%
9. Yupong Company Limited 12,323,402 2.066%
10. Mrs. Yupanari Sakpornsap 10,933,333 1.833%

Total 289,110,035 48.468%
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7.3 Other securities issuance

First Common Stock Warrants (PL-W1)

Shareholder Structure and Dividend Policy

On 15" June 2015, the company has issued the company common stock warrants (PL-W1) to old shareholders for total
unit of 49,707,319. The company were approved by shareholders to allocate capital increase ordinary shares not more
than 49,707,730 units Warrants to purchase the ordinary shares of Phatra Leasing Plc. No. 1 (PL-W1), features, conditions

and contents of which are as follows:

Unit

Value

Number of Shares to be
Reserved for the Exercise
of Right under Warrants

Term of Warrants

Right under the Warrants

Exercise Ratio (New)

Exercise Price (New)

Exercise Period

the conditions of the rights
adjustment) Exercise Period

49,707,319 units
: Baht 0 per unit (zero Baht)
: 49,707,730 shares

: 3 years (from the issue date, i.e., 15 June 2015 whereby the maturity date
and the last exercise date is 15 June 2021)

: To purchase the ordinary shares of Phatra Leasing Plc.

: 1 unit of warrants per 1.009 ordinary share (which can be
adjusted pursuant to the conditions of the rights adjustment)

: Baht 3.966 per share (which can be adjusted pursuant to
the conditions of the rights adjustment)

: The right under the warrants shall be exercised on the last business day
of every quarter. (The first exercise date shall be 30 June 2017 and the last
exercise date shall be 15 June 2021.)

: The right under the warrants shall be exercised on the last business day
of every quarter. (The first exercise date shall be 30 June 2017 and the
last exercise date shall be 15 June 2021.)

List of top 10 holders of the warrants to purchase the ordinary shares of Phatra Leasing Plc. No. 1 (PL-W1) as of 30
December 2016:

Name Number of Warrants % Warrants in
1. Muang Thai Life Assurance Company Limited 4,970,766 10.000%
2. Sombat Lamsam Company Limited 3,800,000 7.645%
3. Muang Thai Holding Company Limited 3,462,566 6.966%
4. Miss Areerat Chocklamboon 2,820,000 5.673%
5. Springfield Beach Club Company Limited 2,300,000 4.627%
6. Chulindrawongs Company Limited 2,000,000 4.024%
7. Mr. Vichakorn Thangjidnop 1,555,000 3.128%
8. Muang Thai Insurance Public Company Limited 1,416,700 2.850%
9. Yupong Company Limited 1,227,800 2.470%
10. Mrs. Nunta Rungnoppakunsi 1,161,166 2.336%

Total 24,713,998 49.719%
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Debenture (as at 31 December 2016)

1. Debenture of Phatra Leasing PCL No.1/2012

Total Amount (Baht)

Offering Amount (Units)

Par Value (Baht per unit)
Tenor 5 Years

Interest Rate 4.65% per annum
Registrar

Debenture of Phatra Leasing PCL No.1/2013

Total Amount (Baht)

Offering Amount (Units)

Par Value (Baht per unit)
Tenor 4 Years

Interest Rate 3.84% per annum
Registrar

Debenture of Phatra Leasing PCL No.1/2014

Total Amount (Baht)

Offering Amount (Units)

Par Value (Baht per unit)
Tenor 3 Years 6 Months
Interest Rate 3.94% per annum
Registrar

Debenture of Phatra Leasing PCL
Total Amount (Baht)

Offering Amount (Units)

Par Value (Baht per unit)

Tenor 4 Years

Interest Rate 4.00% per annum
Registrar

Debenture of Phatra Leasing PCL No.3/2014

Total Amount (Baht)

Offering Amount (Units)

Par Value (Baht per unit)
Tenor 3 Years 4 Days

Interest Rate 3.57% per annum
Registrar

Debenture of Phatra Leasing PCL No.4/2014

Total Amount (Baht)

Offering Amount (Units)

Par Value (Baht per unit)
Tenor 3 Years 4 Months
Interest Rate 3.75% per annum
Registrar

500,000,000

500,000

1,000

Issued on 1 Feb 2012 Mature on 1 Feb 2017
Every 1 February and 1 August of each year
TMB Bank PCL

500,000,000

500,000

1,000

Issued on 3 Jun 2013 Mature on 3 Jun 2017
Every 3 June and 3 December of each year
Bank of Ayudhya PCL

500,000,000

500,000

1,000

Issued on 1 Mar 2014 Mature on 28 Sep 2017
Every 28 March and 28 September of each year
Bank of Ayudhya PCL

No.2/2014

500,000,000

500,000

1,000

Issued on 15 May 2014 Mature on 15 May 2018
Every 15 May and 15 November of each year
Bank of Ayudhya PCL

400,000,000

400,000

1,000

Issued on 4 Aug 2014 Mature on 8 Aug 2017
Every 8 February and 8 August of each year
Bank of Ayudhya PCL

300,000,000

300,000

1,000

Issued on 1 Jul 2014 Mature on 1 Feb 2018
Every 1 February and 1 August of each year
Bank of Ayudhya PCL
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10.

11.

12.

Shareholder Structure and Dividend Policy

Debenture of Phatra Leasing PCL No.1/2018
Total Amount (Baht)

Offering Amount (Units)

Par Value (Baht per unit)

Tenor 3 Years

Interest Rate 3.12% per annum

Registrar

Debenture of Phatra Leasing PCL No.2/2015
Total Amount (Baht)

Offering Amount (Units)

Par Value (Baht per unit)

Tenor 3 Years 5 Months 27 days

Interest Rate 3.00% per annum

Registrar

Debenture of Phatra Leasing PCL No.3/2015
Total Amount (Baht)

Offering Amount (Units)

Par Value (Baht per unit)

Tenor 3 Years 6 Months

Interest Rate 2.62% per annum

Registrar

Debenture of Phatra Leasing PCL No.4/2015
Total Amount (Baht)

Offering Amount(Units)

Par Value (Baht per unit)

Tenor 4 Years

Interest Rate 2.86% per annum

Registrar

Debenture of Phatra Leasing PCL No.1/2016
Total Amount (Baht)

Offering Amount(Units)

Par Value (Baht per unit)

Tenor 4 Years

Interest Rate 2.49% per annum

Registrar

Debenture of Phatra Leasing PCL No.2/2016
Total Amount (Baht)

Offering Amount(Units)

Par Value (Baht per unit)

Tenor 5 Years

Interest Rate 2.63% per annum

Registrar
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500,000,000

500,000

1,000

Issued on 16 Feb 2015 Mature on 16 Feb 2018
Every 16 February and 16 August of each year
Bank of Ayudhya PCL

450,000,000

500,000

1,000

Issued on 22 Apr 2015 Mature on 19 Oct 2018
Every 19 April and 19 October of each year
Bank of Ayudhya PCL

500,000,000

500,000

1,000

Issued on 15 Jul 2015 Mature on 23 Jan 2019
Every 23 January and 23 July of each year
Bank of Ayudhya PCL

500,000,000

500,000

1,000

Issued on 24 Sep 2015 Mature on 24 Sep 2019
Every 24 March and 24 September of each year
Bank of Ayudhya PCL

500,000,000

500,000

1,000

Issued on 25 Jan 2016 Mature on 25 Jan 2020
Every 25 January and 25 July of each year
Bank of Ayudhya PCL

500,000,000

500,000

1,000

Issued on 24 Feb 2016 Mature on 24 Feb 2021
Every 24 February and 24 August of each year
Bank of Ayudhya PCL
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13.  Debenture of Phatra Leasing PCL No.2/2016

Total Amount (Baht) 200,000,000
Offering Amount(Units) 200,000
Par Value (Baht per unit) 1,000

Tenor 7 Years
Interest Rate 3.05% per annum
Registrar

Issued on 24 Feb 2016 Mature on 24 Feb 2023
Every 24 February and 24 August of each year
Bank of Ayudhya PCL

14.  Debenture of Phatra Leasing PCL No.3/2016

Total Amount (Baht) 500,000,000
Offering Amount(Units) 500,000
Par Value (Baht per unit) 1,000

Tenor 3 Years
Interest Rate 2.24% per annum
Registrar

Issued on 17 Aug 2016 Mature on 17 Aug 2019
Every 17 February and 17 August of each year
Bank of Ayudhya PCL

15.  Debenture of Phatra Leasing PCL No.4/2016

Total Amount (Baht) 500,000,000
Offering Amount(Units) 500,000
Par Value (Baht per unit) 1,000

Tenor 4 Years
Interest Rate 2.60% per annum
Registrar

Issued on 28 Sep 2016 Mature on 28 Sep 2020
Every 28 March and 28 September of each year
Bank of Ayudhya PCL

Long-term loans (as at 31 December 2016)
The company has obtained the long-term loans with six financial institutions totaling Baht 3,650 million and
outstanding obligations for long-term loans of Baht 2,294 million.

Bill of exchange and Promissory Notes (as at 31 December 2016)
The company has obtained outstanding obligations for short-term borrowings consist of bill of exchange (the term is
between 1 to 9 months) of Baht 400 million.

Promissory Note (as at 31 Dec 2016)
The Company has outstanding obligations for promissory note of 100 million.

Credit Rating
As at 26 July 2016, Tris Rating affirmed company rating and debenture rating at A-.

7.4 Dividend Policy
A minimum rate of 50 percent of the net profit

Dividend Payment History

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Dividend Payment Details (1Jan 12- (1 Jan 13- (1 Jan 14- (1 Jan 15- (1 Jan 16-
31 Dec 12) 31 Dec 13) | 31 Dec 14) 31 Dec 15) 31 Dec 16)
Net profit 240,529,963 205,086,100 | 140,123,623 170,998.988 220,171,327
Number of shares 447,369,569 447,369,569 | 447,369,569 596,492,753 596,492,753
Earnings per share 0.54 0.46 0.31 0.32 0.37
Dividend per share (Baht:share) 0.40 0.28 0.17 0.17 N/A
Net profit percentage 74.40 61.08 54.28 59.30 N/A
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Management Structure

8. Management Structure

8.1 The Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is tasked to set the Company’s visions, policies, and strategies as well as to guide the Company’s
direction. It also has a duty to supervise the Company’s operation department to ensure that it follows the Company’s
policies with efficiency and effectiveness as well as to report its performance to the Board of Directors in order to benefit

the Company and its shareholders.

In 2016, the Board of Directors of Phata Leasing Plc. comprises :

Names

Positions

Mr.Photipong Lamsam

Chairman

Mr.Poomchai Lamsam

Vice Chairman / Chairman of the Remuneration and Selection Committee

Mr.Sara Lamsam

Director / Chairman of the Executive Committee / Member of the Remuneration
and Selection Committee / Member of the Risk Management Committee

Mrs.Nualphan Lamsam

Director

Mr.Pipop Kunasol

Director and President / Member of the Executive Committee / Member of the Risk
Management Committee / Chairman of the Investment Committee

Dr.Sutee Mokkhavesa

Director / Member of the Executive Committee / Member of the Risk Management
Committee / Member of the Investment Committee

Mrs.Chantra Purnariksha

Independent Director

Mr.Vichate Tantiwanich

Independent Director / Member of the Risk Management Committee

Mr.Anupon Likitpurkpaisan

Independent Director / Chairman of the Risk Management Committee

Mr.Suebtrakul Soonthornthum

Independent Director / Chairman of the Audit Committee

Mr.Arpatsorn Bunnag

Independent Director / Member of the Audit Committee / Member of the
Remuneration and Selection Committee

Mr.Poonpipat Aungurigul

Independent Director / Member of the Audit Committee

Authorized Signatories

“The authorized directors who can sign to bind the Company are Mr. Photipong Lamsam, Mr. Poomchai Lamsam, Mr. Sara
Lamsam, Mrs. Nualphan Lamsam, Dr. Sutee Mokkhavesa, Mr. Pipop Kunasol with the condition requiring 2 directors to jointly
sign together with the Company’s seal affixed.”
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The Company’s Board of Directors” meetings shall be held at least once every 3 months whereby the meeting dates shall
be specified in advance each year and notice thereof shall be sent to the directors from the beginning of the year. Special
meetings may be held as may be necessary. In the fiscal year 2016 (January — December 2016), details of the attendance

at each committee’s meetings are as follows:

Attendance at Each Committee’s Meetings in the Fiscal Year 2016 (January — December 2016)

Number of Meetings

) Remuneration  [Risk Management| .
Board of Audit ) ; Executive Investment
) ) and Selection Committee ) )
Names Directors Committee Committee (Total & Committee Committee
(Total 10 (Total 6 ) (Total 14 (Total 5
Meetings) Meetings) (Total Meetings) Meetings) Meetings)
s s 1 Meetings) s s
1.Mr.Photipong Lamsam 7/10
2.Mr.Poomchai Lamsam 9/10 3/3
3.Mr.Sara Lamsam 9/10 3/3 4/4 14/14
4.Mrs.Nualphan Lamsam 8/10
5.Mr.Pipop Kunasol 10/10 a/4 14/14 5/5
6.Dr.Sutee Mokkhavesa @ 5/8 4/4 13/14 5/5
7.Mrs.Chantra Purnariksha 9/10
8.Mr.Vichate Tantiwanich 7/10 3/4
9.Mr.Anupon Likitpurkpaisan 9/10 4a/4
10. Mr.Suebtrakul 3/3 1/1
Soonthornthum @
11.Mr.Arpatsorn Bunnag 9/10 6/6 3/3
12.Mr.Poonpipat Aungurigul 9/10 6/6
13. Asso.Prof.Chawalee 6/7 5/5
Pongpatirochna®
14. Mr.Krirkchai Siribhakdi® 0/2
15. Mr.Kachornjak Chalothorn 4/4 13/14
16. Mrs.Thipsuda Kuenkong 10/10 3/3 14/14
17. Mr.Danu Sukhavat 6/6 4/4 14/14 5/5

Notes :

Dr. Sutee Mokkhavesa has been appointed as the Company’s Director and held the positions of Member of the Risk

Management Committee, Member of the Executive Committee and Member of the Investment Committee since 29 April 2016.

Mr. Suebtrakul Soonthornthum has been appointed as Independent Director and Member of the Audit Committee since

1 October 2016, and has been appointed as Chairman of the Audit Committee in place of Asso. Prof. Chawalee Pongpatirochna

since 18 October 2016.
Asso. Prof. Chawalee Pongpatirochna resigned on 30 September 2016.

“Mr. Krikchai Siribhakdi retired by rotation on 29 April 2016.

Numbers of Directors in each team as at 31* December, 2016

Board of Directors

Audit Committee

The Remuneration and Selection Committee

The Executive Committee

The Risk Management Committee

The Investment Committee
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8.2 Executives

The Company has 8 executives as defined by the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission, whose names are
as follows:

Names Positions
1.Mr.Pipop Kunasol President
2.Mr.Kachornjak Chalothorn Executive Vice President Head of Price and Cost Management Group
3. Mrs.Thipsuda Kuenkong Executive Vice President Head of Support Group
4.Mr.Soottichai Sombatsir First Senior Vice President Head of Corporate Business Group
5.Mr.Thanan Suebsiri First Senior Vice President Head of Special Asset Business Group
6.Mr.Narupol Watanakun First Senior Vice President Head of Service and Asset Management Group
7.Mr.Danu Sukhavat First Senior Vice President Head of Finance and Control Group
8.Mrs.Karaked Junvanitrattana Vice President Head of Accounting Department
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The Board of the Directors

1.

Mr.Photipong Lamsam

Position

Age

The appointment on

Chairman
(Authorized Signature)
83 Years

1 June 2008

Education Background Masters of Business Administration (MBA), Temple University, U.S.A.

Training Record -No-

Shares Percentage As of December 30, 2016

Number of Shares Number of Shares
(PL) (PL-W1)
Name 30 Dec 2016 30 Dec 2016
(Shares) (%) (Units) (%)
- Mr.Photipong Lamsam 169,866 0.028% 224,155 0.451%
- Yupong Company Limited
12,323,402 2.066% 1,227,800 2.470%
(Juristic person who hold the shares over 30%)

Total 12,493,268 2.094% 1,451,955 2.921%
Work Experience (Over the past 5 years)
- 2011 —Jun 2017 - Chairman of Sermsuk PLC.
- 2008 — Present - Chairman of Phatra Leasing PLC.
- 2008 — Present - Chairman of Muang Thai Insurance PLC.
- 1999 - Present - Chairman of Muang Thai Group Holding Co.,Ltd.
- 2009 - Present - Chairman of Sup Muang Thai Co.,Ltd
- Oct 2012 — Present - Chairman of Muang Thai Life Assurance PLC.
- 1998 - 2012 - Chairman of Muang Thai Life Assurance PLC.
- 1995 - 1988 - Chairman and CEO of Muang Thai Life Assurance PLC.
- 1983 - 1994 - Chairman and President of Muang Thai Life Assurance PLC.
- 1963 - 1983 - Managing Director of Muang Thai Insurance PLC.

Family relation with other executive
- Father of Mr. Sara Lamsam and Mrs. Nualphan Lamsam

- Brother of Mr. Poomchai Lamsam
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2. Mr.Poomchai Lamsam
Position Vice Chairman
Chairman of the Remuneration and Selection Committee

(Authorized Signature)

Age 67 Years
The appointment on 28 September 1987
Education Background B.A. Political Science, University of Colorado, U.S.A.

Training Record

- Director Accreditation Program (DAP) from the Thai Institute of Directors (I0D)

Shares Percentage As of December 30, 2016
Number of Shares Number of Shares
(PL) (PL-W1)
Name
30 Dec 2016 30 Dec 2016
(Shares) (%) (Units) (%)

- Mr.Poomchai Lamsam 3,540,000 0.593% 295,000 0.593%
- Mrs. Chudtraporn Lamsam (Spouse) 20,000 0.003% 1,666 0.003%

Total 3,560,000 0.597% 296,666 0.597%

Work Experience (Over the past 5 years)

- 2000 - Present - Director of Muang Thai Life Assurance PLC.

- 2010 — Present - President Consultant of Muang Thai Life Assurance PLC.

- 2010 — Present - President Consultant of Muang Thai Insurance PLC.

- 1989 - Present - Director of Loxley PLC.

- 1987 - Present - Vice Chairman/Chairman of the Remuneration and Selection Committee of Phatra
Leasing PLC.

- 2009 - Present - Director of Muang Thai Group Holding Co.,Ltd.

- 1994 — Present - Director of Muang Thai Real Estate PLC.

Family relation with other executive
- Brother of Mr.Photipong Lamsam

- Uncle of Mr. Sara Lamsam and Mrs. Nualphan Lamsam

Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited Annual Report 2016




‘ I Management Structure

3. Mr.Sara Lamsam
Position Director
Chairman of the Executive Committee / Member of the Remuneration and Selection
Committee / Member of the Risk Management Committee

(Authorized Signature)

Age 46 Years
The appointment on 29 January 2004
Education Background Master of Science in Administration, Boston University, U.S.A.

Training Record

- Director Certification Program 4 (DCP 4) Thai Institute of Directors Association.

- Executive courses in Applied Psychology Administration (Class 97) Applied Psychology Institute, National Defense Studies
Institute

- Courses for top executives Class 4, Capital Market Academy.

- Thailand Insurance Leadership Program (Class 1) Office of Insurance Commission (OIC)

- The course senior management, developing country (Class 1) Urban Green Development Institute Bangkok

- Chief Justice High (Class 17) Judicial Institute The Judiciary

- Program for Executives, Business Development, Industry and Investment (Class 1)

- Institute of Business and Industrial Development
- Harvard Business School Advanced Management Program 186 Boston, U.S.A.
- Top Executive Program in Commerce and Trade (TEPCoT 8) Commerce Academy, University of Thai Chamber of Commerce

- Global Business Leaders Program BATCH 1 LEAD Business Institute, a partner of Cornell University, USA.

Shares Percentage As of December 30, 2016
Number of Shares Number of Shares
(PL) (PL-W1)
Name
30 Dec 2016 30 Dec 2016
(Shares) (%) (Units) (%)

- Mr.Sara Lamsam 1,800,000 0.302% 80,000 0.161%

Total 1,800,000 0.302% 80,000 0.161%

Work Experience (Over the past 5 years)

- 2016 — Present - Independent Director, Thai Reinsurance PLC.
- 2016 — Present - Vice President (Marketing), The Thai Life Assurance Association. (TLAA)
- 2016 — Present - Chairman of Thai Financial Planners Association.
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2015 — Present
2016 — Present
2016 — Present
2015 — Present
2015 — Present
2015 — Present
2015 — Present
2013 — Present

2012 — Present

2012 — Present
2011 — Present
2010 — Present
2003 — Present
2009 — Present
2008 — Present
2009 — Present
2009 - Present
2009 - Present
2009 - Present
2009 - Present

2007 — Present

2004 — Present
2008 — Present
2007 — Present
2007 — Present
2005 — Present
2005 - Present

2004 — Present

Management Structure I ‘

Director, Thai Financial Planners Association.

Director and Risk Management Committee Member, Kasikornbank Public Company Limited.
Advisor of Association, Capital Market Academy Alumni

Chairman of the Federation of Thai Insurance Organizations.

Advisor, Board of Trade of Thailand.

Advisor, the Society of Actuaries of Thailand.

Director, Social Research Institute Chiang Mai University

Director, Group of Finance and Investment, Board of Trade of Thailand.

Director, Police General Hospital Foundation under the Royal Patronage of Her Majesty the
Queen

Advisor, Thaipublica

Advisor, The Psychological Security Association of Thailand.

President and CEO, Muang Thai Life Assurance Public Co., Ltd.

Director, Muang Thai Life Assurance Public Co., Ltd.

Advisor to the President, Muang Thai Insurance (Public) Co., Ltd.

Director and Executive Director, Muang Thai Insurance (Public) Co., Ltd.

Chief Executive Officer and Director, Muang Thai Group Holding Co., Ltd.

Chief Executive Officer and Director, Muang Thai Holding Co., Ltd.

Member, Board of Trustees, Bangkok University.

Director, Sup Muang Thai Co.,Ltd

Member of the Risk Management Committee of Phatra Leasing (Public) Co., Ltd.
Chairman of the Executive Committee and Member of the Remuneration and Selection
Committee of Phatra Leasing (Public) Co., Ltd.

Director, Phatra Leasing (Public) Co., Ltd.

Director, Muang Thai Group Service Co., Ltd.

Director, Muang Thai Real Estate Public Co., Ltd.

Director, Thailand Insurance Institute. (TII)

Director, Narcotics Control Foundation.

Advisor, Knowledge Network Institute of Thailand

Executive Committee, Young President’s Organization (Thailand).

Family relation with other executive

Son of Mr.Photipong Lamsam

Brother of Mrs.Nualphan Lamsam

Grandchild of Mr. Poomchai Lamsam
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4. Mr.Pipop Kunasol

Position

Age
The a

ppointment on

Education Background

Training Record

Director and President

Member of the Executive Committee / Member of the Risk Management
Committee / Chairman of the Investment Committee

(Authorized Signature)

51 Years

25 January 2007

Master of Business Administration (MBA) Thammasart University

Audit Committee Program (ACP) from the Thai Institute of Directors (I0D)

Director Accreditation Program (DAP) from the Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)

Director Certification Program (DCP) from the Thai Institute of Directors (10D)

Shares Percentage

As of December 30, 2016
_NO_

Work Experience (Over the past 5 years)

- 2011 - Present -

- 2009 - Present -

- 2007 - Present -

- 2007 - Present -

- 1992 — Mar 2014 -

Chairman of the Investment Committee of Phatra Leasing PLC.
President of Phatra Leasing PLC.

Member of the Executive Committee of Phatra Leasing PLC.
Director of Phatra Leasing PLC.

Chief Finance and Control of Phatra Leasing PLC.

Family relation with other executive

-None
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5. Mrs. Nualphan Lamsam

Position

Age
The appointment on
Education Background

Training Record

Management Structure

Director

(Authorized Signature)

51 Years

25 February 2011 — Present and 23 January 2007 — 11 February 2009

Master of Education Management of Boston University of USA

-Director Certification Program (DCP 57/2003) from the Thai Institute of Directors (I0D)

Shares Percentage

As of December 30, 2016

Number of Shares Number of Shares
(PL) (PL-W1)
Name
30 Dec 2016 30 Dec 2016
(Shares) (%) (Units) (%)
- Mrs.Nualphan Lamsam 1,800,000 0.302% 80,000 0.161%
Total 1,800,000 0.302% 80,000 0.161%

Work Experience (Over the past 5 years)

2015 - Present

Feb 27, 2014 - Present

2008 - Feb 26, 2014
2014 - 2016

2014 - Present

2014 - Present

2013 - Present
2007 - 2009 and

2010 - Present
- 2010 - Present
2010 - Present

- 2009 - Present
2009 - Present

- Honorary Consul Consulate of the Republic of Lithuania in Thailand

- President, Chief Executive and Director of the Executive Committee, Muang
Thai Insurance PLC.

- President of Muang Thai Insurance PLC.

- Advisor of the National Legislative Assembly

- Director of The National Identity, Office of the Permanent Secretary to the
Prime Minister's Office, Government’s House

- Expert Director, The Ministry of Social Development and Human Security

- Director of The Thai Chamber of Commerce

- Director of Phatra Leasing PLC.

- Director Consultant of Muang Thai Real Estate PLC.
- Director Consultant of Muang Thai Group Holding Co.,Ltd
- Director of Nawanakorn PLC.

- Honorary President of Sung Aunorre (Bangkok) Co.,Ltd

Family relation with other executive

- Daughter of Mr.Photipong Lamsam

- Sister of Mr. Sara Lamsam

- Grandchild of Mr. Poomchai Lamsam
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6. Dr.Sutee Mokkhavesa

Position

Age
The appointment on

Education Background

Training Record

- Director Certification Program (

Shares Percentage

Director

Member of the Executive Committee / Member of the Risk Management

Committee / Member of the Investment Committee

(Authorized Signature)

41 Years

29 April 2016

PhD. Applied Mathematical Finance

Imperial College, London

DCP 230/2016) from the Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)

As of December 30, 2016

-No-

Work Experience (Over the past 5 years)

- 2016 - Present
- 2009 - Present

- 2016 - Present
- 2016 - Present
- 2015 - Present
- 2003 -2014

- 2007 - Present
- 2006 - Present
- 2006 - Present

Family relation with other executive

- None

Director of Phatra Leasing PLC.

Director of the Risk Management Committee / Director of the Investment
Committee / President Consultant of Phatra Leasing PLC.

Director of ST - Muang Thai Insurance Co.Ltd

Director (Independent Director) Thai Reinsurance Public Co., Ltd.

Vice President of Muang Thai Life Assurance PLC.

President Consultant of Muang Thai Life Assurance PLC.

Director of Kukai Kindergarten

Market and Liquidity Risk Consultant of Government Housing Bank

President Consultant and Member of Risk Management of Muang Thai Insurance

PLC.
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7. Mrs.Chantra Purnariksha

Position Independent Director

Age 70

The appointment on 25 November 2011

Education Background Master of M.A. Diplomacy and Comparative Economics University of

Kentucky, U.S.A
Training Record

- Director Certification Program (DCP) from the Thai Institute of Directors (I0D)

Shares Percentage As of December 30, 2016

-No-

Work Experience (Over the past 5 years)

- 2013-2016 - Director and President Saha Pathana Inter Holding PCL.

- 2011 - Present - Independent Director, Phatra Leasing PLC.

- 2011 - Present - Independent Director/Member of Audit Committee, Jasmine International PLC.

- 2012-2013 - Independent Director/Member of Audit Committee, Kasikorn Bank PLC.

- 2007 - 2011 - Secretary, Office of Insurance Commission

- 2006 - 2007 - Director General of the Department of Insurance, Department of Insurance
- 1975 - Present - Director of S.P. Enterprise Co.,Ltd

Family relation with other executive

- None
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8. Mr.Vichate Tantiwanich

Position

Age

The appointment on

Education Background

Training Record

Shares Percentage

Independent Director

Member of the Risk Management Committee
55

13 February 2012

Master MBA, Finance & Marketing

University of Hartford Connecticut, U.S.A.

Director Certification Program (DCP) from the Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)

Capital Market Academy Leader Program (CMA.)

Certified Financial Planner : CFP

Top Executive Program in Commerce and Trade (TEPCoT 3)

Diploma, National Defence College, The Joint State - Prirate sector Course class 26"

The National Defence College of Thailand (NDC), year 2013-2014

As of December 30, 2016

-No-

Work Experience (Over the past 5 years)

2015 - Present
2015 - Present
2014 - Present
2012 - Present
2012 - Present
2010 - Present

2010 - Present
2010 - Present
2008 - Present
2005 - Present
2012 - 2016
2014 - 2015
2013 -2015
2013 -2015
2012 - 2015

Director , Export-Import Bank of Thailand

Advisor, The Ministry of Commerce

Director / Chairman of the Audit Committee, JWD InfoLogistics PLC

President, CAC Co.,Ltd

Independent Director /Member of the Risk Management Committee, Phatra Leasing PLC.
Chairman of the Executive Board, Creative Entrepreneurship Development Institute of Bangkok
University (CEDI)

Vice Chairperson, Capital Market Academy Committee The Stock Exchange of Thailand : SET
Advisor, Market for Alternative Investment : MAI

Advisor, Thai — Japanese Association

Executive Director, International Chamber of Commerce (Thailand) : ICC (Thailand)

Senior Vice President, Thai Beverage PLC.

Director / Diretor of the Audit Committee, Dhanarak Asset Development Co, Ltd

Advisor Research and Corporate Governance of Thai Institute of Directors (I0D)

Vice Chairperson, Capital Market Academy Committee The Stock Exchange of Thailand : SET

Independent Director / Member of Audit Committee of M Pictures Entertainment PLC.

Family relation with other executive

188

None

Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited Annual Report 2016



Management Structure

9. Mr.Anupon Likitpurkpaisan
Position Independent Director

Chairman of the Risk Management Committee

Age 51
The appointment on 27 November 2008
Education Background Master Degree of Executive Program (MBA), Ramkhamhaeng University

Training Record

- Director Certification Program (DCP) from the Thai Institute of Directors (I0D)

Shares Percentage As of December 30, 2016

-No-

Work Experience (Over the past 5 years)

- 2014 - Present - Managing Director, BKK Autohouse Karnjanapisak Co.,Ltd

- 2010 - Present - Chairman of the Risk Management Committee, Phatra Leasing PLC.
- 2009 - Present - Independent Director, Phatra Leasing PLC.

- 1988 - Present - President, Benz BKK Vipavadee Co.,Ltd.

- 1988 - Present - Vice Chairman of Executive, BKK Grand Estate Co.,Ltd.

- 1988 - Present - Member of Executive Committee, Benz BKK Group Co.,Ltd.

And SIAM NISSAN BKK Co.,Ltd

- 1988 - Present - Member of Executive Committee, BKK Chrysler Co.,Ltd.

Family relation with other executive

- None
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10. Mr. Suebtrakul Soonthornthum

Position

Age

The appointment on

Training Record

Training Record

Shares Percentage

Independent Director

Chairman of The Audit Committee

74

1 October 2016

Bachelor Degree Accounting Curtin University — Australia
MBIM, Hon.Dlitt : Curtin University — Australia

PMD. : Harvard University — USA

Director Accreditation Program (DAP) from the Thai Institute of Directors (I0D)

As of December 30, 2016

-No-

Work Experience (Over the past 5 years)

2016 - Present
2013 - Present
2004 - Present

2008 - 2010

2000 - Present
1999 - Present
1996 - Present
2002 - 2005

1993 - Present
1992 - Present

1987 - Present

1980 - 1986

1987 - Present

2001 - Present

2001 - Present

Independent Director/Chairman of the Audit Committee, Phatra Leasing PLC.

Director of Bluescope Buildings (Thailand) Limited.

Director of United Overseas Bank PCL.(UOB)

Chairman of the Audit Committee / Member of Audit Committee of United
Overseas Bank PCL. (UOB)

Chairman of Muang Thai Real Estate PCL.

Director of BP-Castrol (Thailand) Limited.

Independent Director of Vanachai Group Public Company Limited.

Vice Chairman of Vanachai Group Public Company Limited.

Vice President, loxley public company limited

Chairman of Foseco (Thailand) Limited

Director of NS Bluescope (Thailand)

Director of NS Bluescope Lysaght (Thailand) Limited.

Director of Muang Thai Life Assurance PLC.

Independent Director of Muang Thai Life Assurance PLC.

Independent Director / Member of Audit Committee of Muang Thai Life
Assurance PLC.

Director of Loxley Group

Family relation with other executive

None
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11. Mr.Arpatsorn Bunnag
Position Independent Director

Member of the Audit Committee / Member of the Remuneration and Selection

Committee
Age 64
The appointment on 11 March 1994
Education Background Bachelor of Science Advertising Design University of Maryland at College Park

Training Record

- Director Accreditation Program (DAP) from the Thai Institute of Directors (I0D)

Shares Percentage As of December 30, 2016
Number of Shares Number of Shares
(PL) (PL-W1)
Name
30 Dec 2016 30 Dec 2016
(Shares) (%) (Units) (%)

- Mr.Arpatsorn Bunnag 296,000 0.050% 24,666 0.050%

Total 296,000 0.050% 24,666 0.050%

Work Experience (Over the past 5 years)

- 1993 - Present - Independent Director/Member of Audit Committee / Member of the
Remuneration and Selection Committee, Phatra Leasing PLC.
- 2009 - 2011 - Vice President Executive Officer, Piyavate hospital

- 2002 - 2007 - Vice President, Piyavate hospital

Family relation with other executive

- None

Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited Annual Report 2016




‘ I Management Structure

12. Mr.Poonpipat Aungurigul
Position Independent Director

Member of the Audit Committee

Age 69

The appointment on 30 July 1999

Education Background Certificate of Higher Education in Accounting, King Mongkut's University of
Technology

Training Record

- Director Accreditation Program (DAP) from the Thai Institute of Directors (I0D)

Shares Percentage As of December 30, 2016
_NO_

Work Experience (Over the past 5 years)

- 1999 - Present - Independent Director/Member of the Audit Committee Phatra Leasing PLC.

- 2000 - 2016 - Independent Director/Member of Audit Committee, Thai British Security Printing
PLC.

- 2000 - 2010 - Director, Muang Thai Insurance PLC.

Family relation with other executive

- None
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The Management

1. Mrs.Thipsuda Kuenkong
Position Executive Vice President Head of Support Group
Company Secretary, Member of the Executive Committee and Secretary of

Remuneration and Selection Committee

Age 51
The appointment on 30 December 2003
Education Background Master of Economics, University of the Thai Chamber of Commerce

Training Record
- Company Secretary Program (CSP) from the Thai Institute of Directors (I0OD)
- Strengthening Anti-Corruption Practice in Your Boardroom

from the Thai Institute of Directors (I0D)

Shares Percentage As of December 30, 2016
Number of Shares Number of Shares
(PL) (PL-W1)
Name
30 Dec 2016 30 Dec 2016
(Shares) (%) (Units) (%)

- Mr. Apichat Kuenkong (Spouse) 1,952,000 0.327% 162,833 0.328%

Total 1,952,000 0.327% 162,833 0.328%

Work Experience (Over the past 5 years)

- Dec 2009 - Present - Executive Vice President, Support Group
- Jan 2007 - Present - Company Secretary
- 2007 - Present - Member of the Executive Committee/

- Secretary of the Remuneration and Selection Committee, Phatra Leasing PLC.
- Jan 2007 - Dec 2009 - First Senior Vice President Supporting Group, Phatra Leasing PLC.
- 1988 -2007 - Head of Administration Department, Phatra Leasing PLC.

Family relation with other executive

- None
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2. Mr.Kachornjak Chalothorn

Position

Age
The appointment on
Education Background

Training Record

Executive Vice President Head of Price and Cost Management Group

Member of the Executive Committee and Member of the Risk Management

Committee
53
30 December 2003

Master of Business Management Okalahoma City University

- Ethical Leadership Program (ELP) from the Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)

Shares Percentage

As of December 30, 2016

Number of Shares Number of Shares
(PL) (PL-W1)
Name
30 Dec 2016 30 Dec 2016
(Shares) (%) (Units) (%)

- Mr.Kachornjak Chalothorn 254,661 0.043% 22,221 0.045%
- Mrs.Sutarut Chalothorn (spouse) 200,000 0.034% 16,666 0.034%

Total 454,661 0.077% 38,887 0.079%

Work Experience (Over the past 5 years)

- Feb 2015 - Present

- Apr2014 - Present

- Sep 2012 - Mar 2014
- 2007-Present

- 2007-2012

Member of The Risk Management Committee

Executive Vice President Head of Price & Cost Management Group

Executive Vice President of System and Credit Group)

Member of Executive, Phatra Leasing PLC.

Head of Business Development Department, Phatra Leasing PLC.

Family relation with other executive

- None
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3. Mr.Thanan Suebsiri

Position First Senior Vice President Head of Special Asset Business Group
Age 47
Education Background Master Of Business Administration (MBA) University of North Florida
The appointment on 1 March 2010
Training Record -No-
Shares Percentage As of December 30, 2016
Number of Shares Number of Shares
(PL) (PL-W1)
Name
30 Dec 2016 30 Dec 2016
(Shares) (%) (Units) (%)

Mr.Thanan Suebsiri 20,000 0.003% 1,666 0.003%

Total 20,000 0.003% 1,666 0.003%

Work Experience (Over the past 5 years)

- Apr 2014 - Present - First Senior Vice President Head of Special Asset Business Group , Phatra Leasing PLC.

- Oct2012-Mar 2014 - First Senior Vice President of Marketing & Sales 4 Department Executive, Phatra
Leasing PLC.

- 2007 -2012 - Head of Marketing and Sale Department 4

- 2003 - 2007 - Manager Business Development Department, Phatra Leasing PLC.

Family relation with other executive

- None

4. Mr. Soottichai Sombatsiri

Position First Senior Vice President Head of Corporate Business Group
Age 44
The appointment on 1 February 2016
Education Background Master of Business Administration (M.B.A.), Chulalongkorn University
Training Record -No-
Shares Percentage As of December 30, 2016
-No-

Work Experience (Over the past 5 years)

- Apr 2014 - Present - First Senior Vice President Head of Corporate Business Group, Phatra Leasing PLC.

- Oct 2012 - Mar 2014 - First Senior Vice President Head of Marketing and Sale Department, Phatra Leasing PLC.
- 2007 - 2012 - Executive Manager of Special Marketing and Sale Department, Phatra Leasing PLC.

- 2003 - 2007 - Business development Manager, Phatra Leasing PLC.

Family relation with other executive
None
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5. Mr. Naruepol Watanakun

Position First Senior Vice President Head of Service and Asset Management Group
Age 51
The appointment on 1 February 2016
Education Background Master of Business Administration (MBA), Lincoln University, U.S.A
Training Record -No-
Shares Percentage As of December 30, 2016

_No_

Work Experience (Over the past 5 years)

- Feb 2016 - Present - First Senior Vice President Head of Service and Asset Management Group, Phatra
Leasing PLC.

- Mar2015 - Jan2016 - First Senior Vice President Head of Maintenance and Insurance Department, Phatra
Leasing PLC.

- 2002 - Mar2015 - Vice President of Maintenance and Insurance Department, Phatra Leasing PLC.

- 2002 - 2009 - Vice President of Purchasing Department, Phatra Leasing PLC.

- 1999 - 2000 - Assistance Marketing Manager, Phatra Leasing PLC.

- 1995 - 1999 - Marketing Officer, Phatra Leasing PLC.

Family relation with other executive

- None

Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited Annual Report 2016




Management Structure

6. Mr.Danu Sukhavat
Position First Senior Vice President Head of Finance and Control Group
Member of the Executive Committee / Member of the Risk Management
Committee / Member of the Investment Committee

Secretary of the Audit Committee

Age 43
The appointment on 1 January 2010
Education Background Master Of Business Administration (MBA) Cleveland State University

Training Record
- Financial Statements for Directors (FSD) 26/2014 from the Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)

- How to Develop a Risk Management Plan (HRP) 9/2016 from the Thai Institute of Directors (I0D)

Shares Percentage As of December 30, 2016

-No-

Work Experience (Over the past 5 years)

- Feb 2015 - Present - Member of the Executive Committee

- Apr 2014 - Present - First Senior Vice President Head of Finance & Control Group)

- Oct2012 - Mar2014 - Senior Vice President of Finance Department Phatra Leasing PLC.
- 2011 - Present - Director and Secretary of the Investment Committee

- 2009 - Present - Director and Secretary of the Risk Management Committee

- 2009 - Present - Secretary of the Audit Committee

- 2009 - 2012 - Head of Finance Department

- 2005 - 2009 - Manager Finance Department

Family relation with other executive

- None
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7. Mrs.Karaked Junvanitrattana

Position Vice President of Accounting Department

Age 48

The appointment on 1 October 2012

Education Background Master of Business Administration (MBA) Ramkhamhaeng University

Training Record

- Ethical Leadership Program (ELP) from the Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)

Shares Percentage As of December 30, 2016
-No-

Work Experience (Over the past 5 years)

- Sep 2012 - Present - Vice President of Accounting Department

- 1991 - Sep 2012 - Manager Accounting Department, Phatra Leasing PLC.

Family relation with other executive

- None
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8.3 Scope of Secretary

The company appointed Mrs.Thipsuda Keunkong to be secretary of the company Certification from company Secretary
Program (CSP) by the Thai Institute of Director (IOD)with the following scope of works.

1. Support the committee in relevant to rules and regulations.

2. Organize meeting of executive committee and shareholders in accordance with law and company’s regulations.

3. Provide initiate suggestion to the executive committee in relevant to rules, regulations, laws and conducts to
oversee the operations.

4. Be the data center of the organization such as business’ registration, memorandum of association, regulations,
shareholders’ registration and any other permits to operate the businesses

5. Oversee the disclosure of information to ensure that it is correct and timely.

6. Communicate with other shareholders to understand rights and company’s information.

8.4 Compensation of Committee Members and Management

1. Financial Compensation

Compensation of Committee Members Details

The BOD resolved to propose to the shareholders’ meeting to consider and approve the payment of the

remuneration and bonus of the directors regarding to the appropriateness, responsibility, and also company’s
financial statement. Furthermore, Directors who were assigned to respond in more than one committee shall
receive extra remuneration by additional responsible. In this regard, the payment of the remuneration and bonus
of the directors had been considered by the Remuneration and Selection Committee, proposed to the Board of
Directors of the Company, and was finally then proposed to the shareholders’ meeting for consideration.

Accordingto 2016 shareholders’ meeting conducted on 29 April 2016, the remuneration was approved and paid by
following details;

1. Remuneration of the directors

1.1 The Board of Directors shall receive monthly remuneration at the rate of Baht 20,000 /person/month
which was the same rate as that of the year 2015. The ratio of the remuneration of each director shall be as follows :

o Chairman 2 times
« Vice Chairman 1.5 times
« Directors 1 time

Whereby they shall not receive meeting allowance.

1.2 The remuneration of the committees: The meeting allowance shall be paid each time according toeach

committee’s meeting. The committees who are entitled to receive remuneration are as follows:

 Audit Committee

» Remuneration and Selection Committee

* Risk Management Committee

The committees shall receive the meeting allowance at the rate of Baht 20,000 /person/time which was
the same rate as that of the year 2015. The ratio for the meeting allowance shall be in accordance
with the ratio for the remuneration of the Board of Directors. In this regard, members of the committees
who are the representatives of the management and the executive directors shall not receive the meeting
allowance.

2. Bonus of the directors
The bonus of the directors shall be paid pursuant to the principle approved for the year 2006, which shall
not exceed 5 percent of the total dividend payout to the shareholders. Whereby the Chairman shall be authorized to
determine the criteria and allocate the bonus.
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The remuneration of Directors for the accounting year of 2016 consisted of monthly remuneration, meeting
allowance paid by the numbers of attended meeting, and committee remuneration following the resolution of the
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of 2016 in the total amount of 8.10 Millionbaht which can be summarized in

the following details:

Names of directors

Positions

Remuneration and committee
remuneration for the accounting year of 2016

Mr. Photipong Lamsam

Chairman

Remuneration as the Chairman in the amount of 480,000 baht. Bonus in the
amount of 540,000 baht.

Mr. Poomchai Lamsam

Vice Chairman / Chairman
of the Remuneration and
Selection Committee

Remuneration as the Vice Chairman in the amount of 360,000 baht.
Chairman of Consideration of the Remuneration and Selection Committee
120,000 baht. Bonus in the amount of 405,000 baht.

Mr. Sara Lamsam

Director / Chairman of

the Executive Committee

/ Member of the
Remuneration and Selection
Committee / Member of the
Risk Management Committee

Remuneration as the Director in the amount of 240,000 baht.
Consideration of the Remuneration and Selection Committee 60,000 baht.
Consideration of the Risk Management Committee 80,000 baht. Bonus in
the amount of 405,000 baht.

Mrs. Nualphan Lamsam

Director

Remuneration as the Director in the amount of 240,000 baht.
Bonus in the amount of 270,000 baht.

Mr. Pipop Kunasol

Director and President /
Member of the Executive
Committee / Member

of the Risk Management
Committee/ Chairman of
the Investment Committee

Remuneration as the Director in the amount of 240,000 baht.
Bonus in the amount of 270,000 baht.

Dr.Sutee Mokkhavesa

Director / Member of the
Executive Committee

/ Member of the Risk
Management Committee
/ Member of the Investmet
Committee

Remuneration as the Director in the amount of 160,000 baht.
Bonus in the amount of 60,000 baht.

Mrs. Chantra Purnariksha

Independent Director

Remuneration as the Director in the amount of 240,000 baht.
Bonus in the amount of 270,000 baht.

Mr. Vichate Tantiwanich

Independent Director /
Member of the Risk
Management Committee

Remuneration as the Director in the amount of 240,000 baht.
Consideration of the Risk Management Committee 60,000 baht. Bonus in
the amount of 270,000 baht.

Mr. Anupon - Likitpurkpaisan

Independent Director
/ Chairman of the Risk
Management Committee

Remuneration as the Director in the amount of 240,000 baht.
Chairman of Consideration of the Risk Management Committee 160,000
baht Bonus in the amount of 270,000 baht.

Mr.Suebtrakul
Soonthornthum

Independent Director /
Chairman of the Audit
Committee

Remuneration as the Director in the amount of 60,000 baht.
Chairman of Consideration of the Audit Committee 40,000 baht.

Mr. Arpatsorn Bunnag

Independent Director

/ Member of the Audit
Committee / Member of the
Remuneration and Selection
Committee

Remuneration as the Director in the amount of 240,000 baht.
Consideration of the Audit Committee 120,000 baht.

Consideration of the Remuneration and Selection Committee 60,000 baht.
Bonus in the amount of 270,000 baht.
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Mr. Poonpipat Aungurigul | Independent Director Remuneration as the Director in the amount of 240,000 baht.
/ Director of the Audit Consideration of the Audit Committee 120,000 baht.
Committee Bonus in the amount of 270,000 baht.
Asso.Prof.Chawalee Independent Director/ Remuneration as the Director in the amount of 180,000 baht.
Pongpatirachna Chairman of the Audit Chairman of Consideration of the Audit Committee 200,000 baht.
Committee Bonus in the amount of 270,000 baht.
Mr.Krirkchai Siribhakdi Director Remuneration as the Director in the amount of 80,000 baht.
Bonus in the amount of 270,000 baht.

Notes : " Dr. Sutee Mokkhavesa has been appointed as the Company’s Director and held the positions of Member of the Risk

Management Committee, Member of the Executive Committee and Member of the Investment Committee since 29 April 2016.
Mr. Suebtrakul Soonthornthum has been appointed as Independent Director and Member of the Audit Committee since
1 October 2016, and has been appointed as Chairman of the Audit Committee in place of Asso. Prof. Chawalee Pongpatirochna
since 18 October 2016.

Asso. Prof. Chawalee Pongpatirochna resigned on 30 September 2016.

@ Mr. Krikchai Siribhakdi retired by rotation on 29 April 2016.

Management Remuneration

Management Remuneration is paid in accordance with policy, principle and rate set by the Board of Directors in
relation with the performance of the Company as well as the performance of management and employees individually.
Management includes President and the four First Management under the President by excluding the Accounting Vice

President who is not in the same level as the fourth management.

In the fiscal year of 2016, the Company has paid the remuneration to 7 Management with the total amount of 34.21 MB

which consisted of salaries and bonuses.

2. Other Remuneration

Other remuneration of directors

-None-

Other remuneration of executives

-Provident fund

The Company has established a provident fund by making contributions at the rates of 5%, 8% and 10% of salaries in

accordance with the years of service of each employee as follows:

0-5 years contribution rate of 5%
More than 5 -10 years contribution rate of 8%
More than 10 years contribution rate of 10%

In the fiscal year 2016 (Jan. - Dec. 2016), the Company paid contributions to the provident fund for 7 executives, totaling
Baht 2.61 million baht.
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8.5 Personnel

The Company considers the personnel as valuable resources of the Company and main factor to the success. Throughout
the past three years, the Company has never entered any labour dispute. Also, in 2016, the Company did not have any
statistics on occupational accidents and absence from work or illness due to work.

As of 31 December 2016, the Company has 148 permanent employees divided into the following groups:

Group/Office Number (persons)
Legal Office 9
Internal Audit Office 2
Corporate Strategy Office 3
Finance and Control Group 25
Corporate Customer Group 29
Special Asset Group 6
Corporate Supporting Group 22
Price and Cost Management Group 22
Service and Asset Management Group 29

In addition, the Company has ensured that all employees shall be provided with appropriate welfare such as life
insurance and group health insurance, annual check-up and good working environment, and encouraged the employees
to play sports by establishing football club and badminton club for promoting good health. In addition, the Company
has encouraged the employees to save money as additional welfare for the employees and for use after retirement
or resignation whereby the Company has set up a provident fund for the employees and made contributions at the
rates prescribed by the Company’s regulations. The contributions shall be made in accordance with each employee’s
employment period as follows:

0-5 years . contribution at 5%
5-10 years : contribution at 8%
More than 10 years : contribution at 10%

Development of Directors, Executives and Employees in 2016

The Company targets to continuously improve knowledge and capabilities to directors, executives and employees
by providing training and seminar courses in accordance with annual training scheme to develop and increase their
potentiality in higher ability level. To develop knowledge and capability in 2016, the Company has sent the employees
to attend training and seminar courses, divided into 23 external courses and 2 internal courses, totaling 25 courses. The
number of employees who attended the training and seminars courses was 85 persons.

In this regard, for the purpose of increasing potentiality of the Company’s executives in 2016, the Company has assigned
the directors and executives to attend training and seminar courses as follows:

Name Training/Seminar Course
Dr. Sutee Mokkhavesa - Director Certification Program (DCP), batch 203/2016, by The Thai
Director Institute of Directors Association (IOD)
Mr. Soottichai Sombatsiri - Occupational Safety, Health and Environment
First Senior Vice President Head of Corporate
Customer Group
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Mr.Danu Sukhavat
First Senior Vice President Head of Finance
and Control Group

- HRP 9/2016, by The Thai Institute of Directors Association (I0OD)

- Tax Planning in Entering into Business Contracts, by The Wisdom
Learning Center Co., Ltd.

- Corporate Budgeting Planning Best Practice, by WIS Consulting Co.,
Ltd.

Mrs.Karaked Junvanitrattana
Vice President Head of Accounting
Department

- E-filling Preparation, by Federation of Accounting Professions

- XBRL, Digital Financial Reporting, by Federation of Accounting
Professions

-Accounting and Tax Planning for Businesses, by Federation of
Accounting Professions

Mr. Ukrit Chottaksin
Vice President Head of
Internal Audit Office

- Computer Data Security, by ACIS Professional Center Co., Ltd.

Mr. Chetha Surapongchandej
Vice President Head of Legal Office

- Tax Planning in Entering into Business Contracts, by The Wisdom
Learning Center Co., Ltd.

Mr. Sompol Srikasikul

- Introduction and Awareness to ISO, by ISET (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

Vice President Head of Customer Relations

and Marketing Support Department

9. Corporate Governance Policy
9.1 Corporate Governance Policy

The Board of Directors places much importance on and has continuously adhered to good corporate governance practices
applicable to the directors of listed companies. It is responsible for the formulation of Company’s policies; establishment of
directions; supervise and monitor Management operations to ensure parties as well as the roles, duties responsibilities and
freedom among the board members; information disclosure, transparency, control, risk management and business ethics. The
Board has accordingly divided Company’s corporate governance policy into give main areas as follow:

1. Shareholders’ Rights

Rishts and Equality of the shareholders

The Company recognizes the importance of shareholders and has the policy of fair treatment of shareholders according to the
law, such as the right to take part and attend the shareholders’ meeting; to give opinion and recommendations; to participate
in the consideration of various Company activities; to appoint proxies and proxies’ right to vote; to appoint and remove
individual directors; to appoint auditors and fix auditors’ remuneration and to receive information, Company

operational results and management policies.

Shareholders’ Meetings

The Company gives a great deal of importance to shareholders’ meeting. A general meeting of shareholders is held once a
year, the agenda of which is considered and fixed by the Board of Directors including other agenda to provide the opportunity
for every shareholder to have equal rights to ask questions, contribute ideas and provide recommendations to the Meetings
according to the proposed meeting agenda.

It is the policy of the Company that the Meeting precedes with transparency in accordance with applicable laws and the
SET regulations whereby each shareholder has the equitable rights to receive adequate information for decision making to
facilitate them in voting and voting by proxy. Therefore explanations concerning the method of voting and the counting of
votes shall be given prior to each meeting.
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2. Equal Treatment to Shareholders

An internal control system has been set by the Board to cover all matters including financial control, operational control
Performance supervision and risk management to ensure compliance with all applicable laws, rules and regulations. The
internal audit is independent with the duty of auditing internal operations of the Company and assessing the adequacy and
suitability of the internal control system and to report its findings direct to the Managing Director and the Audit Committee.

Including setting up a system to prevent the Board of Director and/or the Executives Committee to trade their stock and shares
through insider trading, using any information for their own or others’ benefits (Abusive self-dealing)

The Board places grate care on related transactions and those with conflicts of interest. Consideration steps have therefore
been fixed carefully, with honesty, reasonably and independently with a proper ethical framework including the fully disclosure
of information to prevent any conflict of interest as a whole.

On matter of monitoring the use of insider’s information, the Company bans all directors and Management from using and/
or disclosing insider’s information for the purpose of buying, selling, transferring, receiving the transfer of securities issued by
the Company before the said information is disclosed to the public. Each and every Board member band Management is fully
aware of the SET regulations re : reporting of the purchase and sale of securities and proper compliance therewith.

3. Rights of Interrest Parties

The Company recognizes the importance of each and every group of interest parties/stakeholders being the shareholders,
customer, trading partners, management, staff social and environment and takes into account their rights in complying
with the laws and in ascertaining that such rights are protected in an equitable manner as well as encouraging cooperation
between the Company and the interest parties in creating stability, workforce and secured business.

The Company encourages the operation of business in accordance with transparency, honesty and high ethical standards
and has fixed the tasks and objectives to be acknowledged and understood by each and every member of the Board, the
Management and staff of the scope of the responsibilities according to the laws and Company regulations.

In order to follow the code of business conduct, the Company has therefore fixed the code of conduct for each director,
Management and staff to adhere and practice along the same lone, as follow:-

1. Shareholders
The Company strived at conducting its business in order to attain the best interest for the Company and the
shareholders as a whole. Its takes into consideration the positive operational results, secured growth and
competitiveness in order to create a long-term value added for the shareholders. It also has the duty to
disclosure information to create transparency and accountability to the shareholders.

2. Board of Directors
The Board of Directors recognizes the rights and equitable and fair looking after of the rights of each and every
group of interest parties.

3. Staff
The Company regards the staff as its most valuable asset and is the major contribution to the company
success. It therefore aims at continuous developing staff acknowledge and expertise to enable them to
achieve high-level ability. It also places much importance on staff well-being and welfare.

4. Customers

The Company strives at creating the highest satisfaction and credibility to customers who will receive the best
quality products and services with care and responsibility and the maintenance of good customer relationship.
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5. Trading Partners
The Company Places a great deal of importance to its trading partners/associates and treats them in accordance
to trading terms and conditions and contractual obligations, as well as fair and proper competition in a manner
which does not bring disgrace to its reputation or contrary to any law, and taking into due consideration the
equality, mutual interest and fair selection.

6. Creditors
The Company strives at performing its contractual obligations and conditions in respect of repayment, principle
and collateral.

7. Responsibility towards society and environment
As a Thai-owned company, the Company recognized that it plays a part in the society with the responsibility
of helping society, promotion public activities and realizing the importance of environment protection to
improve public environment and society.

8. Farticipation in political activities
The Company takes a neutral stance and does not support any particular political party, Every director
Management and staff of all levels may participate in political activities within the provision of the Constitution
as long as such participation does not cause any damage to Company.

9. Discipline and compliance with regulations
The Company endeavors to operate its business in accordance with ethical standards and discipline. Each
and every director, Management and staff perform within the legal framework and applicable rules and
regulations in the with corporate code of conduct and staff practices.

4. Disclosure of information and transparency

It is the Board’s policy to disclose important financial and non-financial information relating to Company business and
operational results accurately, adequately, timely in a transparent manner to enable shareholders and interest parties to
receive information fairly. Investor relations have been established to serve as Company representative in communication
information of interest of interest to shareholders, investors, analyst and related persons to receive important information on
the Company accurately. The Company disseminates such information via the SET channels of communication, newspapers
and Company website.

5. Board of Directors
Composition of the Board

The Board of Directors consisting of qualified and experienced persons from various fields is made up
of a minimum of 5 members and not exceeding 12. The directors appointed one of their members to preside as
Chairman. One or more vice-chairman may be appointed from members. The Company has diversified
its powers, roles and duties in formulating its corporate government policy and day-to-day administration.
Therefore, the Chairman of the Board and the President are not the same person. Moreover, the structure of
the Board also includes independent directors to ensure the balance of power and management
re-examination. There is also clear cut separation of powers and duties in the formulation of the corporate
governance policy and day-to-day management to prevent any one person from having unlimited powers.

The Board of Directors comprises at least 1 independent for every 3 directors, but the number of the independent
directors shall not be less than 3. Their qualifications are determined along the same line as those of the adult

committee members in accordance with the Announcement of the Securities Exchange of Thailand (SET) re:
qualifications of the audit committee members. Each Board member holds a 3 year term.
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Responsibilities of the Board

The Board of Directors has the powers and duties in conduction business in accordance with applicable laws,
Company objectives and  Articles of Association, and shareholders’ resolution on the basis of honesty; in directing
and maintaining maximum benefits to the Company and its shareholders both current and long-term; and in
complying with the rules and regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand, the Stock Exchange Commission and the
Stock Exchange market.

Thus, the Board of Directors established the vision, policies and main strategies, as well as formulates Operational
directions and monitors management efficient and effective compliance with the established policies and operational
reports to Board so as to attain maximum value added to the Company and the shareholders.

Selection of Directors

Directors are selected from qualifies persons according to background and experience from various fields of
occupation, possessing leadership skills, vision and the following qualification:-
1. The person should be qualifies persons according to the Public Companies Act and the Funds and stock
Exchange Market Act.
2. The person should possess knowledsge, skill and experience beneficial to business operation Determination and
ethical business conduct.
3. The person should possess an ability to use discretion in a straight forward manner, independent of Management
and other interest groups.
4. The person should possess an ability devote sufficient time and is responsible for his own conduct. Thus, at the
shareholders’ meetings, the directors are appointed according to following criteria and method
1.Each shareholder has one vote for each share.
2.Each shareholder shall use all of his votes according to (1) to appoint one or several directors. However, he
cannot allot any number of his votes to any such person.
3.Persons having the most votes shall be elected in respective order up to number of directors being elected at
that time. In case of two or more candidates having an equality of votes, exceeding the number of directors
being elected at that time, the Chairman shall have the casting vote.

Leadership skill and vision of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors consists of qualified persons with leadership skill, vision, freedom, in decision-making,
responsible for directing and monitoring business so as to achieve the maximum benefits to the Company
and the shareholders as a whole. It approves Company tasks, targets, business plans and budget as
proposed by Management and examines and oversees that operations are implemented accordingly to render
effective governance policy. Clear-cut division has also been made in respect of the duties and responsibilities
between the Board of Directors, Management and the Board of Directors and shareholders.

Remuneration for the Directors

The directors’ remuneration is fixed in a transparent manner and approved by the shareholders taking into account
the suitability and compliancy with the responsibilities as well Company financial standing. Directors assigned to sit
in other committees will receive additional remuneration in conjunction with the additional work volume. Including
management and staff remuneration shall be according to the policies, principles and rates fixed by the Board of
Directors which shall correspond to corporate and individual performance.
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Board of Directors’” Meeting

The Board meets once every quarter and special meetings can be convened as necessary. The notice convening
the meeting and relevant documents shall be sent to the directors by the secretary 7 days prior to each meeting to
afford the directors sufficient to make the proper review and study. The notice shall clearly specify the agenda and
full and complete documents. Each meeting shall take approximately one hour. Minutes of the meetings are to kept
in writing and certified by directors and can be accessed by directors and inspected by persons concerned

At least half of the number of directors shall be present to form a quorum. Decisions are made by the majority of votes.
Evaluation of Board Operational Results

The Board of Directors realizes and has continuously practiced good corporate governance policy in compliance with
established policies and has used it as a guideline in evaluating its own performance.

Moreover, the Company has encouraged the Board to train and provide knowledge relating to Directors’ duties and
responsibilities of and the nature of Company business operation continuously for the benefit of Directors’ performance.

Relationship of the Board of Directors

The Company is well aware of the relationship among the Board of Directors, top level Management and staff, has
therefore clearly separated their powers, duties, and responsibilities in the formulation of its policies and day-to-day
administration.

This includes the disclosure of important information accurately, fully, timely in a transparent manner in accordance
with the various applicable laws and regulations. The Company disseminates information via the SET channels if
communications, newspaper and Company website.

Auditing and responsibility towards work performance

The company gives a great deal importance to the internal control systems. In the past there has been on case of
internal control deficiency with any significant impact upon the opinion of the financial auditors. The Board has
audited, reviewed and acknowledged the performance of the internal audit office as an independent unit with the
duty of auditing performances to ensure proper and effective compliance with policies, plans, operational powers,
and regulations.

9.2 Sub - Committees

The company’s management structure consists of the Board of Directors and the Sub-Committees appointed by the Board
of Directors. The Board of Directors is tasked to set the Company’s visions, policies, and strategies as well as to guide the
Company’s direction. It also has a duty to supervise the Company’s operation department to ensure that it follows the
Company’s policies with efficiency and effectiveness as well as to report its performance to the Board of Directors in order
to benefit the Company and its shareholders. The Sub-Committees of Directors have a duty to complete tasks assigned by
the Board of Directors. The company have the Board of Directors and the Sub-Committees consisting of:
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Board of Directors The names of the Audit Committee has 3 year tenure, consisting of :

Mr.Photipong Lamsam Chairman

Mr.Poomchai Lamsam Vice Chairman / Chairman of the Remuneration and Selection Committee

Mr.Sara Lamsam Director / Chairman of the Executive Committee / Member of the Remuneration and
Selection Committee / Member of the Risk Management Committee

Mrs.Nualphan Lamsam Director

Mr.Pipop Kunasol Director and President / Member of the Executive Committee / Member of the Risk
Management Committee / Chairman of the Investment Committee

Dr.Sutee Mokkhavesa Director / Member of the Executive Committee / Member of the Risk
Management Committee / Member of the Investment Committee

Mrs.Chantra Purnariksha Independent Director

Mr.Vichate Tantiwanich Independent Director / Member of the Risk Management Committee

Mr.Anupon Likitpurkpaisan Independent Director / Chairman of the Risk Management Committee

Mr.Suebtrakul Soonthornthum  Independent Director / Chairman of the Audit Committee

Mr.Arpatsorn Bunnag Independent Director / Member of the Audit Committee / Member of the Remuneration

and Selection Committee
Mr.Poonpipat Aungurigul Independent Director / Member of the Audit Committee

Authorized Signatories

“The authorized directors who can sign to bind the Company are Mr. Photipong Lamsam, Mr. Poomchai Lamsam, Mr. Sara
Lamsam, Mrs. Nualphan Lamsam, Dr. Sutee Mokkhavesa, Mr. Pipop Kunasol with the condition requiring 2 directors to jointly
sign together with the Company’s seal affixed.”

Scope of Authority and duties of the Board of Directors.

The Board of Directors shall have the authority to oversee and manage the Company in accordance with the law,
objectives and regulations of the Company, including the resolution reached at the shareholders meetings. They must
do so with honesty by putting the benefits of the Company and shareholders ant heart. The Directors must also obey

the rules and regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and the Securities and Exchange Commission.

The Audit Committee The names of the Audit Committee has 2 year tenure, consisting of:

Mr.Suebtrakul Soonthornthum Chairman of the Audit Committee
Mr.Arpatsorn Bunnag Member of the Audit Committee
Mr.Poonpipat Aungurigul Member of the Audit Committee
Mr.Danu Sukhavat Secretary of the Audit Committee

Scope of authority and duties of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has the following duties and responsibilities to report to the Board of Directors:

1. To review the Company’s financial reporting process to ensure that it is accurate and adequate;

2. To review the Company’s internal control system and internal audit system to ensure that they are suitable and
efficient, to determine an internal audit unit’s independence, as well as to approve the appointment, transfer and
dismissal of the chief of an internal audit unit or any other unit in charge of an internal audit;

3. To review the Company’s compliance with the law on securities and exchange, the Exchange’s regulations, and
the laws relating to the Company’s business;

4. To consider, select and nominate an independent person to be the Company’s auditor, and to propose
such person’s remuneration, as well as to attend a non-management meeting with an auditor at least once a year,

5. Toreview the Connected Transactions, or the transactions that may lead to conflicts of interests, to ensure that they
are in compliance with the laws and the Exchange’s regulations, and are reasonable and for the highest benefit
of the Company;
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6. To prepare, and to disclose in the Company’s annual report, an audit committee’s report which must be
signed by the audit committee’s chairman and consist of at least the following information:
(@) An opinion on the accuracy, completeness and creditability of the Company’s financial report,
(b) An opinion on the adequacy of the Company’s internal control system,
(@ An opinion on the compliance with the law on securities and exchange, the Exchange’s regulations, or the
laws relating to the Company’s business,
(d) An opinion on the suitability of an auditor,
(e) An opinion on the transactions that may lead to conflicts of interests,
(f)  The number of the audit committee meetings, and the attendance of such meetings by each committee
member,
(g)  An opinion or overview comment received by the audit committee from its performance of duties in
accordance with the charter,
(h) Other transactions which, according to the audit committee’s opinion, should be known to the
shareholders and general investors,
7. To perform any other act as assigned by the Company’s board of directors, with the approval of the audit
committee.

Mr. Suebtrakul Soohornthum , Chairman of the Audit Committee has knowledge and experiences to examine
the reliability of the financial statements.

The Remuneration and Selection Committee Consists of 3 directors, at least one of whom must be an independent
director. They serve 3 years in office.

Mr.Poomchai Lamsam Chairman of the Remuneration and Selection Committee
Mr.Sara Lamsam Member of the Remuneration and Selection Committee
Mr.Arpatsorn Bunnag Member of the Remuneration and Selection Committee
Mrs.Thipsuda Kuenkong Secretary of the Remuneration and Selection Committee

Scope of authority and duties of the Remuneration and Selection Committeg

1. To consider remuneration for the Board of Directors and the Sub-Committees.

2. To consider remuneration for the President and/or the person holding the highest position of the Company,
including salaries, annual bonuses and other types of payments; and to propose their considerations to the
Board meetings for approval.

3. To review and set remuneration for internal officers as proposed ay the Management Department, including the
annual salary increment, the restructure of salaries and the annual bonuses; to propose their considerations to
the Board of Directors; and to advise on their considerations to the Management Department.

4. To select capable, qualified individuals without any characteristics deemed unfit by the law and other supervising
units to assume the position of President and the highest-ranking executives of the Company when such
positions are available; and to propose their selection to the Board of Directors for approval.

5. To carry other tasks as assigned by the Board of Directors.

The Risk Management Committee The name of The Risk Management Committee has 3 years tenure, consisting of :

Mr.Anupon Likitpurkpaisan Chairman of the Risk Management Committee

Mr.Sara Lamsam Member of the Risk Management Committee

Mr.Pipop Kunasol Member of the Risk Management Committee

Dr.Sutee Mokkhavesa Member of the Risk Management Committee

Mr.Vichate Tantiwanich Member of the Risk Management Committee
Mr.Kachornjak Chalothorn Member of the Risk Management Committee

Mr.Danu Sukhavat Member and Secretary of the Risk Management Committee
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The Risk Management Committee

1.

2.

3.

a.

5.

Setting up to meeting cooperates with executive committee to operational plan to assign standard of
the risk management and standard of control the risk management, addition the risk management
system to aim into a conversation for strategies, goal and to direction of management to business plan to
present to Executive committee.

To regulated and recommend to the Board of Directors about the policy of risk management, standard
of operations process, strategies and performance to risk condition for confidence that the company has
proper and adequate internal control system.

To followed and reviewed the company’s policy and the risk management system are sufficient and to
compliance with the company’s plan.

To reported to the Board of Directors has been held through it’s sustain. That mean to development and
adjust to be consistent which company’s policy and standard the risk management.

To carry other tasks as assigned by the Board of Directors.

The Executive Committee Consisted of representative from the Board of Directors and the Management Department,

to investigate the administration and management aspect.

Mr.Sara Lamsam Chairman of the Executive Committee

Mr.Pipop Kunasol Member of the Executive Committee

Dr.Sutee Mokkhavesa Member of the Executive Committee
Mr.Kachornjak Chalothorn Member of the Executive Committee

Mr.Danu Sukhavat Member of the Executive Committee

Mrs.Thipsuda Kuenkong Member and Secretary of the Executive Committee

Scope of authority and duties of the Executive Committee

1.

2.

3.

4.

Cooperate cooperates with the company’s daily administration department and in processing the business
plan and budget.

Review and approve on general agenda and complete assigned task from the Board of Directors and report
to the board.

Review other matter which is not a usual agenda and/or not in the business plan and budget that can affect
the company’s financial status, income, or reputation; including reviewing a newly launched activity or product,
and report to the Board of Directors for further consideration.

Verify the risk management procedure, including legal procedure, rules and related policies.

The Investment Committee Consisted of representative from the Board of Directors and the Management

Department, to choose even more effective funding resources and financial structure which comprised of:

1.
2.
3.

Scope of

N

~N O U1 AW

Mr. Pipop Kunasol Chairman of the Investment Committee

Dr. Sutee Mokkhavesa Member of the Investment Committee

Mr. Danu Sukhavat Member and Secretary of the Investment Committee
authority and duties of the Investment Committee

. Review company’s capital structure
. Consider company’s balance sheet management such as capital raising, credit lines with financial

institutions (including asset-liability management policy)

. Consider company’s asset management

. Consider liquidity and company’s funding policy to be consistent with company’s medium term business plan
. Plan and develop company’s financial strategy

. Consider topics which will affect company’s credit rating

. Carry other tasks as assigned by the board of director
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9.3 Selection of Directors and Executives
Selection of Directors

The directors has the power to select a qualified person and present it at a meeting of shareholders for voting weather the
person can join the Board of directors, by considering the majority vote from the present shareholders. In any case, other
than a termination period, that a position in the board is available, the Board of recruitment shall be assigned to replace the
available position. However, this has to be consent with a vote no less than votes from the remaining directors. Thus, the
person whom was selected shall remain in the position until the termination period of the prior-director.

Directors are selected from qualities persons according to background and experience from various fields of occupation,
possessing leadership skills, vision and the following qualifications

1. The person should be qualified according to the public Companies Act and the Funds and Stock Exchange
Market Act.

2. The person should posses of knowledge, skill, and experience beneficial to business operation, determination
and ethical business conduct.

3. The person should posses an ability to use discretion in a straight forward manner, independent ofManagemen
and other interest groups.

4. The person should posses ability devotes sufficient time and is responsible for his own conduct.

Independent Committee Recruitment

Searching for an independent committee, the Remuneration and Selection Directors will be responsible in determining
and considering candidates that have the proper qualifications; the names of the candidates will be submitted to
the Management for final consideration. These names will then be taken to discussion with the shareholders. The
shareholders will then select individuals of the list and an independent committee will be formed.

The independent committee will be individuals that can work independently in accordance with the announcements
of the Committee of Market Investments and the Office of Stock Market Supervision. Furthermore, the individuals of
the committee must always put forth the interest of each and every single shareholder of the company and assure
that there will be no conflict of interest and are independent from the Management. These individuals must be able to
attend meetings and will submit their suggestions to the Management openly. The qualifications of the individuals of
the independent committee are as follows:

1.1s a current shareholder, and have shares that can represent all the licensed agents. Shares that are of the
corporation, conglomerates, group companies, majority shareholder, or any group or individuals that may influence
on registered licensed agents will be considered as one voice equivalent to the independent committee.

2.1s not currently, or never had been a member of the Board of Management, an employee, staff, consultant, or in
any positions that have received financial compensation from the company or in a position to have influence on
the licensed agents. If an individual falls in one of the categories, eligibility for the candidacy will be open
oncethatindividualhasrelinquishalltieswiththememberforatleasttwoyearsasof the datefromresignationtillapplication.
This article does not apply to the independent committee member that was previously a government official, a consultant
of a government agency that is a majority shareholder, or individuals that may influence on registered licensed agents.

3.1s not a family relative or have any relationship (e.g. any civil documentation explaining family or relationship) with
the company’s Management, majority shareholder, individuals that are recommended as management, individuals
that may influence on licensed agents, or minor companies.

4. Does not have or used to have business relationships with a licensed agent, the corporation, companies that are
minor or part of the group of companies, majority shareholder, or individuals that can influence licensed agents, or
any association that could influence that outcome of the independent decision. Is not or used to be a shareholder
that is associated with individuals that are associated with individuals that influence licensed agents, the corporation,

minor companies, group companies, majority shareholder, individuals that influence licensed agents. If an individual
falls in one of the categories, eligibility for the candidacy will be open once that individual has relinquish all ties
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with the stated conditions for at least two years as of the date from resignation till application. Business relationships
as mentioned in previously also includes documentation of trade transactions that are part of daily business
conduct, renting or leasing real estate, reports on property and services, giving or receiving any form of financial
support in forms of receiving or lending, assuring on behalf, assuring with property in debts, or any forms of
activity that fall in the same category, which may result in the registered licensed agent or members of any party
of a contract bind to a debt. 3% of the property value used by the requested licensed agent or may worth more
than twenty million Baht, or which item is deemed more valuable. The total sum of debts will be calculated
based on the value of terms in accordance with the announcement of Office of Market Investments Supervision.
All terms will be reviewed according to the surmounted sum of debts, calculated according to the debts that have
occurred over the previous year before the current business relationship with the mentioned individuals.

5.1s not or used to be an account auditor of a licensed agent, corporation, minor company, group company, majority
shareholder, individual that can influence licensed agents, and a shareholder that may have business interests with
account audit offices; that currently has an existing audit of the licensed agent, corporation, minor company, group
company, majority shareholder, individual that can influence licensed agents, unless that individual has relinquish
all ties with the stated conditions for at least two years as of the date from resignation till application, will they be
eligible for application.

6.1s not or used to be an individual that have given expertise services, which includes consultation on legal or
financial matters, and receive a compensation of the service fees exceed more than two million Bath per annum
from the licensed agent, corporation, minor company, group company, majority shareholder, individual that can
influence licensed agents, and a shareholder that have business interest, individual that can influence or partners
of the individual that is providing the expertise services. Unless that individual has relinquished all ties with the stated
conditions for at least two years as of the date from resignation till application, will they be eligible for
application.

7.1n not a committee member that is acting on behalf of the licensed agent, majority shareholder, or a shareholder
that is associated with the majority shareholder.

8.1s not an individual that is currently conducting business that is similar with the company, which may cause
conflicts of interests with the licensed agent or minor companies, or have shares with other conglomerates, or is a
committee member that has managing influence, an employee, a staff, consultant that currently receives monthly
compensation, or hold more than 1% shares in other companies that practice similar business as the company,
which may cause conflicts of interests with the licensed agent or minor companies.

9. Does not have any matters that inhibit his/her ability to express opinions independently about the Management
of he licensed agent.After appointment as a member of the independent committee that have the complete
qualifications stated in Articles 1 to 9, the independent committee will have a task instructed by the Management
to review the current business practices of the licensed agent, corporation, minor company, group companies
that have shares equivalent to majority shareholder, individual that can influence licensed agents; the decision will
be concluded by a collective decision. According to the decisions stated in Articles 2, 4, 5, and 6, on matters of the
applications of the candidates two years prior the date of application. The conditions of application will officially
be in effect from July 1, 2010 onwards.

In conditions where the individual was nominated by the licensed agent to be appointed as a member of the
independent committee, and that individual is or used to have business relationships or provided expertise
services that exceed the sum stated in Article 4 or 6, the licensed agent will have an extension on the
conditions that state the existing business relationship and expertise services that exceed the stated
sum. This extension will be in effect upon the license agent demonstrates to the Management of the
company that the consideration process is in accordance with Charter 89/7, which states that appointing
the concerned individual does not have any effect on the responsibilities or process of giving independent
suggestions. The following clause is a transparent explanation found in the documents of the shareholder
meeting on the subject of appointing the independent committee.
a. The characteristics of the business relationship or expertise services provided to the respected
individual does not fall in the category stated.
b. Reasons and pending necessity in appointing the respected individuals as members of the
independent committee.
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c. The comments of the Management of the licensed agent concering the appointment of the
respected individuals as members of the independent committee in the interests as stated in
Article 5 and 6 concerning the term “partner”, is defined as individuals that are certified by the Office
of Licensed Auditors or individuals that provide expertise services and ratified on the account audit
reports, or the expertise service reports (depending on the case), on behalf of the company only.

Selection of Executives

Concerning the members of the company’s executive board, the Board of Directors is responsible for the consideration and
selection of candidates that are eligible and qualified for the appointment of the designated positions from The Head of Group
and higher. The names of the candidates will be submitted to the Remuneration and Selection Committee for consideration
and official appointed by the Board of Directors.

Furthermore, concerning the matters of appointing the Director of the Internal investigation Committee, the Board of Directors
is responsible for the consideration and selection of candidates that are eligible and qualified for the appointment of the
designated positions from department directors and higher. Thus, the names of the candidates will further be submitted
to the Committee of Auditors for consideration. Next the names of the candidates will be forwarded to the Remuneration
and Selection Committee for the final approval of appointment. After the members of the Remuneration and Selection
Committee conclude upon their decision, the appointment will be made official to the Board of Directors.

9.4 Corporate Governance in Company and Subsidiary Company
-None-
9.5 Supervision of Usage of Internal Information

With respect to the supervision of usage of internal information, the Company has assigned the Company’s directors and
executives as defined by the Notification of the SEC to have the duties to report the sale-purchase of shares/possession of
securities of the Company in forms 59-1 and 59-2, and also assigned the directors, executives and employees at all levels to
have the duties to keep confidential internal information and documents which cannot be disclosed to outsiders as the
disclosure thereof may lead to benefit seeking for themselves or families or associates wrongfully such as the information
affecting share price, trade secret, invention formula belonging to the Company as well as the usage and/or disclosure of
internal information for the purposes of purchasing, selling, transferring and accepting transfer of securities issued by the
Company before such information will be disclosed to the public.

In this regard, the Company has prepared a written code of ethics for employees so that the employees at all levels will be
informed and adhere to this code of ethics as guidelines for practice and basic standard for the employees to conduct
themselves ethically. This code of ethics shows that the Company is determined to comply with the law, rules, regulations
and articles of association of the Company. By this code of ethics, the employees will be made aware of what they should
be careful and will prevent them from doing any acts which constitute a breach of law, rules, regulations and articles of
association and tarnish the reputation of the Company.
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9.6 Remuneration of Auditors
Appointment and Consideration of Remuneration of Auditors

The Audit Committee considered and proposed appointment of certified auditors and their remuneration by proposing the
matter to the Board of Directors of the Company in the appointment of the Company’s auditors each year for approval by
the shareholders’ meeting.

In this regard, in the year 2016, the shareholders’ meeting considered approving appointment of the Company’s auditors and
fixing their remuneration for the fiscal year 2016 as follows:

The auditors from KPMG Phoomchai Audit Ltd. consisting of
- Mr.Vairoj Jindamaneepitak, Certified Public Accountant No. 3565 and/or
- Miss Somboon Supasiripinyo, Certified Public Accountant No. 3731 and/or

- Mr.Chanchai Sakulkerdsin, Certified Public Accountant No. 6827,

The afore mentioned 3 persons had no relationship or conflict of interest with the Company / affiliated companies /

executives / major shareholders or any persons related to such persons. Thus, they were independent in auditing and
commenting on the Company’s financial statements. The audit fee for the fiscal year 2016 with the total amount of 1,400,000

bath.
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10. Corporate Social Responsibilities : CSR

Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited recognizes the importance of the good corporate governance of the Company
along with the business operation under the corporate social and environmental responsibility. The awareness of social
responsibility is raised in the employees in order to raise the awareness on this issue even more.

The Company has set up the policy of social responsibility and proposed the approval of a policy of social responsibility
to the Board of Directors to be used as the framework for the operation and planning for social and environmental
responsibility as follows:

1. Operate the business with fairness, honesty, law-abiding to related regulations coupled with social and environmental
involvement including the stakeholders of the Company following the Company’s corporate governance policy.

2. Respect for human rights and treatment of people in the organization fairly. The Company treats all employees
as valuable resources and they are important factors in enabling the Company to the achievement. The Company,
therefore, takes care and gives the fair practices in terms of the opportunity, returns, nomination, as well as the
potential development and the improvement of working environment for employees to have a better quality of life.

3. The anti-corruption is to encourage employees not to perform the exploitation or any act which causes the
conflicts of interest to the Company and / or operate the business related to the Company’s business or in the same
type of Company’s business. The employees must not cause damage to the Company whether directly or indirectly
including not calling for the property and / or any other benefits dishonestly with the customers, partners, creditors,
debtors or use the authority for exploitation. The employees must avoid accepting any gift or souvenir from those
who do business with the company. This may lead to the interests or make other persons understand that the
interests are dishonestly.

4. Promote the projects or social activities and support the environmental conservation
Guidelines for the practice under the policy of social responsibility of the Company in 2016

1. Operate the business with fairness, honesty, law-abiding to related regulations coupled with social and
environmental involvement including the stakeholders of the Company following the Company’s corporate
governance policy

The Company has the operations with virtue, honesty, and law-abiding to related rules and regulations consistently and
constantly by taking into account of the rights of all stakeholders. The Company recognizes that the sustainable growth of
the Company will not occur without the participation of these persons. The group of stakeholders consisted of:

Shareholders The Company operates business with transparency and accountability with the good operational performance
and steady growth based on the principles of good corporate governance to create value for the shareholders in the long
term. There is also the disclosure of data and information accurately and completely via the channels and media of the
Stock Exchange of Thailand and the company’s website (www.pl.co.th) so that the shareholders can access and receive
the information equally. Also in the 2016 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, the Company provides opportunities for
shareholders to exercise the right to propose the agenda in the General Meeting of Shareholders and propose the names of
persons to be elected as directors. The criteria are revealed in the Company’s website (www.pl.co.th).

Customers From the experience in operating the leasing business for more than 29 years, the Company has an effective
management system by focusing on the customers to receive the satisfaction of a full service of the company. By providing
quality services and meet the needs of the customers as possible including the provision of accurate information to complete
the conditions of service, the Company pays attention to the counseling and plans for the use of appropriate vehicles to the
customers. This also includes the listening to the complaints of customers to develop and enhance the appropriate services
to meet their highest satisfaction.
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The Company also has the system to monitor the channels for complaints or feedback from customers via the Call
Center and Customer Complaint Management from SGS following the quality standard ISO 9001: 2008 certified by
the Institute of the United Kingdom, UKAS. The customers contact through Call Center will receive the preliminary
service from the employees immediately with the coordination to solve the problems and report the progress to the
customers. Moreover, the Company also conducted a survey on the customer’s satisfaction on the services in various
fields; the Service of Call Center, Roadside assistance, service in accidents, maintenance, calling for car maintenance
service, service of car replacement, and other services to be used as the information to improve and correct the
shortcomings in the operation of the Company. The Company will know the needs of the customers even more which
will be useful for developing the Company’s services to respond the demands of customers which are various at
present.

Partners With the business operation that relies on various transactions with suppliers, the Company focuses on the
right treatment to the partners as appropriate from the process of asset purchasing that will be leased to customers and
the distribution of assets at the end of the lease contracts. To ensure the integrity, transparency and accountability, the
Company has fostered good relations between the partners by visiting to discuss and exchange the ideas in business
together occasionally. With the cooperation of the company and its partners, all parties can be managed effectively
with mutual respect on the basis of the anti-fraud which the Company adheres to and always conforms to.

Competitors As the company has continually grown in leasing business for a long time, it is partly from the Company’s
operation within the framework of fair competition with professional integrity without seeking for the trade secrets of
competitors or committing any unlawful act. We believe that with good ethics in business operations, the Company’s
business will be enabled to grow sustainably in the future.

Creditors As the Company has the investment mainly by borrowing, the Company must have good financial management
and strictly conform to the terms of the loan agreement with the financial institutes. The Company will not spend the
loan in the activities contrary to the purpose of the loan of the creditor as well as controlling the management system
of loan repayment and interest to be fully and on time both for short-term and long-term loan. In addition, when the
information of the Company has changed significantly affecting the terms of the loan, the accurate and complete
information must be notified to all creditors.

2. Respect for human rights and treatment of people in the organization fairly. The Company treats all
employees as valuable resources and they are important factors in enabling the Company to the achievement.
The Company, therefore, takes care and gives the fair practices in terms of the opportunity, returns, nomination,
as well as the potential development and the improvement of working environment for employees to have a
better quality of life

The Company believes that the employees play the significant role in driving business to advance the goals of success
and sustainable growth. The Company gives priority to treat all employees equally and fairly, according to human rights
coupled with raising the great awareness to the executives and all levels of employees to recognize the importance
of engagement in practices that benefit the society.

The Company also encourages the employees to develop their potential by training the employees according
to the positions of employees.The Company also encouraged the employees to develop potentiality to suit their
positions and duties whereby in 2016 the employees were sent to attend training and seminar courses, divided into
23 external courses and 2 internal courses, totaling 25 courses. The number of employees who attended the training
and seminars courses was 85 persons. Moreover, the employees have been provided with appropriate welfare such
as annual check-up and good working environment, and have been encouraged to play sports whereby football club
and badminton club have been set up to promote good health. Besides, the football for friendship was held for
the employees every year.

3. The anti-corruption is to encourage employees not to perform the exploitation or any act which causes
the conflicts of interest to the Company and / or operate the business related to the Company’s business or in
the same type of Company’s business. The employees must not cause damage to the Company whether directly
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or indirectly including not calling for the property and / or any other benefits dishonestly with the customers,
partners, creditors, debtors or use the authority for exploitation. The employees must avoid accepting any gift
or souvenir from those who do business with the company. This may lead to the interests or make other persons

understand that the interests are dishonestly.

The Company is determined to carry on business operation with honesty, transparency, fairness, responsibility and care
under relevant laws, rules, regulations and standards. Therefore, the Company has established the “Anti-Corruption
Policy” (Attachment 5) to clarify anti-corruption activities so that all of the directors, executives and employees shall
acknowledge, understand and strictly adhere to these working principles. Besides, as the Company does not encourage
the employees to seek personal benefits, the “Employee Code of Conduct” (Attachment 5) has been established as a
fundamental standard for the Employees to behave. Every employee shall sign to acknowledge and adhere to the
Anti-Corruption Policy and the Employee Code of Conduct once they start to work with the Company.

In this regard, to reflect the Company’s commitment to carry on business operation with honesty, transparency and
fairness, the Company has already participated in the declaration of intent to join the Collective Action Coalition against

Corruption or CAC.

4. Promote the projects or social activities and support
The environmental conservation

The Company always operates the business with morality and ethics as the Company believes that society is
fundamentally important. To take into account the social responsibility is one of the Company’s missions, which is
particularly important. In 2016, the Company has arranged social and environmental activities through the following
projects:

Deliver Dream and Create Future Project (Song-Fan-Pan-Ana-Khod)

On Saturday 18th June 2016, the Company arranged the Project of Deliver Dream Create Future. Mr. Pipop Kunasol,
Managing Director and Miss Thipsuda Khuenkhong, Deputy Managing Director leaded official team to sponsor a lunch for
165 children at Ratchaburi Home for Cerebral palsy Children. This foster home has been established to solve the
problem of increasing number of cerebral palsy children who were abandoned and discarded. Therefore, in order to
help take care of, improve and enhance those children’s quality of life, the Company donated necessary items such as
disinfectant, disposable diaper, floor cleaner, detergent and etc.

The Company hopes that this activity arranged by the Company would help enhance those children’s quality of life and
encourage the employees to give and share.
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Bamboo Plantation Project

Phatra Leasing Plc. realizes the importance of social and environmental activities so the Company has voluntarily
planted bamboos and teaks at Holistic Health Care Centre for Monks Project, Kanchanaburi Province on Saturday 6th
August 2016. This project was successful with cooperation between the Company’s employees and the health care
center’s officials, who jointly planted bamboos on an area of 10 rai for the purpose of absorbing carbon dioxide, provid-
ing shade and improving landscape.

This project would not only encourage the employees to realize the importance of plantation, but also build a good
food source or community kitchen as bamboos are natural products which can be utilized directly or indirectly by the
community and the officials such as eating and career building whereby the villagers may sell unprocessed or processed
products from bamboos.

Parallel Bar Project

Due to the Bamboo Plantation Project, by which the Company organized the activity to plant bamboos and teaks at
Holistic Health Care Centre for Monks Project, Kanchanaburi Province, it can be seen that most of monks are suffering
from chronic diseases such as diabetes and hypertension. The main cause is malnutrition because monks must receive
food from people. The food is usually too sweet, too oily or too salty. Ban Wang Dong Health Promoting Hospital has
initiated the Holistic Health Care Centre for Monks Project, Kanchanaburi Province for the purpose of providing treat-
ment and physical therapy for sick monks.

The Company realizes the importance of the Buddhists’ duties. Therefore, parallel bars have been given for the monks

who may require physical therapy as said by Buddha, “Whoever wishes to take care of me, should take care of the sick.”

Project of music therapy for philanthropy

Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited contributed money to support the costs of music therapy program for
philanthropy by arranging the concert at the Medical Center Clinic. The Company has provided the ongoing support
from 2013 till present.

For the Medical Center Clinic, it is the project to treat patients in lower rates than private hospitals. The project
has been operated by Ban Buengvejjakit Co. Ltd which is the personal company of His Majesty the King. This activity
helped relaxing the patients, doctors, nurses and staffs of the hospital. This is also the transfer of Thai music which is

valuable both composers and literary arts no to be lost from the society.
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11. Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board of Directors and the Audit Committee give great importance to the internal control systems. After consideration,
the Board of Directors and the Audit Committee are of the view that the Company’s internal control systems are
sufficient and appropriate without deficiency which may have significant impact on the opinion of the auditors in
financial statements. The internal control systems of the Company can be summarized as follows:

Internal Control

The Board of Directors has provided the internal control systems which cover all aspects including financial control,
operational control, operation supervision and risk management to ensure compliance with relevant laws, rules and
regulations whereby the Internal Audit Office is an independent unit which performs the duties to examine internal
operations of the Company, to assess the sufficiency and appropriateness of the internal control systems, and to report
the examination results directly to the President and the Audit Committee, as well as to impose measures to prevent
the directors and executives from selling and purchasing securities by using inside information (insider trading) and from
seeking benefits for themselves or others wrongfully (abusive self-dealing).

Prevention of Conflict of Interest

The Board of Directors is careful with connected transactions and the conflict of interest whereby the Company had
specified the consideration steps carefully, honestly, reasonably and independently within ethical frame, and disclosed
information fully in order to prevent the Company from conflict of interest. The Audit Committee had considered
connected transactions which may lead to conflict of interest. The Audit Committee then was of the view that the
related party transactions in the past year were the transactions in the same manner to the transactions made with
other business in general. The Company disclosed such transactions in the notes to financial statements and there was
no conflict of interest.

In this regard, in relation to the supervision of internal information usage, the Company prohibited the Board of Directors
and the executives of the Company from usage and/or disclosure of internal information for the purposes of purchasing,
selling, transferring and accepting transfer of securities issued by the Company before such information would be
disclosed to the public. In this regard, the Board of Directors and all executives acknowledged the regulations of the
SEC and the SET re report on sale and purchase of securities and properly complied with the said provisions thereof.

AS of December 30" 2016, the Company ensures the appropriate disclosure of report on changes to the portfolio of
its directors, executives and company Secretary as follows :

Number of Warrants to Purchase the
Number of Shares (PL)
Company’s Ordinary shares
shareholder (PL) Increase/ (PL-W1) Increase/
% %
15 June 15| 30 Dec 16 decrease | 15 June 15| 30 Dec 16 decrease
1. Mr.Photipong Lamsam
- Mr.Photipong Lamsam 2,689,866 169,866 | 0.028% | -2,520,000 | 244,155 224,155 | 0.451% -
- Yupong Co., Ltd. (a juristic 12,323,402 | 12,323,402 | 2.066% - 1,227,800 | 1,227,800 | 2.470% -
person holding more than
30% of shares)
Total | 15,013,268 | 12,493,268 | 2.094% |-2,520,000 | 1,451,955 | 1,451,955 | 2.921% -
2. Mr.Poomchai Lamsam
- Mr.Poomchai Lamsam 3,540,000 | 3,540,000 | 0.593% - 295,000 295,000 | 0.593% -
- Mrs.Jutaporn Lamsam 20,000 20,000 0.003% - 1,666 1,666 0.003% -
(spouse)
Total | 3,560,000 | 3,560,000 | 0.597% - 296,666 296,666 |0.597% -

Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited Annual Report 2016




Internal Control and Risk Management

Number of Shares (PL)

Number of Warrants to Purchase the

Company’s Ordinary shares

Shareholder (PL) Increase/ (PL-W1) Increase/
15 June | 30 Dec 16 % decrease | 15 June | 30 Dec % decrease
15 15 16
3. Mr.Sara Lamsam
Total | 960,000 1,800,000 | 0.302% | +840,000 | 80,000 80,000 | 0.161% -
4. Mrs.Nualphan Lamsam
Total | 960,000 1,800,000 | 0.302% | +840,000 | 80,000 80,000 | 0.161% -
5. Mr.Pipop Kunasol - - - - - - - -
6. Dr.Sutee Mokkhavesa - - - - - - - -
7. Mrs.Chantra Purnariksha - - - - - - - _
8. Mr.Vichate Tantiwanich - - - - - - - _
9. Mr.Anupon Likitpurkpaisan - - - - - - - -
10. Mr.Suebtrakul - - - - - - - -
Soonthornthum
11. Mr.Arpatsorn Bunnag
Total | 296,000 296,000 0.05% - 24,666 24,666 | 0.050% -
12. Mr.Poonpipat Aungurigul - - - - - - - -
13. Mr.Kachornjak Chalothorn
- Mr.Kachornjak Chalothorn 254,661 254,661 0.043% - 22,221 22,221 0.045% -
- Mrs.Sutarut Chalothorn - 200,000 0.034% | +200,000 - 16,666 0.003% +16,666
(Spouse)
Total | 254,661 454,661 | 0.077% | +200,000 | 22,221 38,887 | 0.048% +16,666
14. Mrs.Thipsuda Kuenkong
-Mr.Apichat Kuenkong
(spouse) 1,952,000 1,952,000 | 0.327% - 162,833 162,833 0.328% -
Total | 1,952,000 | 1,952,000 | 0.327% - 162,833 | 162,833 | 0.328% -
15. Mr.Soottichai Sombatsiri - - - - - - - -
16. Mr.Thanan Suebsiri
Total | 20,000 20,000 0.003% - 1,666 1,666 0.003% -
17. Mr.Naruepol Watanakun - - - - - - - -
18. Mr.Danu Sukhavat - - - - - - - -
19. Mrs.Karaked Junvanitrattana - - - - - - - -

L@

Notes

Wannaporn Phormprapha (daughter) and 840,000 shares to Mr. Sara Lamsam (son).

()]

Mrs. Chumporn Suwanbutr (her mother).
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Risk Management

For the risk management of liquidity, the Company has found the sources of loans, both short and long terms,
to give the time to repay the amount of debts corresponding to the value of the rental income to be received
in each period in order to prevent cash flow problems insufficient for the cash flow in each period.

For the management of credit risk or the risk of rental payment ability, the Company is careful in selecting the customers
by using Sponsoring for approving as each sponsor will have the view and the broader idea to be more discreet. This
will reflect the quantity of the debtors who have problem with the Company in the low level. Moreover, the Company
also has the system to track customer payment carefully including the provision for doubtful accounts adequately.
Besides, the Company pays attention to the study of the fluctuations in the entire economy of the world and regional
environmental trends as well as factors that may directly affect the Company’s business.

Furthermore, for the management of interest rate risk arising from the changes in the interest rates on loans in each
period, this is caused by the rental which is the main income of the Company is set to be fixed and cannot be changed
during the lease term even though the loan interest rate has changed. The majority of the Company’s debts are long-
term debts with the fixed interest rate throughout the term of the loan for reducing the risk of the above interest rate.

The Company has the risk management in the marketing and competition by selecting the base of juristic person customers

with good credit quality. There is also the attempt to distribute the customers in each group of industry. Moreover, the
Company also focuses on the risk management of scrap value for maximum effectiveness.
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12. Related Parties Transaction

Account details and operations of the company that are associated with other companies, which are average activities
of the company. The report is based on the average market price, or according to the prior agreement in which the
market price wasn’t stated. The company specified the standard value, process of authorization, and the individuals
that are authorized the transaction of the stated price. The company always considers the matters of appropriateness
and fairness in forecasting price. According to the reports submitted by the account auditors, there was a disclosure
of information that was associated with one another. The reports are in the report’s footnotes of the budget report
and part of the business conduct of the company. The company will give a detailed explanation of the information as
follows:

Cross over entries with vested interest

Companies Name Type of Business Pel'sc:r;irtiage Relationship
Muang Thai Life Assurance PLC. Life-Insurance 10.00 Shareholders and some common directors
Muang Thai Insurance PLC. Non-Life Insurance 8.89 Shareholders and some common directors
Muang Thai Real Estate PLC. Property 0.00 Party with same directors

Net in value of asset held for lease
Unit : Million Baht

As at 31 Dec 2014 | As at 31 Dec 2015 As at 31 Dec 2016

Name Relationship Value |Proportion| Value | Proportion | Value | Proportion
(%) (%) (%)
Muang Thai Life Assurance PLC. Shareholders 105.77 0.90 110.94 0.94 119.99 0.98
and some
common
directors
Muang Thai Insurance PLC. Shareholders 40.99 0.35 46.46 0.39 53.19 0.44
and some
common
directors
Prepaid Insurance Premium
Unit : Million Baht
Name Relationship As at 31 Dec 2014 | As at 31 Dec 2015 | Asat 31 Dec 2016
Muang Thai Insurance PLC. Shareholders and 50.34 49.95 42.32
some common
directors
Accrued Insurance Premium
Unit : Million Baht
Name Relationship As at 31 Dec 2014 | Asat 31 Dec 2015 | Asat 31 Dec 2016
Muang Thai Insurance PLC. Shareholders and 4.59 4.79 4.32
some common
directors
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Unit : Million Baht

Name

Relationship

31 Dec 2014
(12 Months)
Jan 14-Dec 14

31 Dec 2015
(12 Months)
Jan 15-Dec 15

31 Dec 2016
(12 Months)
Jan 16-Dec 16

Muang Thai Insurance PLC. |Shareholders and some 97.90 94.02 93.18
common directors
Rebate Insurance
Unit : Million Baht
31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2016

Name

Relationship

(12 Months)
Jan 14-Dec 14

(12 Months)
Jan 15-Dec 15

(12 Months)
Jan 16-Dec 16

Muang Thai Insurance PLC.

Shareholders and some
common directors

9.99

10.43

9.32
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13. Financial Overview

Independent Auditor’s Report
Independent auditor’s report for financial statements for the year ended between 2014 and 2016 is to express an
opinion on these financial statement present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the company and
its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards.

Year Auditor Audit Company Type of Report

2016 Mr. Viroj Jindamaneepitak KPMG Poomchai Audit Co., Ltd. Unqualified opinion
(Jan 16 - Dec 16)

2015 Mr. Viroj Jindamaneepitak KPMG Poomchai Audit Co., Ltd. Unqualified opinion*
(Jan 15 - Dec 15)

2014 Mr. Viroj Jindamaneepitak KPMG Poomchai Audit Co., Ltd. Unqualified opinion
(Jan 14 - Dec 14)

Note : * According to standard accounting 19th edition (revised 2014), the benefit for employee, it is determined to find
out immediate gains and losses on actuarial estimates in other comprehensive income and terminated the traditional
practice. The company changed accounting policy for this matter by revising backdate financial statement yearend as
of 31 December 2014 which shown the revision as comparison data as described in note 3 for yearend 31 December
2015.

Financial Overview (Separate financial statement)
Unit : Million Baht

2014 2015 2016
Jan 14- Dec 14 | Jan 15- Dec 15 | Jan 16- Dec 16

Rental income from operating lease contracts 2,811.59 2,894.27 2,868.19
Income from finance lease contracts 113.89 108.42 107.85
Revenue from sale of assets under operating lease contracts 768.60 656.40 1,150.30
Gain on disposal of equipment 5.43 4.43 1.54
Other income 37.04 41.08 46.55
Total income 3,736.55 3,704.60 4,174.43
Costs and operating expenses 3,165.86 3,118.05 3,745.27
Financial costs 393.16 368.45 320.79
Income tax expense 37.34 47.11 (111.81)
Total costs and expenses 3,596.43 3,533.61 3,954.25
Net Profit (loss) 140.19 171.00 220.17
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Earnings (loss) per share net 0.31 0.32 0.37
Number of shares (shares) 447,369,569 596,492,753 596,492,753
Current assets 1,296.10 1,487.16 1,534.58
Non-current assets 11,297.28 11,425.03 11.695.11
Total assets 12,593.38 12,912.19 13,229.69
Current liabilities 3,937.68 4,108.33 4,520.44
Non-current liabilities 6,561.67 6,164.31 5,957.04
Total liabilities 10,499.35 10,272.63 10,477.48
Equity 2,094.03 2,639.55 2,752.21
Book value per share (Baht / share) 4.68 4.96 4.61
Dividends (Baht per share) 0.17 0.17 -
Financial Highlight

2014 2015 2016

Jan 14- Dec 14 | Jan 15- Dec 15 | Jan 16- Dec 16

Profitability Ratio
Gross profit margin 23.74% 23.76% 22.03%
Interest Income @ 7.10% 6.60% 5.83%
Interest expenses 4.05% 3.74% 3.28%
Net Interest Income 3.05% 2.86% 2.55%
Net profit margin 3.75% 4.62% 5.27%
Return on equity 6.71% 7.22% 8.17%

2014 2015 2016

Jan 14- Dec 14

Jan 15- Dec 15

Jan 16- Dec 16

Efficiency Ratio

Return on asset

1.14%

1.34%

1.68%

Asset turnover

30.35%

29.05%

31.94%
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Financial Summary

2014
Jan 14- Dec 14

2015
Jan 15- Dec 15

2016
Jan 16- Dec 16

Financial Ratio

Debt to equity (times) 5.01 3.89 3.81
Total receivable to loan (times) 1.21 1.20 1.22
Dividend payout (%) 54.25 59.30 -
Note : " operating lease
@ financial lease
Share Information and Growth Ratio
2014 2015 2016

Jan 14- Dec 14

Jan 15- Dec 15

Jan 16- Dec 16

Share Information

Jan 14- Dec 14

Jan 15- Dec 15

Book value per share (baht) 4.68 4.96 4.61

Earnings per share (baht) 0.31 0.32 0.37

Dividend per share (baht) 0.17 0.17

Growth Ratio

Total assets 4.68% 2.53% 2.46%

Total liabilities 5.56% -2.16% 1.99%

Total revenue 12.95% -0.86% 12.68%

Administrative expenses 3.57T% 3.83% 78.90%

Net profit -31.64% 21.98% 28.76%
2014 2015 2016

Jan 16- Dec 16

Financial Policy Analysis

Interest coverage (times)

8.02

8.79

9.64

Leverage (times)

0.25

0.29

0.25
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14. Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
Operating Results and Financial Status of Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited

Business Operation Overview

In 2015, Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited still retained the leadership of car operating lease market and from
the expansion in asset operating lease which is our main business. It resulted for the income from the mentioned lease
to increase. Meanwhile, the used car market begun to be stable and steady, as a result, it increased the net profit for
the company. Besides, in 2015, the company also increased authorized share capital to enhance the strength of the
company’s financial status.

In 2016, as Thai economy decelerated and overall credit quality was likely to deteriorate, Phatra Leasing Plc. had policy
to operate cautiously, thereby resulting in slight expansion of leased assets. However, the Company’s annual profit
increased compared with the previous year even though large amount allowance for doubtful accounts was set up.
The annual profit increased because the Company earned higher profit from the sale of leased assets under expired
operating lease contracts and also had been granted tax privileges, i.e., exemption from income tax for the proceeds
paid for investment.

For 2017, Phatra Leasing Plc. still has policy to operate cautiously to prevent bad debts resulting from the inability to

pay rental, and also places emphasis on generating higher income from existing assets. In addition, if used car prices
continue to increase, the Company’s operating results will be better in 2017.

Operating Results for the Year 2016 Compared to the Year 2015

Revenue structure in the year 2016 compared to the year 2015 has been shown in the following table:

Unit: Million Baht

01| W6 | (o
Rental received from operating lease contracts 2,894 2,868 (1)
Income from finance lease contracts 108 108 -
Income from sale of leased assets under operating lease contracts 656 1,150 75
Profit from sale of equipment and properties held for sale 5 2 (60)
Other income a1 a6 12
Total income 3,705 4,174 13

The proportion of the Company’s income comprised rental from operating lease contracts in the amount of Baht 2,868
million, which slightly decreased from the previous year, and income from finance lease contracts in the amount of
Baht 108 Million, near to the previous year. The changes in income from the two types of lease contracts resulted from
changes in the value of leased assets under operating lease contracts and accounts receivable under finance lease
contracts.

In 2016, the Company earned income from the sale of leased assets under operating lease in the amount of Baht 1,150

million, which increased by Baht 494 million from 2015, in line with an increase in the sale volume of leased assets
under expired contracts.
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Cost structure in the year 2016 compared to the year 2015 has been shown in the following table:

Unit: Million Baht

2015 2016 % increase
(decrease)
Direct rental Costs 2,207 2,236 1
Cost of sale of assets under operating lease contracts 676 1,089 61
Administrative expenses 234 263 12
Doubtful accounts expenses 1 157 156
Finance costs 368 321 (13)
Total expenses 3,486 4,066 17

Direct cost from leasing out assets, which were primarily subject to depreciation in 2016, amounted to Baht 2,236
million, being an increase of Baht 29 million. The sale cost of leased assets under operating lease contracts also
increased in line with an increase in the sale volume of leased assets.

In 2016, the management expenses amounted to Baht 263 million, which increased by Baht 29 million compared to
the previous year. The said expenses increased because of higher volume of the Company’s transactions in this year
such as used car sale transactions, thereby resulting in higher management expenses in relation to such transactions.
However, the higher volume of transactions leaded to an increase in the Company’s total income. Therefore, when
comparing the proportions of management expenses to total income of 2015 and 2016, the proportions were similar,
i.e., approximately 6%.

The Company’s doubtful debts in 2016 amounted to Baht 157 million, which increased by Baht 156 million from 2015.
The main cause was the default of a major customer of the Company. Now, the Company is demanding the return of
the leased assets and the repayment of outstanding debts. In this regard, the Company has considered setting sufficient
allowance for doubtful debts for the said customer.

The Company’s financial expenses in 2016 amounted to Baht 321million, which decreased by Baht 48 million because
long-term loans with high borrowing costs were due for repayment and new borrowing costs were lower. Moreover, in
the middle of 2015, the Company increased registered capital, thereby resulting in a reduction in certain part of financial
expenses.

In 2016, although the Company had set up the allowance for doubtful debts as aforementioned, the Company still
earned profit for the year in the amount of Baht 220 million, which increased from 2015 by Baht 49 million or 29% as
a result of the ability to make profits from the sale of leased assets under operating lease contracts and tax privileges,
i.e., exemption from income tax for the proceeds paid for investment.

Financial Status of Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited as of 31 December 2016 compared to 31 December
2015

Assets

As of 31 December 2016, the Company’s total assets amounted to Baht 13,230 million, which increased by Baht 318
million or 2% from the previous year. The main cause was an increase in the value of accounts receivable under finance
lease contracts in the amount of Baht 293 million while the leased assets under operating lease contracts decreased by
53 million. The two types of leased assets which generated income for the Company amounted to Baht 12,113 million
or equivalent to 92% of the total assets of the Company. The value of inventory as of the end of 2016 was Baht 86
million, which considerately decreased from Baht 184 million in the previous year because in 2016, large amounts of the
inventory were sold. Besides, the Company thought of how to utilize part of the leased assets under expired contracts
to increase the revenue such as short-term lease out.
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As of 31 December 2016, the Company had rental receivables under operating lease which had been overdue for
more than 3 months in the amount of Baht 12 million, and the defaulted debts amounted to Baht 74 million. After
deduction of security deposit, the Company had set the allowance for doubtful debts for this type of lease at Baht 76
million. With respect to financial lease, the Company had accounts receivable under this type of lease which had been
overdue for than 3 months in the amount of Baht 20 million, and the defaulted debts amounted to Baht 108 million.
After deduction of security deposit and estimation of recoverable amount of leased assets, the Company had set the
allowance for doubtful debts as of the end of 2016 in the amount of Baht 53 million.

Liabilities

As of 31 December 2016, the Company’s total liabilities amounted to Baht 10,477 million, which increased by Baht 204
million compared with the total liabilities of Baht 10,273 million at the end of 2015, or increased by 2%. The main
cause was an increase in the liabilities with interest burden in the amount of Baht 256 million. This type of liabilities will
increase if the value of assets and accounts receivable under the two types of leases increased. Most of such liabilities
were in the forms of debentures and long-term loans from financial institutions with fixed interest rates in order to avoid
fluctuations in interest rates which might occur in the future.

In this regard, as of the end of 2015, the ratio of liabilities to shareholders’ equity was 3.81 times but taking into account
only the liabilities with interest burden, the ratio of liabilities to shareholders” equity was 3.60 times. In this connection,
according to the loan covenants provided by the Company, the ratio of liabilities (calculated only the liabilities with
interest burden) to shareholders’ equity for the Company’s debentures should not exceed 5.25 times, 6 times and
7 times (depending on the conditions of each set of debentures). Therefore, it could be deemed that the Company
was still able to comply with the conditions of such loans. It can be seen that the said ratio at the end of 2016 is still
much lower than the figures specified by the covenant. Therefore, the Company will be able to comply with the said
covenant and is capable of expanding the leased assets in the future.

Shareholders’ Equity

As of 31 December 2016, the shareholders’ equity was equal to 2,752 million, which increased by Baht 113 million in
2015 or 4% due to an increase in retained profit while the return on the shareholders’ equity in 2016 and 2015 were
8.17% and 7.22%, respectively.

Liquidity

With respect to the liquidity for the year ending 31 December 2016, the Company obtained cash flow from the operating
activities in the amount of Baht 3,092 million. The Company made payment for assets held for lease under operating
lease contracts in the amount of Baht 2,799 million plus income tax in the amount of Baht 117 million. As a result,
the Company had net cash for use in operating activities in the amount of Baht 176 million. Meanwhile, the Company
obtained net cash flow from investment activities in the amount of Baht 1 million, mostly derived from the sale of
equipment. derived from the sale and purchase of equipment and other assets than leased assets under operating
lease contracts. Besides, the Company also had net cash flow used in fund-raising activities in the amount of Baht 179
million arising from the payment of finance costs, dividends as well as short-term and long-term debts, the total amount
of which exceeded new short-term and long-term borrowings for purchase of additional assets for lease.

drawn from financial institutions in large amounts and also has been approved long-term loans from several financial
institutions, and moreover, the Company is able to issue debentures and bills of exchange to raise funds consecutively.
Therefore, it can be deemed that the Company’s liquidity is sufficient for the operation of business whether in short
term or long term.

Factors which may have impacts on financial status and operating results

Events and factors which are expected to have significant impacts on the operations and financial status of the Company
in 2015 are likely to arise from greater stability in used car prices after the used car prices considerably decreased
throughout the past few years. However, the price levels of used cars tend to increase to normal rates slowly.
Therefore, the Company still has to carry on the business with due caution.

The deterioration in credit quality from 2016 is likely to continue in 2017. Therefore, the Company has to continue to
operate cautiously and place importance on the customer’s ability to pay rental.

The used car prices in 2016 increased and are likely to continue to increase in 2017. However, as the required period
of possession for the first-car scheme had passed at the end of 2016, a number of cars might be sold to the used
car market and affect used car prices. The Company must closely monitor used car prices and place importance on
generating higher income from leased assets under expired contracts which have been returned to the Company.
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Report of The Audit Committee

The Board of Directors of Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited had resolved to establish an audit committee
which consisted of Mr.Suebtrakul Soonthornthum as chairman, Mr. Poonpipat Aungurigul and Mr.Arpatsorn Bunnag
as members and Mr. Danu Sukhavat as secretary.

During the past 12-month period ended as at 31 December 2016 (January 2016 — December 2016), the Audit
Committee held 6 meetings, at which all three members were present whereby they made consideration and
comments on several matters as follows:

Name of the Audit Committee Meeting/ Total of Meeting
1. Mr. Suebtrakul Soonthornthum'” /1
2. Mr. Poonpipat Aungurigul 6/6
3. Mr. Arpatsorn Bunnag 6/6
4. Asso.Prof. Chawalee Pongpatirochna @ 5/5

Notes :

Mr. Suebtrakul Soonthornthum has been appointed as Member of the Audit Committee since
1 October 2016, and has been appointed as Chairman of the Audit Committee in place of Asso. Prof.
Chawalee Pongpatirochna since 18 October 2016.

@ Asso. Prof. Chawalee Pongpatirochna resigned on 30 September 2016.

1. Review of the Company’s quarterly financial statements and financial statement for the year 2016 endedas
at 31 December 2016: The Audit Committee was of the opinion that the said financial statements were prepared
correctly, appropriately, sufficiently and were reliable in accordance with the certified accounting standards.

2. The Audit Committee held 4 meetings with the officers of the Internal Audit Office, at which the Audit
Committee acknowledged the results of the audit and review of the internal audit system for the year 2016 ended as
at 31 December 2016 operated by the Internal Audit Office. The Audit Committee was
of the opinion that the Company had sufficient and appropriate internal audit system.

3.Acknowledgement of the report on the Company’s compliance with the law on securities and exchange,
the Stock Exchange’s regulations or the laws relating to the Company’s business: The Audit Committee was of the
opinion that the Company had fully complied with the law on securities and exchange, the Stock Exchange’s regulations
and the laws relating to the Company’s business.

4.The Audit Committee held 4 meetings with the Company’s certified auditor. The Audit Committee was of
the opinion that KPMG Phoomchai Audit Limited (KPMG), the auditor of the Company for the accounting period of the
year 2016 ended as at 31 December 2016 had properly performed the duties in accordance with auditing standards.

5. The Audit Committee considered connected transactions which might give rise to conflict of interest,
and was of the opinion that the connected transactions occurred were entered into in the same manner as transactions
made in the ordinary course of business whereby the Company already disclosed the said transactions in the notes to
financial statement, and there was no conflict of interest.

6. The Audit Committee considered the update of overdue receivables.

Furthermore, the Audit Committee provided comments and notes in general on the performance of duties
according to mandates and/or scope of operation as follows: The Company adhered to the good governance policy
which resulted in good internal audit system. The financial statements were correctly and accurately prepared. There
was sufficient disclosure of information which was reliable in accordance with the certified accounting standards.
According to the financial report for the year 2016 ended as at 31 December 2016, there was no information or
circumstance which would materially affect the Company’s financial status.

The Audit Committee nominated certified auditors and proposed remuneration of auditors to the Company’s
Board of Directors to the effect that Miss Pantip Gulantithamrong, Mr.Chanchai Sakulkoedsin and/or
Mr. Bunyarit Thanormcharoen, certified auditors of KPMG Phoomchai Audit Limited shall be appointed as
the Company’s auditor(s) for the accounting period of the year 2017.

N

AN
(‘f”:‘
(Mr.Suebtrakul Soonthornthum)

Independent Director
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited
Opinion

I have audited the financial statements of Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited (the “Company”), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, the statements of comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In my opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2016, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards (TFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing (TSAs). My responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of my report. I am independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants issued by the Federation of Accounting Professions under the Royal Patronage
of His Majesty the King that are relevant to my audit of the financial statements, and I have fulfilled my
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, were of most significance in my audit
of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of my audit of
the financial statements as a whole, and in forming my opinion thereon, and I do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Adequacy of allowance for doubtful accounts

Refer to Notes 3,6 and 7

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in my audit

The Company has a risk of valuation of receivables
under operating lease contracts and receivables
under finance lease contracts due to the default on
payment of receivables, thereby having a material
impact on the financial statements. The assessment
of adequate allowance for doubtful account
requires high judgment from the Company to assess
the ability of repayment of receivables and of the
sale/ lease of the returned assets which are
dependent on the uncertainty of the estimated
recovery amount of leased assets.

My audit procedures consisted of

- understanding the assessment of the Company’s
assumption and the appropriateness of the
Company’s accounting policy for allowance for
doubtful account;

- considering the ability of repayments from
receivables under operating lease contracts and
receivables under finance lease contracts by
assessing the ability of previous repayment and
the current status of existing receivables;

- considering the possibility of repossession and
assessing the estimated recovery amount of
leased assets by using the external prices
derived from market and/or the valuation report
from independent valuers which are adjusted by
the Company’s plan to manage the assets which
are returned from the default contracts for
receivables under finance lease contracts; and

- considering the adequacy of the Company’s
disclosures in relation to receivables under
operating lease contracts and receivables under
finance lease contracts in accordance with Thai
Financial Reporting Standards.

Valuation of inventory

Refer to Notes 3 and 9

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in my audit

The Company has a risk of valuation of inventory
due to a fluctuation in the used car market, thereby
having a direct impact on the net realisable value of
inventory. This is a significant estimated areas
which I have determined to be important due to the
fact that inventory provision estimates are
dependent on concerning future selling prices.

My audit procedures consisted of

- assessing the net realisable value of inventory
by evaluating the appropriateness of the
Company‘s plan to arrange and the estimation
of selling price of the car sales for which
contract are expired and comparing to selling
price subsequent to year-end for sold cars and
external prices derived from market for unsold
cars to test whether selling price exceeded the
book value of inventory at year end; and

- considering the adequacy of the Company’s
disclosures in accordance with Thai Financial
Reporting Standards.
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Recognition of deferred tax assets

Refer to Note 3 and 14

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in my audit

The Company has recognized deferred tax assets
for deductible temporary differences and unused
tax losses that it believes are recoverable.

The recoverability of recognised deferred tax assets
is in part dependent on the Company’s ability to
generate future taxable profits sufficient to utilise
deductible temporary differences and tax losses
(before the latter expire).

I have determined this to be a key audit matter, due
to the inherent uncertainty in forecasting the
amount and timing of future taxable profits and the
reversal of temporary differences.

My audit procedures consisted of

- inquiring the management who is responsible
for preparing the Company’s forecast future
taxable profits;

- assessing and challenging the management’s
judgements , assumptions used in the projection
of future taxable profits by evaluating the
reasonableness of historical forecasting and
comparing with the actual operating results and
the operation’s plan. This included using my
understanding of the Company , the Company’s
industry and the sensitivity of the changes in
the forecast of the Company’s future taxable
profits to evaluate the reasonability of the
management’s process for forecasting the
future taxable profits

- performing the recalculation of the forecast;
and

- considering the adequacy of the Company’s
disclosures in accordance with Thai Financial
Reporting Standards.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and my auditor’s report thereon.

The annual report is expected to be made available to me after the date of this auditor's report.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and I will not express any form

of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise

appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with TFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation

of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with TSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with TSAs, I exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

I communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that I identify during my audit.

I also provide those charged with governance with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, I determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. I describe these matters in my auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, I determine that a matter should not be
communicated in my report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

.

(Vairoj Jindamaneepitak)
Certified Public Accountant
Registration No. 3565

KPMG Phoomchai Audit Ltd.
Bangkok
21 February 2017
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Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited

Statement of financial position

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables under operating lease contracts

Current portion of receivables under finance lease contracts
Other receivables

Inventory

Assets held for sale

Other current assets

Total current assets

Non-current assets

Receivables under finance lease contracts
Other long-term investments

Property and equipment

Property foreclosed

Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

Total assets

Statement of financial position

Note

4,8

10

4,11
12
13
14

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

31 December

2016 2015
(in Baht)

77,622,641 80,134,163
205,722,102 256,348,215
800,400,037 745,338,059
310,763,705 198,475,532

86,199,315 183,557,158

24,892,664 14,710,631

28,983,084 8,597,084

1,534,583,548 1,487,160,842
1,195,790,678 958,326,615

10,225,574,524

10,290,473,714

23,992,453 23,992,453
3,290,715 5,059,026
238,065,316 137,379,526
8,392,180 9,795,020
11,695,105,866 11,425,026,354
13,229,689.,414 12,912,187,196
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Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited

Statement of financial position

Liabilities and equity

Current liabilities

Short-term loans from financial institutions

Trade accounts payable

Other payables

Current portion of debentures

Current portion of long-term loans from financial institutions
Income tax payable

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Debentures

Long-term loans from financial institutions

Advances received from lessees for exercising
purchase option and guarantee deposits

Rental income received in advance

Employee benefit obligations

Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

Equity
Share capital
Authorised share capital
Issued and paid-up share capital

Premium on ordinary shares
Retained earnings

Appropriated
Legal reserve
Unappropriated
Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

Note

15.1
4,16
17
152
153

15.2
153

18

19

19

21

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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31 December

2016 2015
(in Baht)

1,752,743,043 498,222 821
107,766,163 259,860,404
182,553,750 150,292,510
1,899,672,945 2,199,631,263
577,700,000 998,180,000
- 2,141,545
4,520,435,901 4,108,328,543
4,946,319,517 4,646,412,846
717,910,000 1,295,610,000
141,307,852 121,456,933
101,779,079 62,904,901
49,723 467 37,921,053
5,957,039,915 6,164,305,733
10,477 ,475,816 10,272,634,276
646,200,489 646,200,489
596,492,753 596,492,753
645,118,058 645,118,058
64,558,515 53,549,949
1,446,044 272 1,344.,392,160
2,752,213,598 2,639,552,920
13,229,689,414 12,912,187,196




Statement of comprehensive income

Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited

Statement of comprehensive income

Income
Rental income from operating lease contracts

Income from finance lease contracts

Revenue from sale of assets under operating lease contracts

Gain on disposal of equipment, assets held for sale
and property foreclosed
Other income

Total income

Expenses

Direct rental costs

Cost of sale of assets under operating lease contracts
Administrative expenses

Doubtful accounts expense

Finance costs

Total expenses

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense (benefit)

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Items that will never be reclassified to profit or loss
Defined benefit plan actuarial gains (losses)
Income tax on other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of income tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share

Note

4,23

4,26
26
4,24,26
6,7

27

18

28

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

For the year ended 31 December

2016

(in Baht)

2,868,188,092

2015

2,894,272.412

107,846,903 108,415,363
1,150,297,793 656,401,514
1,545,603 4,427,693
46,547,667 41082253
4,174,426,058 3,704,599,235
2.236,390,154 2,206,605.042
1,088.,555,894 676,496,145
263,002,809 234,116,236
157,320,087 829,406
320,791,868 368,446,241
4,066,060,812 3,486,493,070
108,365,246 218,106,165
(111,806,081) 47,107,177
220,171,327 170,998,988
(7.633.602) 4007 447
1,526,721 (801,489)
(6,106,881) 3,205,958
214,064,446 174,204,946
0.37 0.32

0.37 0.32
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Statement of cash flows

Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited

Statement of cash flows

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year

Adjustments for

Depreciation and amortisation
Financial costs

Doubtful accounts expense

(Reversal) Loss on decline in value of inventory

(Gain) Loss on disposal of equipment, assets held for sale

and property foreclosed
Employee benefit obligations

Income tax expense (benefit)

Change in operating assets and liabilities

Receivables under operating lease contracts

Receivables under finance lease contracts

Other receivables

Inventory

Assets held for sale

Other current assets

Property foreclosed

Other non-current assets

Trade accounts payable

Other payables

Advances received from lessees for exercising
purchase option and guarantee deposits

Rental income received in advance

Cash generated from operating activities

Cash paid for purchase operating lease assets

Income tax paid

Net cash from operating activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

H Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited Annual Report 2016

For the year ended 31 December

2016

2015

(in Baht)

220,171,327

1,823,153,280

170,998,988

1,810,826,504

320,791,868 368,446,241
157,320,087 829,406
(486,660) 6,508,731
(912,803) 266,820
4,168,812 4,377,684
(111,806,081) 47,107,177
2/412,399,830 2,409,361,551
(18.,426,785) 7,383,961
(288.,399,989) (32,727.,581)
(22,084,568) (8.970,479)
1,088,555,894 676,496,145
(10,182,033) 11,689,559
(20,386,000) 2,440,716
- 3,520,000
(1,845.877) (7,463,677)
(152,094 ,241) 158,115,450
45,570,648 19,024,706
19,850,920 (14,611,744)
38,874,178 14,771,967
3,091,831.977 3,239,030,574
(2,799,060,337) (2,726,248,268)
(116,949 455) (58,799,762)
175,822,185 453,982,544




Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited

Statement of cash flows

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchases of equipment

Purchases of intangible assets

Sale of equipment, asset held for sale and property foreclosed

Net cash from (used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Financial costs paid

Dividends paid to shareholders of the Company

Proceeds from short-term loans from financial institutions
Repayment of short-term loans from financial institutions
Proceeds from issuance of debentures

Repayment of debentures

Proceeds from long-term loans

Repayment of long-term loans

Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares

Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

Statement of cash flows

For the year ended 31 December

2016 2015
(in Baht)
(3,899,276) (4,456.,246)
(164,000) -
4,894,392 3,037,383
831,116 (1,418,863)

(339,581,055)

(345,966,634)

(101,403,768) (76.052.827)
7,805.,000.,000 4,946,000.,000
(6,545,000,000)  (6,390,000,000)
2,200,000.,000 1,950,000.,000
(2.200,000,000)  (1,000,000,000)

- 850,000,000
(998,180,000) (777,110,000)
- 447 369,553
(179,164,823) (395,759,908)
(2,511,522) 56,803,773
80,134,163 23,330,390
77,622,641 80,134,163

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited Annual Report 2016 H



Notes to the financial statements

Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016

Note Contents

1 General information

2 Basis of preparation of the financial statements
3 Significant accounting policies

4 Related parties

5 Cash and cash equivalents

6 Receivables under operating lease contracts
7 Receivables under finance lease contracts
8 Other receivables

9 Inventory

10 Assets held for sale

11 Property and equipment

12 Property foreclosed

13 Intangible assets

14 Deferred tax assets

15 Interest-bearing liabilities

16 Trade accounts payable

17 Other payables

18 Employee benefit obligations

19 Share capital

20 Warrants

21 Legal reserves

22 Segment information

23 Other income

24 Administrative expenses

25 Employee benefit expenses

26 Expenses by nature

27 Income tax expense (benefit)

28 Earnings per share

29 Dividends

30 Financial instruments

31 Commitments and contingent liabilities
32 Events after the reporting period

33 Thai Financial Reporting Standards (TFRS) not yet adopted

H Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited Annual Report 2016



Notes to the financial statements

Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016

These notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

The financial statements issued for Thai statutory and regulatory reporting purposes are prepared in the
Thai language. These English language financial statements have been prepared from the Thai
language statutory financial statements, and were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 21 February 2017.

1 General information

Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited “the Company” is incorporated in Thailand and has its
registered office at 252/6, 29" Floor, Muang Thai Phatra Complex, Rachadaphisek Road, Huaykwang,
Bangkok 10320.

The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand on 15 August 1996.

The Company’s major shareholder during the financial year was Muang Thai Life Assurance Plc.
(10.00% shareholding) which was incorporated in Thailand.

The principal activities of the Company are to provide leasing services to principally the corporate
enterprises.

2 Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards (TFRS);
guidelines promulgated by the Federation of Accounting Professions (“FAP”); and applicable rules and
regulations of the Thai Securities and Exchange Commission.

The FAP has issued new and revised TFRS effective for annual accounting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2016. The initial application of these new and revised TFRS has resulted in changes in
certain of the Company’s accounting policies. These changes have no material effect on the financial
statements.

In addition to the above new and revised TFRS, the FAP has issued a number of other new and revised
TFRS which are effective for annual financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 and have
not been adopted in the preparation of these financial statements. Those new and revised TFRS that are
relevant to the Company’s operations are disclosed in note 33.

(b) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items.

Items Measurement bases
Defined benefit liability Present value of the defined benefit obligation
as explained in Note 3 (n)

(¢) Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Thai Baht, which is the Company’s functional currency. All
financial information presented in Thai Baht has been rounded in the notes to the financial statements
to the nearest thousand unless otherwise stated.
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‘ I Notes to the financial statements

Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016

(d)

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with TFRS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised prospectively.

Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amount recognised in the financial
statements is included in the following notes:

Note 14 and 27 Deferred tax assets and income tax expense (benefit)
Note 18 Measurement of defined benefit obligations
Note 30 Valuation of financial instruments

Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair
values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market observable data as
far as possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the
inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

e Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

e Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

e Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or liability might be categorised in different

levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the

same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire

measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following
notes:

Note 30 Valuation of financial instruments
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Notes to the financial statements

Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016

(@)

(b)

(¢

(d)

Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these
financial statements.

Foreign currencies
Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currency at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated to
the functional currency at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date. Foreign exchange differences

arising on translation are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at cost in foreign currencies and translated to the
functional currency using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.

Hedging

Hedge of future foreign currency transactions

Gains and losses from forward exchange contracts used to hedge anticipated future currency
transactions are deferred until the forecasted transaction occurs. Where the hedged item is a

recognised asset or liability, it is translated at the contracted forward rates.

Foreign currency assets and liabilities hedged by forward exchange contracts are translated to Thai
Baht at the contracted forward exchange rates.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statements of cash flows comprise cash balances, call deposits and
highly liquid short-term investments.

Receivable under operating lease contracts, receivable under finance lease contracts, and other
receivable

Receivable under operating lease contracts and other receivables are stated at their invoice value less
allowance for doubtful accounts.

Receivable under finance lease contracts are carried at outstanding amount, net of unearned interest
income less allowance for doubtful accounts.

The Company provides an allowance for doubtful accounts equal to the estimated losses that may be

incurred in the collection of all receivables. The estimated losses are based on the receivables
classification and a review of the current status of existing receivables.
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Notes to the financial statements

Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016

(e)

Receivables under operating lease contracts

The basis of allowance for doubtful accounts of receivables under operating lease contracts computed
as a percentage of outstanding receivable are as follows:

Receivables outstanding over O month to 1 month 1%
Receivables outstanding over 1 month to 3 months 2%
Receivables outstanding over 3 months 100%

The Company provides an allowance for doubtful accounts based on the above percentages to the
outstanding balances net of received deposit for each receivable and considers the ability to repayment
of each receivable which overdue over 3 months.

In addition, the Company provides an additional allowance for doubtful accounts as a general reserve
at 5% of outstanding leasing receivables under operating lease contracts net of received deposit. If the
allowance has been considered fully provided, the Company will not set up an additional allowance for
doubtful accounts as a general reserve.

Receivables under finance lease contracts

The basis of allowance for doubtful accounts of receivables under finance lease contracts computed as
a percentage of outstanding receivable are as follows:

Receivables outstanding over O month to 1 month 1%
Receivables outstanding over 1 month to 3 months 2%
Receivables outstanding over 3 months 100%

The Company provides an allowance for doubtful accounts based on the above percentages to the
outstanding balances net of received deposit and the estimated recovery amount of leased asset for each
receivable.

In addition, the Company provides an additional allowance for doubtful accounts as a general reserve
at 5% of outstanding leasing receivables under finance lease contracts net of received deposit and the
estimated recoverable amount of leased asset. If the allowance has been considered fully provided, the
Company will not set up an additional allowance for doubtful accounts as a general reserve.

Inventory

Operating lease assets are transferred to inventory on the date that they cease to be rented and are held
for sale. These are measured at the lower of the book value at that date and net realisable value.

Cost of inventory is calculated using the specific method.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs to sell.

Assets held for sale

Assets held for sale consisted of movable assets held for sale under the finance lease contracts which
the Company plans to sell within one year, and are measured at the lower of carrying value and fair
value less cost to sell. Impairment losses on initial classification and subsequent gains and losses on
remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss. Gains are not recognised in excess of any cumulative
impairment loss.
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Notes to the financial statements

Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016

(g

(h)

Investments

Investment in other equity securities

Investment in equity securities which are not marketable are stated at cost less any impairment losses.
Disposal of investments

On disposal of an investment, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is
recognised in profit or loss.

If the Company disposes of part of its holding of a particular investment, the deemed cost of the part
sold is determined using the weighted average method applied to the carrying value of the total holding
of the investment.

Property and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Owned assets

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-
constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable
to bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended use, the costs of dismantling and
removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located, and capitalised borrowing costs.
Cost also may include transfers from other comprehensive income of any gain or loss on qualifying
cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of property and equipment. Purchased software that is
integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment.

When parts of an item of property and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate items (major components) of property and equipment.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property and equipment are determined by comparing the
proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property and equipment, and are recognised net
within other income in profit or loss.

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing a part of an item of property and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount
of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the
Company, and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property and equipment are recognised in profit
or loss as incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated based on the depreciable amount, which is the cost of an asset, or other
amount substituted for cost, less its residual value.
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Notes to the financial statements

Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016

(i)

)

(k)

Depreciation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each
component of an item of property and equipment. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Office condominium and utilities system 40 years
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 5,7 and 10 years
Transportation equipment 5 years
Assets held for operating lease Over the lease period

Assets held for future lease are depreciated upon commencement of the lease.
No depreciation is provided on assets under construction.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted if appropriate.

Property foreclosed

Property foreclosed consisted of immovable property foreclosed which the Company plans to sell in
more than one year were measured at the lower of carrying value and appraisal value for sale less cost
to sell and was classified to non-current assets. Impairment losses on initial classification and
subsequent gains and losses on remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss. Gains are not
recognised in excess of any cumulative impairment loss.

Intangible assets
Software licenses

Software licenses that are acquired by the Company and have finite useful lives are measured at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation

Amortisation is based on the cost of the asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its residual
value.

Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives from
the date that they are available for use, since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of
consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. The estimated useful lives for the
current and comparative periods are as follows:

Software licenses 3-10 years

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted if appropriate.

Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Company’s assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the assets’ recoverable amounts are
estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds
its recoverable amount. The impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016

)

(m)

(n)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of a non-financial asset is the greater of the assets’ value in use and fair value
less cost to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

Reversals of impairment

Any impairment losses recognised in prior periods in respect of other non-financial assets are assessed
at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised.

Interest-bearing liabilities

Interest-bearing liabilities are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction charges.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing liabilities are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between cost and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings on an effective interest basis.

Trade accounts payable and other payables

Trade accounts payable and other payables are stated at cost.
Employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the related service is
provided.

Defined benefit plans

The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan
by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods,
discounting that amount.

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the
projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, the
recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future
refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. To calculate the present value of
economic benefits, consideration is given to any application minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, actuarial gain or loss are recognized immediately
in OCI. The Company determines the interest expense on the net defined benefit liability for the period
by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the
annual period, taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period as a
result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined
benefit plans are recognized in profit or loss.
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Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016

(0)

(p)

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that
relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The
Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement
occurs.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised
for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay
this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated
reliably.

Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.

Revenue

Revenues excludes value added taxes and other sales taxes and is arrived at after deduction of trade
discounts.

Rental income from operating lease contracts

Rental income from operating lease contracts is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease.

Income from finance lease contracts
The Company has recognised the income by using the effective interest rate method.

The Company has ceased to recognise rental income from operating lease contracts and income from
finance lease contracts in profit or loss when lessees have not paid rentals for more than three months.

Revenue from sale of assets under operating lease contracts

Revenue from sale of assets under operating lease contracts (inventory) is recognised in profit or loss
when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer. No revenue is
recognised if there is continuing management involvement with the assets or there are significant
uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration due, associated costs or the probable return of
assets.

Revenue from sale of equipment and assets held for sale

Revenue from sales of equipment and assets held for sale are recognised in profit or loss when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyers.

Other income

Other operating income and interest income is recognised in profit or loss as it accrues.
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Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016

(9)

(r)

(s)

Finance costs
Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings that are recognised in profit or loss.
Operating lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight line basis over the
term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
total lease expense, over the term of the lease.

Contingent lease payments are accounted for by revising the minimum lease payments over the
remaining term of the lease when the lease adjustment is confirmed.

Income tax

Income tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Current and deferred tax are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognised directly in equity or
in other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow the manner in which
the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences
when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

In determining the amount of current and deferred tax, the Company takes into account the impact of
uncertain tax positions and whether additional taxes and interest may be due. The Company believes that
its accruals for tax liabilities are adequate for all open tax years based on its assessment of many factors,
including interpretations of tax law and prior experience. This assessment relies on estimates and
assumptions and may involve a series of judgements about future events. New information may become
available that causes the Company to change its judgement regarding the adequacy of existing tax
liabilities; such changes to tax liabilities will impact tax expense in the period that such a determination is
made.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at
each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit
will be realised.
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O

(u)

Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic
EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is
determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares, which comprise convertible notes.

Segment reporting

Segment results that are reported to Board of Directors (the Chief Operating Decision Maker) include
items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.
Unallocated items comprise mainly revenue from sale of assets under operating lease contracts, cost of
sale of assets under operating lease contracts, administrative expenses, finance costs and deferred tax
assets.

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the Company if
the Company has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control or joint control the party or exercise
significant influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where
the Company and the party are subject to common control or common significant influence. Related
parties may be individuals or other entities.

Relationships with key management and related parties were as follows:

Country of
Incorporation/
Name of entities/Person Nationality Nature of relationships

Key management personnel Thailand Persons having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities
of the entity, directly or indirectly, including any
director, a managing director, the first 4
executive levels in the organisation chart and all
the forth executive including other equivalent
positions of the forth executive downward from
the managing director (whether executive or
otherwise) of the Company.

Muang Thai Life Assurance Plc. Thailand 10.00% shareholding and some common directors

Muang Thai Insurance Plc. Thailand 8.89% shareholding and some common directors

Muang Thai Real Estate Plc. Thailand Holding share 0.39% and some common directors

The pricing policies for transaction with related parties are explained further below:

Transactions Pricing policies
Rental income from operating lease contracts At contractually agreed rate
Discount on insurance premium At contractually agreed rate
Insurance premium expenses At contractually agreed rate
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Significant transactions with key management and related parties for the years ended 31 December
were as follows:

2016 2015
(in thousand Baht)
Other related parties
Rental income from operating lease contracts 40,941 35434
Discount on insurance premium 9,321 10,425
Insurance premium expenses 93,177 94,016

Key management personnel compensation

Key management personnel compensation are benefits paid to directors and executives of the
Company. They comprise of management compensation such as salaries, related benefit, included
post-employment benefits and directors’ remuneration.

2016 2015
(in thousand Baht)
Short-term management benefits 43,126 30,161
Post-employment benefits 2,612 3,099
Total 45,738 33,260
Significant balances as at 31 December with related parties were as follows:
2016 2015
(in thousand Baht)
Other receivables - prepaid insurance expenses
Muang Thai Insurance Plc. 42317 49,949
Other long-term investment
Muang Thai Real Estate Plc.
(Net of allowance for impairment amounted Baht 4.1 million) - -
Property and equipment - assets held for lease under
operating lease contracts
Muang Thai Life Assurance Plc. 119,999 110,944
Muang Thai Insurance Plc. 53,185 46,457
Trade accounts payable - accrued insurance premium
Muang Thai Insurance Plc. 4,324 4,791
5 Cash and cash equivalents
2016 2015
(in thousand Baht)
Cash on hand 134 105
Cash at banks - current accounts 14,855 40,831
Cash at banks - savings accounts 62,634 39,198
Total 77,623 80,134

Cash and cash equivalents of the Company as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 were denominated
entirely in Thai Baht.
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6  Receivables under operating lease contracts

Receivables under operating lease contracts
Defaulted receivables

Less allowance for doubtful accounts

Net

Doubtful accounts expense for the year

Aging analyses for receivables under operating lease contracts were as follows:

Normal receivables
Within credit terms
Overdue:
Less than 3 months
3 — 6 months
6 — 12 months
More than 12 months
Total normal receivables
Defaulted receivables
Total receivables under operating lease contracts
Less allowance for doubtful accounts
Net

2016 2015
(in thousand Baht)
208,196 208,519
73,732 54,982
(76,206) (7,153)
205,722 256,348
69,053 902
2016 2015
(in thousand Baht)
148,225 132,806
48,026 38,940
1,268 36,773
4,757 -
5,920 -
208,196 208,519
73,732 54,982
281,928 263,501
(76,206) (7,153)
205,722 256,348

The normal credit term granted by the Company is 30 days.

Receivables under operating lease contracts of the Company as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 were

denominated entirely in Thai Baht.

7 Receivables under finance lease contracts

Portion due after one year

Portion due within one year but within five year Total
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
(in thousand Baht)

Normal receivables
Receivables under finance

lease contracts 843,906 794,400 1,297 881 1,040,556 2,141,787 1,834,956
Less unearned interest

income (102,987) (87,607) (98,043) (81,151) (201,030) (168,758)
Total normal receivables 740,919 706,793 1,199,838 959,405 1,940,757 1,666,198
Defaulted receivables 108,476 39,493 - - 108,476 39,493
Total receivables under

finance lease contracts 849,395 746,286 1,199,838 959,405 2,049,233 1,705,691
Less allowance for doubtful

accounts (48.,995) (948) (4,047) (1,078) (53,042) (2,026)
Net receivables under

finance lease contracts 800,400 745,338 1,195,791 958,327 1,996,191 1,703,665
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2016 2015
(in thousand Baht)
Doubtful accounts expense for the year (reversal) 51,016 (72)

Aging analyses for receivables under finance lease contracts were as follows:

2016 2015
(in thousand Baht)
Normal receivables

Not yet due 2,103,067 1,795,449
Overdue:
Less than 3 months 18,817 24204
3 - 6 months 4,352 15,303
6 - 12 months 4,856 -
More than 12 months 10,695 -
Total normal receivable 2,141,787 1,834,956
Defaulted receivables 108,476 39,493
Total receivables under finance lease contracts 2,250,263 1,874,449
Less unearned interest income (201,030) (168,758)
Less allowance for doubtful accounts (53,042) (2,026)
Net 1,996,191 1,703,665

The normal credit term granted by the Company is 30 days.

Receivables under finance lease contracts of the Company as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 were
denominated entirely in Thai Baht.

As at 31 December, the gross investment under the finance lease contracts and present value of
minimum lease payments receivable were as follows:

2016 2015
Present value Present value
of minimum of minimum
Gross investment lease Gross investment lease
under payments under payments
finance lease under finance finance lease under finance
Contracts lease contracts contracts lease contracts
(in thousand Baht)
Portion due within one year 952,382 849,395 833,893 746,286
Portion due after one year
but within five years 1,297,881 1,199,838 1,040,556 959,405
Total 2,250,263 2,049,233 1,874,449 1,705,691
Less unearned interest (201,030) (168.,758)
Net investment under
finance lease contracts 2,049,233 1,705,691
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8 Other receivables
Note 2016 2015
(in thousand Baht)
Prepaid insurance expenses
- related party 4 42,317 49,949
- other parties 54,348 49,419
Withholding tax deduct at source 116,949 -
Prepaid expenses 41,275 43,534
Refundable Value Added Tax 11,466 7,486
Receivable from Revenue Department 10,505 11,678
Other receivables — net allowance for doubtful account
of Baht 89.2 million and Baht 51.9 million in 2016 and
2015 respectively 33,904 36,410
Total 310,764 198,476
9 Inventory
2016 2015
(in thousand Baht)
Transportation equipment 92,221 190,066
Less allowance for decline in value of inventory
adjusted to net realisable value (6,022) (6,509)
Net 86,199 183,557
10 Assets held for sale
For the year ended 31 December 2016
At
beginning Transfer Transfer Atend
of year in Depreciation Disposals out of year
(in thousand Baht)
Transportation
equipment 14,711 22,762 - (4,990) (7,590) 24,893
For the year ended 31 December 2015
At
beginning Transfer Transfer Atend
of year in Depreciation Disposals out of year
(in thousand Baht)
Transportation
equipment 26,400 10,142 - (6,019) (15,812) 14,711
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12 Property foreclosed

For the year ended 31 December 2016

At
beginning Transfer Transfer Atend
of year in Depreciation ~ Disposals out of year
(in thousand Baht)
Land and office
condominium 39,487 - - - - 39,487
Less allowance for
impairment  (15,495) - - - - (15,495)
Net 23,992 - - - - 23,992
For the year ended 31 December 2015
At
beginning  Transfer Transfer Atend
of year in Depreciation  Disposals out of year
(in thousand Baht)
Land and office
condominium 43,007 - - (3,520) - 39,487
Less allowance for
impairment  (15,495) - - - - (15,495)
Net 27,512 - - (3,520) - 23,992
13 Intangible assets
Software
Software licenses
licenses in progress Total
(in thousand Baht)
Cost
At 1 January 2015 35,244 15 35,259
Additions 97 - 97
Transfer 15 (15) -
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 35,356 - 35,356
Additions 164 - 164
Transfer - - -
At 31 December 2016 35,520 - 35,520
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2015 26,718 - 26,718
Amortisation charge for the year 3,579 - 3,579
Transfer - - -
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 30,297 - 30,297
Amortisation charge for the year 1,932 - 1,932
Transfer - - -
At 31 December 2016 32,229 - 32,229
Net book value
At 1 January 2015 8,526 15 8,541
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 5,059 - 5,059
At 31 December 2016 3,291 - 3,291
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14 Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets and liabilities as at 31 December were as follows:

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities
Net deferred tax assets

2016 2015
(in thousand Baht)
248,554 147,830
(10,488) (10,450)
238,066 137,380

Movements in total deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year were as follows:

Deferred tax assets

Depreciation of asset held for lease
Loss carry forward

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Allowance for decline in value of inventory
Accrued income on leases in arrears more

than three months

Advance received from lessee for
exercising purchase option

Allowance for loss on impairment of
investment and immovable
property foreclosed

Employee benefits obligations

Total

Deferred tax liabilities

Differences in income recognition of
operating and finance lease contracts

Depreciation of office condominium

Total

Net

At (Charged) / Credit to At
1 Profit or Other 31
January loss comprehensive ~ December
2016 income 2016
(note 27)
(in thousand Baht)
97,591 5,789 - 103,380
- 52,759 - 52,759
12,218 31,464 - 43,682
1,302 97) - 1,205
10,502 8,495 - 18,997
14,604 (46) - 14,558
4,028 - - 4,028
7,585 833 1,527 9,945
147,830 99,197 1,527 248,554
(8,837) 502 - (8,335)
(1,613) (540) - (2,153)
(10,450) 38) - (10,488)
137,380 99,159 1,527 238,066

In 2016, the Company has been granted privileges to be exempt from payment of income tax for capital
expenditures to use for an additional deductible expense. As a result, the Company has tax losses of
Baht 72.6 million. Management estimated of the future taxable profits and recognised the deferred tax
assets of Baht 52.8 million on the loss carry forward because management considered it is probable that
the main portion of the future taxable profits would be available against which such loss can be utilised.
However, the Company has unrecognised deferred tax asset of Baht 19.8 million for loss carry forward
in the financial statement as at 31 December 2016 (2558 :nil).

E Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited Annual Report 2016



Notes to the financial statements

Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016

15

15.1

Deferred tax assets

Depreciation of asset held for lease

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Allowance for decline in value of inventory

Accrued income on leases in arrears more
than three months

Advance received from lessee for
exercising purchase option

Allowance for loss on impairment of
investment and immovable
property foreclosed

Employee benefits obligations

Total

Deferred tax liabilities

Differences in income recognition of
operating and finance lease contracts

Depreciation of office condominium

Total

Net

Interest-bearing liabilities

Short-term loans from financial institutions

Current - unsecured
Promissory notes
Bills of exchange

Less unamortised discount on bills of exchange
Short-term loans from financial institutions

At (Charged) / Credit to At
1 Profit or Other 31
January loss comprehensive  December
2015 income 2015
(note 27)
(in thousand Baht)
94,140 3451 - 97,591
12,052 166 - 12,218
- 1,302 - 1,302
4,888 5,614 - 10,502
16,965 (2,361) - 14,604
4,028 - - 4,028
7,510 876 (801) 7,585
139,583 9,048 (801) 147,830
(14,160) 5,323 - (8,837)
(1,076) (537) - (1,613)
(15,236) 4,786 - (10,450)
124,347 13,834 (801) 137,380
2016 2015
(in thousand Baht)
360,000 100,000
1,400,000 400,000
(7,257) (1,777)
1,752,743 498,223

As at 31 December 2016, the Company had overdraft lines and other credit facilities, excluding bills of
exchange, with various local banks totaling Baht 2,300 million (2015: Baht 2,300 million) which bear
interest at the Money Market Rate (MMR) at the transaction date. As at 31 December 2016, the
Company had unutilised credit facilities totaling Baht 1,806 million (2015: Baht 2,052 million).
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15.2 Debentures

2016 2015
(in thousand Baht)
Unsecured debentures - at face value 6,850,000 6,850,000
Less unamortised deferred charges on debenture issuance (4,008) (3,956)
6,845,992 6,846,044
Less current portion due within one year
(net of unamortised deferred
charges on debenture issuance) (1,899,673) (2,199,631)
Debentures, non-current portion 4,946,319 4,646,413

As at 31 December 2016, the Company has outstanding balances of issued unsecured, name registered,
unsubordinated and no-trustee debentures which were offered to the institutional investors specified in
the Notification of Securities and Exchange Commission. The details of issuance of debentures were as

below:

Debenture issued on
Unit and value

Total debenture value
Period and maturity date
Interest rate

Interest payment due

Debenture issued on
Unit and value

Total debenture value
Period and maturity date
Interest rate

Interest payment due

Debenture issued on
Unit and value

Total debenture value
Period and maturity date
Interest rate

Interest payment due

Debenture issued on
Unit and value

Total debenture value
Period and maturity date
Interest rate

Interest payment due

Debenture issued on
Unit and value

Total debenture value
Period and maturity date
Interest rate

Interest payment due

1 February 2012

500,000 units of par value of Baht 1,000 each
Baht 500 million

5 years will mature on 1 February 2017
Fixed rate of 4.65% per annum

Every 1 February and 1 August of each year

3 June 2013

500,000 units of par value of Baht 1,000 each
Baht 500 million

4 years, will mature on 3 June 2017

Fixed rate of 3.84% per annum

Every 3 June and 3 December of each year

28 March 2014

500,000 units of par value of Baht 1,000 each

Baht 500 million

3 years 6 months, will mature on 28 September 2017
Fixed rate of 3.94% per annum

Every 28 September and 28 March of each year

15 May 2014

500,000 units of par value of Baht 1,000 each
Baht 500 million

4 years, will mature on 15 May 2018

Fixed rate of 4.00% per annum

Every 15 May and 15 November of each year

4 August 2014

400,000 units of par value of Baht 1,000 each
Baht 400 million

3 years 4 days, will mature on 8 August 2017
Fixed rate of 3.57% per annum

Every 8 February and 8 August of each year
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Debenture issued on
Unit and value

Total debenture value
Period and maturity date
Interest rate

Interest payment due

Debenture issued on
Unit and value

Total debenture value
Period and maturity date
Interest rate

Interest payment due

Debenture issued on
Unit and value

Total debenture value
Period and maturity date
Interest rate

Interest payment due

Debenture issued on
Unit and value

Total debenture value
Period and maturity date
Interest rate

Interest payment due

Debenture issued on
Unit and value

Total debenture value
Period and maturity date
Interest rate

Interest payment due

Debenture issued on
Unit and value

Total debenture value
Period and maturity date
Interest rate

Interest payment due

Debenture issued on
Unit and value

Total debenture value
Period and maturity date
Interest rate

Interest payment due

1 October 2014

300,000 units of par value of Baht 1,000 each
Baht 300 million

3 years 4 months, will mature on 1 February 2018
Fixed rate of 3.75% per annum

Every 1 February and 1 August of each year

16 February 2015

500,000 units of par value of Baht 1,000 each
Baht 500 million

3 years will mature on 16 February 2018
Fixed interest rate of 3.12% per annum

Every 16 February and 16 August of each year

22 April 2015

450,000 units of par value of Baht 1,000 each

Baht 450 million

3 years 5 months 27 days, will mature on 19 October 2018
Fixed interest rate of 3.00% per annum

Every 19 April and 19 October of each year

23 July 2015

500,000 units of par value of Baht 1,000 each
Baht 500 million

3 years 6 months, will mature on 23 January 2019
Fixed interest rate of 2.62% per annum

Every 23 January and 23 July of each year

24 September 2015

500,000 units of par value of Baht 1,000 each
Baht 500 million

4 years, will mature on 24 September 2019
Fixed interest rate of 2.86% per annum

Every 24 March and 24 September of each year

25 January 2016

500,000 units of par value of Baht 1,000 each
Baht 500 million

4 years will mature on 25 January 2020
Fixed interest rate of 2.49% per annum
Every 25 January and 25 July of each year

24 February 2016

500,000 units of par value of Baht 1,000 each
Baht 500 million

5 years will mature on 24 February 2021
Fixed interest rate of 2.63% per annum

Every 24 February and 24 August of each year
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Debenture issued on
Unit and value

Total debenture value
Period and maturity date
Interest rate

Interest payment due

Debenture issued on
Unit and value

Total debenture value
Period and maturity date
Interest rate

Interest payment due

Debenture issued on
Unit and value

Total debenture value
Period and maturity date
Interest rate

Interest payment due

24 February 2016

200,000 units of par value of Baht 1,000 each
Baht 200 million

7 years will mature on 24 February 2023
Fixed interest rate of 3.05% per annum

Every 24 February and 24 August of each year

17 August 2016

500,000 units of par value of Baht 1,000 each
Baht 500 million

3 years will mature on 17 August 2019

Fixed interest rate of 2.24% per annum

Every 17 February and 17 August of each year

28 September 2016

500,000 units of par value of Baht 1,000 each
Baht 500 million

4 years will mature on 28 September 2020
Fixed interest rate of 2.60% per annum

Every 28 March and 28 September of each year

In connection with the terms of the rights and responsibilities of the debentures issuer, the Company, as
the issuer, has to comply with certain restrictions and conditions as stipulated therein, such as
maintaining certain financial ratios etc.

15.3 Long-term loans from financial institutions

2016 2015
(in thousand Baht)
Long-term loans from financial institutions - unsecured 1,295,610 2,293,790
Less current portion due within one year (577,700) (998,180)
Long-term loans from financial institutions,
non-current portion 717,910 1,295,610

In February 2014, the Company entered into long-term loan agreements with two banks for credit lines
of Baht 500 million and Baht 500 million, respectively. As at 30 September 2014, the Company has
drawn down the loan in full. The loan has a fixed interest rate. The Company will repay principal
installments on a quarterly basis and the maturity date of the final installment will be in February 2017.

In August 2014, the Company entered into long-term loan agreements with a bank for a credit line of
Baht 500 million. As at 30 September 2014, the Company has drawn down the loan in full. The loan
has a fixed interest rate. The Company will repay principal installments on a quarterly basis and the
maturity date of the final installment will be in August 2018.

In October 2015, the Company entered into long-term loan agreements with a bank for a credit line of
Baht 350 million. As at 15 October 2015, the Company has drawn down the loan in full. The loan has a
fixed interest rate. The Company will repay principal installments on a quarterly basis and the maturity
date of the final installment will be in October 2018.
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In December 2015, the Company entered into long-term loan agreements with a bank for a credit line
of Baht 500 million. As at 16 December 2015, the Company has drawn down the loan in full. The loan
has a fixed interest rate. The Company will repay principal installments on a quarterly basis and the
maturity date of the final installment will be in December 2019.

The periods to maturity of interest-bearing liabilities as at 31 December were as follows:

2016 2015
(in thousand Baht)
Within one year 4,230,116 3,696,034
After one year but within five years 5,664,229 5,942,023
Total 9,894,345 9,638,057

Interest-bearing liabilities of the Company as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 were denominated
entirely in Thai Baht.

16 Trade accounts payable

Note 2016 2015
(in thousand Baht)
Related parties 4 4,324 4,791
Other parties 103,442 255,069
Total 107,766 259,860

Trade accounts payable of the Company as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 were denominated in Thai
Baht.

17  Other payables

2016 2015
(in thousand Baht)
Accrued finance costs 69,301 82,611
Rental income received in advance 63,881 52,098
Accrued expenses 40,808 13,478
Withholding tax payables 7,193 1,230
Others 1,371 876
Total 182,554 150,293

18 Employee benefit obligations
Post-employment benefits

The Company operates a number of post-employment benefit plans including defined benefit plans. All
defined benefit plans are unfunded.
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Post-employment benefit obligations presented in statement of financial position are as follows:

2016 2015
(in thousand Baht)
Present value of unfunded obligations 49,724 37921
Post-employment benefit obligations presented
in statement of financial position 49,724 37,921
Movement in the present value of the defined benefit obligations:
2016 2015
(in thousand Baht)
Defined benefit obligations at 1 January 37,921 37,551
Include in profit or loss:
Current service cost and interest cost 4,169 4,377
Included in other comprehensive income
Actuarial (gain) loss 7,634 (4,007)
Other
Benefits paid - -
Defined benefit obligations at 31 December 49,724 37,921

Actuarial gains and losses recognised in other comprehensive income arising from:

2016 2015
(in thousand Baht)
Demographic assumptions 153 107
Financial assumptions (7,176) 5,371
Experience adjustment (611) (1,471)
Total (7,634) 4,007

Principal actuarial assumptions as at 31 December 2016 based on a discount rate 3.51% (2015: 3.43%);
the future salary increased rate 5.5% - 7.5% (2015: 4.0% - 7.0%); the withdrawal rate 2.2% - 16.9%
(2015: 2.5% - 19.2%); the retirement ages were 55 - 60 years (2015: 55 - 60 years), and the assumption
regarding future mortality rate are based on statistics of an insurance company.

Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding
other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown

below.

(in thousand Baht)
Defined benefit obligation 31 December 2016 Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) (5,187) 6,018
Future salary growth (1% movement) 5,231 (4,649)

(in thousand Baht)
Defined benefit obligation 31 December 2015 Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) (4,157) 4,839
Future salary growth (1% movement) 4,292 (3,799)

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the
plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown.
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Par value

2016

2015

per share  Number
(in Baht)

Amount

(thousand shares / thousand Baht)

Number

Amount

Authorised

At 1 January

- ordinary shares 1 646,200 646,200 450,000 450,000
Reduction of shares 1 - - (2,631) (2,631)
Increase in registered shares 1 - - 198,831 198,831
At 31 December

- ordinary shares 1 646,200 646,200 646,200 646,200
Issued and paid-up

At 1 January

- ordinary shares 1 596,493 596,493 447370 447,370
Issue of new shares 1 - - 149,123 149,123
At 31 December

- ordinary shares 1 596,493 596,493 596,493 596,493

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time, and are
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.

At the annual general meeting of the shareholders of the Company held on 28 April 2015, the
shareholders approved the following resolutions;

The decrease of the Company’s registered capital in the amount of Baht 2.6 million from the existing
registered capital of Baht 450 million to Baht 447.4 million, by cancelling the unissued registered
ordinary shares in the amount of 2.6 million shares at a par value of Baht 1 per share. The company
registered the decrease of authorised share capital with the Department of Business Development,
Minister of Commerce on 29 April 2015.

The increase of the Company’s registered capital in the amount of Baht 198.8 million at a par value
of Baht 1 per share from the existing registered capital of Baht 447.4 million to Baht 646.2 million
and the Company issued ordinary shares in the number of 149.1 million shares at the selling price of
Baht 3 per share, resulting in the premium on the ordinary shares of Baht 298.2 million. The
company registered the increase of authorised share with the Department of Business Development,
Minister of Commerce on 30 April 2015.

Share premium
Section 51 of the Public Companies Act B.E. 2535 requires companies to set aside share subscription

monies received in excess of the par value of the shares issued to a reserve account (“share premium”).
Share premium is not available for dividend distribution.
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Warrants

The Company had warrants to purchase new ordinary shares of the Company. The details of warrants
are as follows;

Name of warrants : Warrants to purchase the new ordinary shares of Phatra Leasing
Public Company Limited No.1 (PL-W1)

Allocated to :  Existing common shareholders at an offering ratio of 3 new
ordinary shares per 1 unit of warrant

Number of warrants issued . Not exceeding 49,707,730 units

Offering price : Baht 0.00 per unit

Number of listed warrants : 49,707,319 units

Maturity : 3 years

Exercise price : Baht 3.966 per share

Exercise right per unit : Warrant 1 unit to 1.009 ordinary share

Exercise period . The holders of warrants are able to exercise the warrants on the

last business day of March, June, September and December each
year throughout the term of the warrants. The first exercise date
shall be after the second anniversary of the warrants.

Legal reserves

Section 116 of the Public Companies Act B.E. 2535 section 116 requires that a public company shall
allocate not less than 5% of its annual net profit, less any accumulated losses brought forward, to a
reserve account (“legal reserve”), until this account reaches an amount not less than 10% of the
registered authorised capital. The legal reserve is not available for dividend distribution.

As at 31 December 2016 , the Company’s legal reserve amounted to Baht 65 million (2015: Baht 54
million).

Segment information

The Company has two reportable segments, as described below, which are the Company’s strategic
divisions. The strategic divisions offer different services, and are managed separately because they
require different marketing strategies. For each of the strategic divisions, the Chief Operating Decision
Maker (CODM) reviews internal management reports on at least a quarterly basis. The following
summary describes the operations in each of the Company’s reportable segments.

e Segment 1 Land vehicles
e Segment 2 Others

Information regarding the results of each reportable segment is included below. Performance is
measured based on segment gross profit, as included in the internal management reports that are
reviewed by the Company’s CODM. Segment gross profit is used to measure performance as
management believes that such information is the most relevant in evaluating the results of certain
segments relative to other entities that operate within these industries.
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Information about reportable segments:

Land vehicles Others Total
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
(in thousand Baht)

External revenue 2,666,054 2,714,732 309,981 287,955 2,976,035 3,002,688
Total segment revenue 2,666,054 2,714,732 309,981 287,955 2,976,035 3,002,688
Direct rental costs 2,019,133 2,011,840 217,257 194,765 2,236,390 2,206,605
Segment gross profit 646,921 702,892 92,724 93,190 739,645 796,083
Segment assets 10,543,068 10,801,342 1,887,424 1,527,284 12,430,492 12,328,626
Capital expenditure 2,443,295 2,461,088 355,765 265,160 2,799,060 2,726,248
Segment liabilities 224,053 192 483 82914 43977 306,967 236,460

Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

2016 2015
(in thousand Baht)

Revenues

Total revenue from reportable segments 2,976,035 3,002,688

Other revenue 1,198,391 701,911

Total revenues 4,174,426 3,704,599

Profit or loss

Total gross profit for reportable segments 739,645 796,083

Unallocated amounts (631,280) (577977)

Profit before income tax 108,365 218,106

Assets

Total assets for reportable segments 12,430,492 12,328,626

Unallocated amounts 799,198 583,561

Total assets 13,229,690 12,912,187

Liabilities

Total liabilities for reportable segments 306,967 236,460

Unallocated amounts 10,170,509 10,036,174

Total liabilities 10,477,476 10,272,634

Geographical segments

The Company operates only in Thailand. There are no revenues derived from, or assets located in,

foreign countries.

Major customer

The Company does not have any major customer which is significant to financial statement because the
Company does not have any external revenue from one customer more than 10% of total revenues.
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23  Other income

2016 2015
(in thousand Baht)
Discount on insurance premium 18,569 18,719
Penalty income 12,651 14,322
Interest income 515 351
Others 14,813 7,690
Total 46,548 41,082
24 Administrative expenses
Note 2016 2015
(in thousand Baht)
Employee benefit expenses 25 173,059 140,874
Rental and utilities service charges 17,985 15,829
Depreciation 7,619 8,808
Others 64,340 68,606
Total 263,003 234,117
25 Employee benefit expenses
Note 2016 2015
(in thousand Baht)
Management
Salaries and bonuses 34,806 21,500
Director’s remuneration 8,320 8,661
Post-employment benefits 2,612 3,099
4 45,738 33,260
Other employees
Salaries and bonuses 110,351 91,479
Post-employment benefits and others 16,970 16,135
127,321 107,614
Total 173,059 140,874

Provident fund was established by the Company for its employees. Membership to the fund is on a
voluntary basis. Contributions are made monthly by the employees at rates ranging from 5% to 10% of
their basic salaries and by the Company at rates ranging from 5% to 10% of the employees’ basic
salaries. The provident fund is registered with the Ministry of Finance as a juristic entity and is
managed by a licensed Fund Manager.
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26 Expenses by nature

The statements of comprehensive income include an analysis of expenses by function. The significant
expenses by nature disclosed in accordance with the requirements of various TFRS were as follows:

2016 2015
(in thousand Baht)
Change in inventories 97,845 (91,849)
Assets held for lease under operating lease contracts 990,711 774,854
Employee benefit expenses 173,059 140,874
Depreciation 1,818,024 1,804,453
Others 665,630 489,715
Total 3,745,269 3,118,047
27 Income tax expense (benefit)
Income tax recognised in profit or loss
Note 2016 2015
(in thousand Baht)
Current year tax expense
Current year - 57,649
Adjustment for prior years (12,647) 3,292
(12,647) 60,941
Deferred tax expense
Movements in temporary differences 14 (99,159) (13,834)
Total income tax expense (111,806) 47,107
Reconciliation of effective tax rate
2016 2015
Tax rate (in thousand  Tax rate (in thousand
(%) Baht) (%) Baht)
Profit before income tax expense 108,365 218,106
Income tax using the Thai
corporation tax rate 20.0 21,673 20.0 43,621
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose 5,059 1,132
Income not subject to tax (291) (938)
Adjustment for prior years (12,647) 3,292
Addition deductible expense for tax purpose (145,353) -
Unrecognised loss carry forward to
deferred tax asset 19,753 -
Total (103.2) (111,806) 21.6 47,107

Income tax reduction

Revenue Code Amendment Act No. 42 B.E. 2559 dated 3 March 2016 grants a reduction of the
corporate income tax rate to 20% of net taxable profit for accounting periods which begin on or after

1 January 2016.
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28 Basic earnings
Basic earnings per share
The calculations of basic earnings per share for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 were

based on the profit for the years attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the years as follows:

2016 2015
(in thousand Baht)

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company

(basic) 220,171 170,999
Number of ordinary share outstanding at 1 January 596 493 447370
Effect of shares issue during the year - 84,571
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 596,493 531,941
(basic)
Basic earnings per share (in Baht) 0.37 0.32

Diluted earnings per share

The calculations of diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 were
based on the profit for the years attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the years after adjusting for the effects of all
diluted potential ordinary shares as follows:

2016 2015
(in thousand Baht)

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company

(basic) 220,171 170,999
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company

(diluted) 220,171 170,999
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding (basic) 596,493 531,941
Effect of exercise of share options - -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding

(diluted) 596,493 531,941

Diluted earnings per share (in Baht) 0.37 0.32

29 Dividends

At the annual general meeting of the shareholders of the Company held on 29 April 2016, the
shareholders approved the appropriation of the profit from the results of operations for the year ended
31 December 2015 to be dividends of Baht 0.17 per share, amounting to Baht 101 million. The
dividend was paid to shareholders on 27 May 2016.

At the annual general meeting of the shareholders of the Company held on 28 April 2015, the
shareholders approved the appropriation of the profit from the results of operations for the year ended
31 December 2014 to be dividends of Baht 0.17 per share, amounting to Baht 76.1 million. The
dividend was paid to shareholders during 2015.
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Financial instruments
Financial risk management policies

The Company is exposed to normal business risks from changes in market interest rates, foreign
currency exchange rates and from non-performance of contractual obligations by counterparties. The
Company does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for speculative or trading purposes.

Risk management is integral to the whole business of the Company. The Company has a system of
controls in place to create an acceptable balance between the cost of risks occurring and the cost of
managing the risks. The management continually monitors the Company’s risk management process to
ensure that an appropriate balance between risk and control is achieved.

Capital risk management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern and to sustain future development of the business in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to increase
investors and stakeholders’ confidence.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders depending on the Company’s operating performance.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that future movements in market interest rates will affect the results of the
Company’s operations and its cash flows because loan interest rates are mainly fixed, as disclosed in
note 15. The management believes that the Company has no need to use derivative instruments to

manage such risk.

Financial assets and financial liabilities as at 31 December with details of the Company’s interest rate
risk based on the period to earlier of the contractual repricing date or maturity date were as follows:

31 December 2016

After 1 year Non-
Interest Within but within interest
Note rate 1 years 5 years bearing Total
(% per annum) (in thousand Baht)

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5 0.125-0.750 62,634 - 14,989 77,623
Receivables under operating

lease contracts* 6 - - - 281,928 281,928
Receivables under finance Rate drived

lease contracts™® 7 from contracts 849,395 1,199,838 - 2,049.233
Total financial assets 912,029 1,199,838 296,917 2,408,784
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Financial liabilities
Short-term loans from
financial institutions
Trade account payables
Debentures
Long-term loans from
financial institutions
Total financial liabilities
Difference of on-financial

reporting items

* Gross amount before net off allowance for doubtful accounts

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables under operating
lease contracts®

Receivables under finance
lease contracts*

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities
Short-term loans from
financial institutions
Trade account payables
Debentures
Long-term loans from
financial institutions
Total financial liabilities
Difference of on-financial

reporting items

* Gross amount before net off allowance for doubtful accounts

Note

15.1
16
152

153

Note

15.1
16
152

153

Interest
rate

(% per annum)

MMR

224 -3.05

3.00-4.30

Interest
rate

(% per annum)

0.125-0.750

Rate drived

from contracts

MMR

2.62-4.65

3.00 -4.50

31 December 2016

After 1 year Non-
Within but within interest
1 years 5 years bearing Total
(in thousand Baht)
1,752,743 - - 1,752,743
- - 107,766 107,766
1,899,673 4,946,319 - 6,845,992
577,700 717910 - 1,295,610
4,230,116 5,664,229 107,766 10,002,111
(3,318,087) (4,464,391) 189,151 (7,593,327)
31 December 2015
After 1 year Non-
Within but within interest
1 years 5 years bearing Total
(in thousand Baht)
39,198 - 40,936 80,134
- - 263,501 263,501
746,286 959,405 - 1,705,691
785,484 959,405 304,437 2,049,326
498,223 - - 498,223
- - 259,860 259,860
2,199,631 4,646,413 - 6,846,044
998,180 1,295,610 - 2,293,790
3,696,034 5,942,023 259,860 9,897,917
(2,910,550) (4,982,618) 44,577 (7,848,591)
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Foreign currency risk

The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk relating to purchasing of assets for lease which are
denominated in foreign currencies. The Company primarily utilises forward exchange contracts with
maturities of less than one year to hedge such financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies.

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Company does not have a foreign currency account payable
which has foreign currency risk.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the potential financial loss resulting from the failure of a customer or a counterparty to
settle its financial and contractual obligations to the Company as and when they fall due. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount. The maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the statement of
financial position.

Liquidity risk

The Company monitors its liquidity risk and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by management to finance the Company’s operations and to mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows.

Determination of fair values

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, receivables under operating lease contracts, current portion
of receivables under finance lease contracts, trade account payables, and short-term loans from
financial institutions is taken to approximate the carrying value due to the relatively short-term

maturity of these instruments.

The fair value of receivables under finance lease contracts, portion due after one year is taken to
approximate the carrying value.

The fair value of floating interest rate long-term loan is taken to approximate the carrying value due to
the floating interest rate of the long-term loan varies according to the market interest rate.

Other financial liabilities not stated above had the fair and carrying value as follows:

Carrying
amount Fair value
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(in million Baht)

31 December 2016
Debentures 6,850 6,890 6,890
Long-term loans 1,296 1,236 1,236
31 December 2015
Debentures 6,850 - 6,977 - 6,977
Long-term loans 2,293 - 2,177 - 2,177
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Commitments and contingent liabilities

Non-cancellable operating lease commitments

2016 2015
(in thousand Baht)
Within one year 12,342 5,935
After one year but within five years 11,215 9,030
Total 23,557 14,965

Assets held for lease commitments

As at 31 December, the minimum future annual rental income to be received for assets held for
operating leases were as follows:

2016 2015

(in thousand Baht)
Within one year 2,486,349 2,541,652
After one year but within five years 3,638,980 3,819,017
After five years - 50
Total 6,125,329 6,360,719

Under the provisions of certain lease agreements, the lessees have an option to purchase the leased
assets upon the expiration of the lease terms. If this option is included in the lease agreement, the
lessees are required to pay a sum in advance as a guarantee for exercising the purchase option.

Letters of guarantee

As at 31 December 2016, the Company has commitment for letters of guarantee issued by various local
banks mainly relating to guarantees for rental agreements with government agencies and state enterprises of
approximately Baht 129 million (2015: Baht 148 million).

Events after the reporting period

At the Board of Directors’ meeting held on 21 February 2017, the Board approved to propose for
consideration and approval at the Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders on 28 April 2017 for the
dividend payment from the net profit and the operating results of the year 2016 to shareholders at the
rate of Baht 0.19 per share for the total number of 596,492,753 shares, totaling Baht 113.3 million and
the issuance and offering of debentures in the outstanding debts of not exceeding Baht 10,000 million
in whole or in part by single or multiple offering.

Thai Financial Reporting Standards (TFRS) not yet adopted

A number of new and revised TFRS have been issued but are not yet effective and have not been
applied in preparing these financial statements. Those new and revised TFRS that may be relevant to
the Company’s operations, which become effective for annual financial periods beginning on or after
1 January 2017, are set out below. The Company does not plan to adopt these TFRS early.
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TFRS

TAS 1 (revised 2016)
TAS 2 (revised 2016)
TAS 7 (revised 2016)
TAS 8 (revised 2016)
TAS 10 (revised 2016)
TAS 12 (revised 2016)
TAS 16 (revised 2016)
TAS 17 (revised 2016)
TAS 18 (revised 2016)
TAS 19 (revised 2016)
TAS 21 (revised 2016)
TAS 23 (revised 2016)
TAS 24 (revised 2016)
TAS 33 (revised 2016)
TAS 34 (revised 2016)
TAS 36 (revised 2016)
TAS 37 (revised 2016)
TAS 38 (revised 2016)
TAS 40 (revised 2016)
TAS 104 (revised 2016)
TAS 107 (revised 2016)
TFRS 5 (revised 2016)
TFRS 8 (revised 2016)
TFRS 13 (revised 2016)
TSIC 15 (revised 2016)
TSIC 25 (revised 2016)

TSIC 27 (revised 2016)

TSIC 32 (revised 2016)
TFRIC 1 (revised 2016)

TFRIC 4 (revised 2016)
TFRIC 5 (revised 2016)

TFRIC 10 (revised 2016)
TFRIC 14 (revised 2016)

TFRIC 17 (revised 2016)
TFRIC 18 (revised 2016)

FAP Announcement
no. 5/2559

Topic

Presentation of Financial Statements

Inventories

Statement of Cash Flows

Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
Events after the Reporting Period

Income Taxes

Property, Plant and Equipment

Leases

Revenue

Employee Benefits

The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

Borrowing Costs

Related Party Disclosures

Earnings per Share

Interim Financial Reporting

Impairment of Assets

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Intangible Assets

Investment Property

Troubled Debt Restructuring

Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation

Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
Operating Segments

Fair Value Measurement

Operating Leases — Incentives

Income Taxes — Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity or its
Shareholders

Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a
Lease

Intangible Assets — Web Site Costs

Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and Similar
Liabilities

Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease

Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, Restoration and
Environmental Rehabilitation Funds

Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment

TAS 19 (revised 2016) Employee Benefits — The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction
Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners

Transfers of Assets from Customers

Accounting guidance for derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities

The Company has made a preliminary assessment of the potential initial impact on the Company’s
financial statements of these new and revised TFRS and expects that there will be no material impact
on the financial statements in the period of initial application.
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Employee Code of Conduct

The Company recognizes the importance of “good corporate governance” as part of the Company’s business
strategy which leads to transparent, equitable and verifiable operations. For the past performance, the Company’s

business has been carried on within the scope of the Code of Conduct.

To ensure that good corporate governance policies shall be concretely implemented, the Code of Conduct
is considered an important and necessary tool. Therefore, the Company has set out written guidelines on how to
faithfully, honestly and equitably perform duties and responsibilities assigned to the Employees at all levels, and how
to behave towards the Company and all groups of stakeholders so that the Employees at all levels shall acknowledge

and adhere to the said guidelines.

This Employee Code of Conduct has been established as a fundamental standard for the Employees to behave
ethically. In addition, it reflects the Company’s commitment to complying with laws, rules, regulations and articles of
association. It also serves to remind the Employees to take caution and prevents them from doing any act in violation

of laws, rules, regulations and articles of association, which may bring the Company into disrepute.

If an Employee breaches the “Employee Code of Conduct”, it shall be deemed a serious disciplinary violation,
and the Employee shall be liable to the punishment as specified in the Company’s articles of association and regulations

which have been stipulated and/or will be announced in the future.
Scope

The “Employee Code of Conduct” applies to the Employees of Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited, its
subsidiary companies, associated companies and other enterprises, over which the Company has control, including
enterprises in foreign countries.

The “Employee(s)” means permanent employee(s), contract employee(s), probationary employee(s), temporary
employee(s), special contract employee(s), contractual party/parties and employee(s) of the companies which have

been hired by the Company.
Practices

1. Faithfulness, Honesty and Morality
The Employees must perform duties faithfully and honestly in strict compliance with the laws relating
to business operations, rules, regulations and orders of the Company, and adhere to morality, and must

not seek personal benefits.

2. Responsibility for Assignments
The Employees are considered a valuable resource and an essential factor in the Company’s success
so the Company has taken care of and treated them fairly in relation to advancement opportunity,
remuneration, appointment, transfer as well as potential development. Therefore, the Company believes
that all Employees shall perform their assignments responsibly, give cooperation in preparation of accurate
and up-to-date documents, data and reports, as well as study to gain knowledge and experiences for

improving themselves as qualified persons in order to become more efficient and effective at work.
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3. Confidentiality and Use of Insider Information

Insider information protection is essential for the Company’s success and also for job security of all

Employees. The Company deems that it is the responsibility of all Employees to keep the Company’s

confidential information strictly confidential. The Employees shall not disclose the Company’s information

not yet revealed to the public, except in compliance with applicable laws or with the approval of line

manager or higher level executives. The Code of Conduct in relation to confidentiality and use of insider

information has been laid down as follows:

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

The Company’s Employees at all levels have the duty to keep confidential insider information
and documents which cannot be revealed to outsiders, for example, price sensitive
information, trade secret, formula or invention d eemed to belong to the Company, whereby
the leakage thereof will lead to wrongful benefit-seeking for themselves or their families or
associates.

The Company’s Employees at all levels shall not use confidential information for their own
benefit or another’s benefit.

The Company’s Employees at all levels who receive personal information shall keep or use
such information with due care.

The Company requires the information relating to contractual parties and the agreements
made with the contractual parties to be treated as confidential information which cannot be
revealed to third party, except in compliance with applicable laws or with the approval of
line manager or higher level executives.

Each division should provide measures and systems to strictly control the Company’s
information which shall be applied within such division or department in order to prevent the
Company’s insider information from being disclosed before official release. These measures
and systems shall be deemed part of risk control measures of the Company.

The Company assigns the superiors at all levels to have the duty and responsibility to ensure
that the important data and information of the Company will not be leaked to the public by
their inferiors before official release by the Company.

Insider information internally shared by the Employees shall be used within the scope of
duties and responsibilities as assigned to the Employees.

The Company deems it important to keep confidential the aforesaid information including
the information of its customers, products, services, work plans, strategies, work procedures
and work systems. The Employees shall not use the information received or prepared due
to their assignments in the Company in the manner which may bring personal benefits.

The Company’s Employees at all levels have the obligation to protect confidential information
of the Company’s customers and business partners as well as the Company’s information at
all times even though the Employees resign or are no longer the Company’s Employees.
The Company considers thatany information or documents including programs and work systems
developed and invented during their employment with the Company shall be the property of
and be copyrighted by the Company. The Employees shall not disclose any information or
document including programs and work systems developed and invented during their

employment with the Company even though they are no longer the Company’s Employees.
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a.

Insider Trading

The Company prohibits the purchase or sale of securities of the Company or any of its subsidiary
companies by using insider information which is substantial and has a significant effect on the price of
the securities whereby such information has not yet been disclosed in the securities exchange and to
the public.In this regard, the top four executives ranked next to the managing director as defined
by the Securities Exchange shall have the duty to disclose the securities holding in accordance with Form

59-2 to the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Conflict of Interest

Any Employee shall not seek personal benefits which are contrary to the interest of the Company,
or do any acts which may cause conflicts of interest with the Company, and/or carry on any business
in connection with the Company’s business or in the same type of the Company’s business in order to
seek personal benefits and cause damage to the Company, whether directly or indirectly. The business
carried by the Employee shall not have any impact on his/her duty performance for the Company.

In this regard, any Employee shall not demand or receive any property and/or benefit in bad faith
from the customers, business partners, creditors or debtors, or use his/her power to seek personal
benefits. The Employee shall avoid receiving any gifts or presents from business partners which may

lead to a conspiracy or make other persons understand that there is a conspiracy.

Responsibilities towards the Company’s Property and Reputation

AWl Employees have the duty to take care of the Company’s property to prevent damage, loss,
misuse, theft and destruction. The following shall be the responsibilities of the Employees: to comply
with maintenance instructions and security procedures, to be ready and stay alert for any situation
and incident which may arise, as well as to protect and prevent the Company’s properties from
damage, theft or misuse.

In addition, they shall jointly promote and maintain the Company’s reputation by carefully performing
duties without giving opinion towards third party in the matter which may have negative impact on
the Company’s reputation and operation in order to prevent damage which may arise to the

stakeholders and the Company’s reputation.

Colleagues

All Employees must respect personal rights of other Employees whereby no information or stories
of other Employees, whether they are private matters or not, shall not be disclosed or criticized in the
manner that may damage the Employees or the Company’s image, must not condemn him/her or do any act
which may lead to disunity or cause internal damage to the Company or related persons of the Company,
must treat other colleagues politely and generously with good human relationship, and must help

bring about and maintain team unity.
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Anti-Corruption Policy

Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited is determined to carry on business operation with honesty, transparency, fairness,
trustworthiness and due care under applicable laws, rules, regulations and standards. Therefore, the Company deems appropriate
to establish the “Anti-Corruption Policy” to clarify the actions to be taken in relation to the anti-corruption efforts so that all of the

directors, executives and employees shall acknowledge, understand and strictly comply with such practices.
1. Definition

Corruption means actions taken to seek undue advantages for the benefit of himself/herself or others, regardless of their form
such as giving/receiving of bribe and inducement, ¢ift, donation, financial support, participation in political activities and/or giving/
receiving of any other benefits which are not proper for the government officials, sovernment agencies, private agencies or
competent officials, whether directly or indirectly, so that such persons shall perform or omit to perform duties or in order to
obtain or protect any other undue benefits, except as permitted by local laws, rules, notifications, regulations, customs and

traditions or trade usages.
2. Duties and Responsibilities

2.1 The Board of Directors of the Company has the duties to consider and approve the Anti-Corruption Policy as well as to
encourage the building of efficient anti-corruption systems.

2.2 The Audit Committee has the duties to oversee internal control systems including any other processes relating to the anti-
corruption efforts.

2.3 The Internal Audit Office has the duties to implement the internal audit plan formulated and then report the results to the
Audit Committee.

2.4 The Company’s executives have the duties to communicate and ensure that the inferiors acknowledge, understand and
comply with this Anit-Corruption Policy.

2.5 Al of the directors, executives and employees have the duty to comply with this Anit-Corruption Policy.

3. Anti-Corruption Policy and Practices

3.1 All of the directors, executives and employees have the duties to prevent and combat corruption offences including the
giving/receiving of bribe and inducement, gift, donation, financial support, participation in political activities and/or giving/receiving
of any other benefits which are not proper for the government officials, government agencies, private agencies or competent
officials, whether directly or indirectly, so that such persons shall perform or omit to perform duties or in order to obtain or protect
any other undue benefits, except as permitted by local laws, rules, notifications, regulations, customs and traditions or trade
usages.

3.2 All of the directors, executives and employees must not use their positions, powers or duties assigned to seek benefits for
themselves, their families, friends, acquaintances and/or any other related persons, and must not do any acts which may cause
conflicts of interest with the Company, whereby the public interest shall prevail over any private interest. They must perform their

duties to protect the Company’s benefits and prevent conflicts of interest.
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3.3 All of the directors, executives and employees must strictly adhere to and comply with the Anti-Corruption Policy. Failure
to do so by any employee shall be deemed serious disciplinary violation. Punishment shall be imposed in accordance with the
Articles of Association and regulations of the Company which have been provided or will be announced in the future.

3.4  The Company has provided channels for receiving information or clues from the employees and outsiders whereby the
Company shall administer justice and protect the rights of the informants and/or the employees who refuse and/or give information
on corruption offences relating to the Company, whether in relation to their duties/responsibilities, punishments or any other acts
which may have negative impact on such employees.

3.5  The Company has continuously communicated the Anti-Corruption Policy through the Company’s communication channels
such as emails, the Company’s website, annual report and etc. The Company has also provided training courses on the anti-

corruption efforts for the employees.

4. Channels for Receiving Information or Clues

The Company has provided channels for receiving information, complaints or clues as follows:
4.1  Company Secretary;

4.2 Internal Audit Office

4.3 Audit Committee

Email : company_secretary@pl.co.th
Telephone @ 02-290-7575 ext. 101, 205

Facsimile : 02-693-2298

Address . Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited

252/6, Floor 29, Muangthai-Phatra Complex, Tower 1,
Rajadapisek Road, Khwaeng/Khet Huai Khwang,
Bangkok 10320

This Anti-Corruption Policy has been approved by the Board of Director’s Meeting No. 5/2558, held on Thursday 26 November
2015.
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